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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011
OR

00 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 0-51357

BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

Delaware 52-2084569
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

2001 Bryan Street, Suite 160
Dallas, Texas 75201

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(214) 880-3500

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) afie Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Exchange on Which Registered
Common stock, par value $0.01 per st NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢ie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edBéturities Act.  Yed No
X1

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes[d
No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsHe past 90 days. Ye&l No [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&eb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation B5¢Section 232.405 of this chapter) during the pd#tg 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regigtwas required to submit and post such file¥)es No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiélers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgeadefinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-KIX]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @accelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See the definitions of “largeederated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “small@porting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated fill O Accelerated filel



Non-accelerated file O (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar O
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Actyes O No

The aggregate market value of the registrant’s comstock held by non-affiliates of the registrasibd June 30, 2011 was
approximately $100.4 million based on the closiriggpper share on that date of $2.15 as reportedeNASDAQ Stock Market LLC.

The number of shares of the registrant’'s commocksiear value $0.01, outstanding as of Februar2@92 was 96,612,914.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy statnt for its annual meeting of stockholders to blel lon May 23, 2012 are incorporated
by reference into Part Il of this Form 10-K.
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PART |

ltem 1. Business
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this report which are not purelyanisal facts or which necessarily depend upon iwents, including statements
regarding our anticipations, beliefs, expectatidrages, intentions or strategies for the futurey bmforward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities ExchangteofA1934, as amended. All forward-looking statateen this report are based upon
information available to us on the date of thisorepWe undertake no obligation to publicly updateevise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future éseor otherwise. Any forward-looking statementdman this report involve risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual events ottset® differ materially from the events or resutiescribed in the forwalddeoking statement
Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliamtieese forward-looking statements. In additiom) statements made by our directors,
officers and employees to the investment commumigdlia representatives and others, depending ingimnature, may also constitute
forward-looking statements. As with the forwardio@ statements included in this report, these &dsooking statements are by nature
inherently uncertain, and actual results may diffi@terially as a result of many factors. Furthéosrimation regarding the risk factors that
could affect our financial and other results aduded as Item 1A of this annual report on Fornk10-

OVERVIEW

Builders FirstSource, Inc. is a leading supplied amanufacturer of structural and related buildingdoicts for residential new
construction. We have operations principally in sbethern and eastern United States with 51 digtab centers and 44 manufacturing
facilities, many of which are located on the samamises as our distribution centers. We have ss@dgsacquired and integrated
27 companies since our formation and are currenélyaged as three regional operating groups — AdlaBoutheast and Central — with
centralized financial and operational oversighthiis annual report, references to the “compamyg,” “our,” “ours” or “us” refer to Builders
FirstSource, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiatieess otherwise stated or the context otherreigaires.

Builders FirstSource, Inc. is a Delaware corporafmrmed in 1998, as BSL Holdings, Inc. On Octob&r1999, our name changed to
Builders FirstSource, Inc. Our common stock ielisobn the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC under the tickgmbol “BLDR”.

OUR INDUSTRY

We compete in the professional segment (“Pro Segineinthe U.S. residential new construction builgiproducts supply market.
Suppliers in the Pro Segment primarily focus owisgrprofessional customers such as homebuildetsemodeling contractors. The Pro
Segment consists predominantly of small, privateiyed suppliers including framing and shell cordtan contractors, local and regional
materials distributors, single or multi-site lumyrds, and truss manufacturing and millwork opereti Because of the predominance of
smaller privately owned companies and the oveiradl and diversity of the target customer market,Rho Segment remains fragmented.
There were only seven building product suppliethwwanufacturing capabilities in the Pro Segmeat gfenerated more than $500 million in
sales according tBroSalesnagazine’s 2010 ProSales 100 list. On this listywgee the fourth largest building product suppligth
manufacturing capabilities in 2010.

Our industry is driven primarily by the residentisw construction market, which is in turn dependgron a number of factors,
including demographic trends, interest rates, eympént levels, supply and demand for housing stae&ilability of credit, foreclosure rates,
consumer confidence and the economy in generalh®heebuilding industry has experienced a signitickownturn over the past six years
due to negative trends in many of the factorsdisteove. During this downturn, many homebuildengehsignificantly decreased their hous
starts because of lower demand and a surplus bféxisting and new home inventory during this tifflee weakness in the homebuilding
industry has resulted in a significant reductionlé@mand for our products and services. AccordirtpedNational Association of
Homebuilders (“NAHB"), the single-family residentieonstruction market was an estimated $106.80ilin 2011, which is consistent with
levels experienced over the past three years alichites that some level of stabilization has oemrthough still down significantly from the
historical high of $413.2 billion in 2006.
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Adding to the pressure on the housing industntlagesevere limitations on credit availability fonaller homebuilders and homebuyers.
Beginning in 2007, the mortgage markets experiescabdtantial disruption due to increased defapttmarily as a result of credit quality
deterioration. This disruption resulted in a s&fategulatory environment and reduced availabdftynortgages for potential homebuyers due
to an illiquid credit market and more restrictivarsdards to qualify for mortgages. Mortgage finagand commercial credit for smaller
homebuilders continue to be constrained, whiclhoiwisg a recovery in our industry. However, we beé there are several meaningful trends
that indicate U.S. housing demand will likely reeoin the long term. These trends include relayilelv interest rates, the aging of housing
stock, and population growth due to immigration airthrate exceeding death rate. Despite actual &irfgle-family housing starts in 2011
reaching the lowest level since the downturn bag&®06, housing starts increased 4.7% duringdbet quarter of 2011 compared to the
fourth quarter of 2010. The NAHB is predicting thas. single-family housing starts will increaseil2 to approximately 499,000, which
would represent a 15.9% increase from 2011 actu&l single-family housing starts.

OUR CUSTOMERS

We serve a broad customer base ranging from primtiulcdbmebuilders to small custom homebuilders. \&leebe we have a diverse
geographic footprint as we serve 32 markets irafest Based on 2011 U.S. Census data, we haveiopsria 17 of the top 50
U.S. Metropolitan Statistical Areas, as rankedibgle family housing permits in 2011. In additi@pproximately 46% of U.S. housing
permits in 2011 were issued in states in which perate.

Our customer mix is a balance of large national élowilders, regional homebuilders, and local bugd@ur customer base is highly
diversified. For the year ended December 31, 26adtop 10 customers accounted for approximatelg®3of sales, and no single customer
accounted for more than 5% of sales. Our top 1@ousrs are comprised primarily of the largest paotidun homebuilders, including publicly
traded companies such as Beazer Homes USA, D.Rofjdnc., Lennar Corp., Hovnanian Enterprises,,IRalteGroup, Inc., and The Ryle
Group, Inc.

In addition to the largest production homebuilders,also service and supply regional and localeenstomebuilders. Custom
homebuilders require high levels of service; oleséeam must work very closely with the desigrmers: day-to-day basis in order to ensure
the appropriate products are produced and deliveréite building site. To account for these incegbservice costs, pricing in the industry is
tied to the level of service provided and the vadsrpurchased.

While our primary focus has been on single-fam@lgidential new construction, over the past seyeals we have expanded our multi-
family and light commercial business to furtheratiify our customer base and lessen our depenaentte single-family housing market.

OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

We offer an integrated solution to our customewwjoling manufacturing, supply, and installationadull range of structural and relat
building products. We provide a wide variety oflding products and services directly to homebuilklgtomers. We also manufacture floor
trusses, roof trusses, wall panels, stairs, milkwasindows, and doors. In addition to our compredinem offering of products that includes
approximately 63,000 stock keeping units (“SKUs# also provide a full range of construction sezgidNVe believe our broad product and
service offering, combined with our scale and eiqrered sales force, has driven market share gaémscularly with production
homebuilders.

We group our building products and services inte firoduct categories: prefabricated componentsdaovis & doors, lumber & lumb
sheet goods, millwork, and other building prod&tservices. For the year ended December 31, 20irlcambined sales of prefabricated
components, windows & doors and millwork produdegaries represented 52.9% of total sales. Eatiinesk categories includes both
manufactured and distributed products. Productiséee categories typically carry a higher margith provide us with opportunities to cross-
sell other products and services, thereby incrgasiistomer penetration. Sales by product categorhé years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 can be found under the caption “Memagt’'s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Candiand Results of Operations”
contained in Item 7 of this annual report on FoilbrKlL

Prefabricated Component®refabricated components are factory-built sultstt for job-site framing and include floor trussesf
trusses, wall panels, stairs, and engineered wuatdie design and cut for each home. Our manufedtforefabricated components allow
builders to build higher quality homes more effitlg. Roof trusses, floor trusses, wall panels stait units are built in a factory controlled
environment. Engineered floors and beams are dinetoequired size and packaged for the given egipdin at many of our locations. Withi
prefabricated components, builders construct titesgs on site, where weather and variable labolitgjuzan negatively impact construction
cost, quality and installation time. In additiongineered wood beams have greater structural stréingn conventional framing materials,
allowing builders to frame houses with more opescepcreating a wider variety of house designs. itaeged wood floors are also stronger
and straighter than conventionally framed floors.
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Prior to the current housing downturn, homebuildegse increasingly using prefabricated componentgder to realize increased
efficiency and improved quality. Shortening cydhtad from start to completion was a key imperatif¢éhe homebuilders during periods of
strong consumer demand. With the current housimgntlarn, that trend decelerated as cycle time hssldelevance. Customers who
traditionally used prefabricated components, ferriost part, still do. However, the conversionudtomers to this product offering has
slowed. We expect this trend to continue at leastHe duration of this downturn. In response, weehreduced our manufacturing capacity
and delayed plans to open new facilities.

Windows & Doors.The windows & doors category comprises the manufang, assembly and distribution of windows, ahd t
assembly and distribution of interior and extedoor units. We manufacture aluminum and vinyl wiwdan our plant in Houston, Texas
which allows us to supply builders, primarily iretfiexas market, with an adequate supply of costpetitive products. Our pre-hung interior
and exterior doors consist of a door slab with Bsygnd door jambs attached, reducing on-site iagtal time and providing higher quality
finished door units than those constructed on $iese products typically require a high degreprotiuct knowledge and training to sell. As
we continue to emphasize higher margin producs|imes expect value-added goods like windows & démiacreasingly contribute to our
sales and overall profitability.

Lumber & Lumber Sheet Goodsumber & lumber sheet goods include dimensionaildar, plywood and oriented strand board
(“*OSB”) products used in osite house framing. In 2011, this product line ®89% of our total sales, which is consistent \ilitl prior year
We expect the lumber & lumber sheet goods busittesmmain a stable revenue source in the future.

Millwork. Millwork includes interior trim, exterior trim, domns and posts that we distribute, as well asoougtxterior features that we
manufacture under the Synbo&d brand name. Synimardduced from extruded PVC and offers sevatahatages over traditional wood
features, such as greater durability and no ongmiamtenance such as periodic caulking and painting

Other Building Products & Service®ther building products & services consist of wasg products, including gypsum, hardware,
composite materials, roofing and insulation. Ttategory also includes services such as keyframing, shell construction, design assist:
and professional installation of products spanmithgur product categories. We provide professiamstillation and turn-key services as a
solution for our homebuilder customers. Throughioatallation services program, we help homebuddealize efficiencies through
improved scheduling, resulting in reduced cyclestiamd better cost controls. By utilizing an enegfficiency software program, we also
assist homebuilders in designing energy efficiemhés in order to meet increasingly stringent eneaging requirements. Upgrading to our
premium windows, doors, and insulating productsiced overall cost to the homebuilder by minimizbogts of the required heating/cooling
system. We work closely with the homebuilder tesethe appropriate mix of our products in ordemeet current and forthcoming energy
codes. We believe these services require scalgatapd sophistication that smaller competitorsdbpossess.

MANUFACTURING

Our manufacturing facilities utilize the latestheclogy and the highest quality materials to imgrpvoduct quality, increase efficient
reduce lead times and minimize production errossaAesult, we believe we incur significantly lovemigineering and sefp costs than do ol
competitors, contributing to improved margins andtomer satisfaction. We manufacture products withiee of our product categories:
prefabricated components, millwork, and windows dadrs.

Prefabricated Components — Trusses and Wall Parigisss and wall panel production has two steps sigdeand fabrication. Each
house requires its own set of designed shop drawimlgich vary by builder type: production versustom builders. Production builders use
prototype house plans as they replicate houses€eTlth@use plans may be minimally modified to sudhildual customer demand. The num
of changes made to a given prototype house, anduimber of prototype houses used, varies by budddrtheir construction and sales
philosophy. We maintain an electronic master filérosses and wall panels for each builder’s pyqiethouses. There are three primary
benefits to master filing. First, master filingasst effective as the electronic master file isdusgher than designing the components
individually each time the prototype house is bikcond, it improves design quality as a housesigt is based on the proven prototype
except for any minor builder modifications. Thirdaster filing allows us to change one file and updsl related prototype house designs
automatically as we improve the design over timasothe builder modifies the base prototype hod&edo not maintain a master file for
custom builders who do not replicate houses, iaqibt cost effective. For these builders, the congmts are designed individually for each
house.

After we design shop drawings for a given housedesenload the shop drawings into a proprietaryveafe system to review the des
for potential errors and to schedule the job fadopiction. The fabrication process begins by cutiimtividual pieces of lumber to required
lengths in accordance with the shop drawings. Wenttwad the shop drawings from our design departrteeodmputerized saws. We
assemble the cut lumber to form roof trusses, fingses or wall panels, and store the finishedpmomants by house awaiting shipment to the
job site.
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We generate fabrication time standards for eachpooent during the design step. We use these s@mtameasure efficiency by
comparing actual production time with the calcuattandard. Each plant’s performance is benchmarkedmparing efficiency across
plants.

Prefabricated Components — Engineered Wols with trusses and wall panels, engineered wantponents have a design and
fabrication step. We design engineered wood flogisg a master filing system similar to the trusd wall panel system. Engineered wood
beams are designed to ensure the beam will bestally sound in the given application. After thesthn phase, a printed layout is generated.
We use this layout to cut the engineered woodéadiguired length and assemble all of the comparietd a house package. We then install
the components on the job site. We design anddateriengineered wood at many of our distributiaations.

Prefabricated Components — Staild/e manufacture box stairs at several of our locati After a house is framed, our salesman takes
measurements at the job site prior to manufactudragcount for any variation between the blueprand the actual framed house. We
fabricate box stairs based on these measurements.

Custom Millwork. Our manufactured custom millwork consists prinyaol synthetic exterior trim, custom windows, fe&tsiand box
columns that we sell under our Synboard brand reamdethroughout our company.

We sand, cut, and shape sheets of 4 foot by 18 &wdt Celuka-blown, extruded PVC, or Synboardyreduce the desired product. We
produce exterior trim boards by cutting the Syntaato the same industry-standard dimensions useddodbased exterior trim boards. \
form exterior features by assembling pieces of $gnih and other PVC-based moldings that have beeheated and bent over forms to
achieve the desired shape. For custom windows uie the frame from Synboard and glaze the glassptace. We fabricate box columns
from sections of PVC that are cut on a 45 degregeaand mitered together.

Windows. We manufacture a full line of traditional aluminamd vinyl windows at an approximately 200,000 sguaot manufacturin
facility located in Houston, Texas. The processifiely purchasing aluminum and vinyl lineal extans. We cut these extrusions to size and
join them together to form the window frame anchs&¥e then purchase sheet glass and cut it to\Wiezecombine two pieces of identica
shaped glass with a sealing compound to creatasa ghit with improved insulating capability. Wenhnsert the sealed glass unit and glaze
it into the window frame and sash. The unit is ctatgal when we install a balance to operate the evindnd add a lock to secure the window
in a closed position.

Pre-hung Doors.We pre-hang interior and exterior doors at manguwflocations. We insert door slabs and pre-cot gmbs into a
door machine, which bores holes into the door¢Hferdoor hardware and applies the jambs and hiogtee door slab. We then apply the
casing that frames interior doors at a separatistaxterior doors do not have a casing, anceaimay have sidelights applied to the sides
of the door, a transom attached over the top ofitdwe unit and a door sill applied to the threshold

OUR STRATEGY

Our long-term strategy is to leverage our compatisitrengths to grow sales, earnings, and cashdtamwemain a preferred supplier to
the homebuilding industry. We have modified ouatggy in response to the extended downturn thaatiested our industry. Our strategy
during the housing downturn is to maximize finahpierformance without impairing our ability to coetp and create value in the long term.
We have implemented this strategy through geneyatéw business, focusing on cost, working captitdl @perating improvements, and most
importantly conserving cash.
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Expand Current Customer Bas@ver the past ten years, the homebuilding industsyundergone consolidation, and the larger
homebuilders have increased their market sham@cdardance with this trend, our customer baserweasingly shifted to production
homebuilders. We intend to leverage our businesseingeographic breadth and scale to continuedw gur sales to the production
homebuilders as they continue to gain market st&ates to our 10 largest production homebuildgrsesented 23.3% of our total sales in
2011. We expect that our ability to maintain stroelgtionships with the largest builders will béavito our ability to grow and expand into
new markets as well as maintain our current maskate through the current downturn. Additionallyridg this downturn, we will continue
with our plan to prudently expand our presencé&dustom homebuilder base while also continuirigdk for ways to expand our multi-
family and light commercial business to furtheratsify our customer base.

Focus on Cost, Working Capital and Operating Imgmments.We are extremely focused on expenses and worldpijat to remain a
low cost supplier. We maintain a continuous improeat, “best practices” operating philosophy anditady implement new initiatives to
reduce costs, increase efficiency and manage wgpdapital. For example, we have linked our compsystem to those of some customer
streamline the administrative aspects of the qgotimvoicing and billing processes. We also analygeworkforce productivity to determine
the optimal labor mix that minimizes cost, and eksmour logistics function to reduce the cost dfaand freight. Our focus on cost controls,
working capital and operating improvements is gatéirly important during this downturn. Our largeshtrollable cost is our salaries and
wages. Our ability to identify and implement opamatefficiencies is evident in the fact that oulasi@s and benefits expense, excluding stock
compensation expense, decreased $2.0 million id 26fnpared to 2010, despite a $78.8 million in@easales. We were also able to keep
our remaining selling, general and administrativpemses relatively flat during the current yeagpie this sales increase. Industry
forecasters are predicting that single family hongsitarts are expected to show improvements in 201éh could require us to increase our
operating expenses, headcount and working capitaider to support the additional demand. We willkmo minimize these increases to
ensure that we prudently adjust our variable cedtsthe change in sales volumes. We continue tdiligeently focused on the controllable
aspects of working capital, including days salestamding, inventory turns and accounts payabls daystanding.

Conserve CashDuring a downturn, we realize the importance aingcquickly to conserve capital. We reduced ouypited expenditure
in recent years to maintenance capital levels. Hewen 2010, we increased our capital expenditdresprimarily to buyouts of expiring
vehicle and equipment leases. We also manage edit tightly, especially in these conditions. Aduistry conditions remain challenging, we
know it is important to extend credit prudently #ohigher probability of collection on our accourdseivable.

Pursue Strategic Acquisitiong:he highly fragmented nature of the Pro Segmeth®t).S. residential new construction building
products supply market presents substantial acuisipportunities. Our long-term acquisition stigt, subject to our ability to secure long-
term capital, centers on the continued growth afgyefabricated components business and on thafeltéor geographic expansion. First,
will selectively seek to acquire companies that ufiacture prefabricated components such as rooflaadtrusses, wall panels, stairs, and
engineered wood, as well as other value-added ptsduch as millwork. We will also seek to acquioenpanies that present an opportunity
to add manufacturing capabilities in a relativéipid period of time. Second, there are a numbaittedctive homebuilding markets where we
do not currently operate. We believe that our pnomeerating model can be successfully adaptedetsetmarkets and that the homebuilde
these markets, many of whom we currently servendises, would value our broad product and servideriofy, professional expertise, and
superior customer service. When entering a new etaokir strategy is to acquire market-leading itistors and subsequently expand their
product offerings and/or add manufacturing faetivhile integrating their operations into our calited platform. This strategy allows us to
quickly achieve the scale required to maximize ipabflity and leverage existing customer relatidpstin the local market. Our senior
management team has the experience and abilitletdify acquisition candidates and integrate adtijois, having acquired and integrated
27 companies since 1998. There may be opporturidigadustry consolidation in 2012 and we wouk®klto be at the forefront of this trend.
However, liquidity continues to be our primary aofdocus in 2012, and therefore we will review grtial acquisitions in light of our
projected liquidity needs.
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SALES AND MARKETING

We seek to attract and retain customers througbptimal customer service, leading product qualitpad product and service
offerings, and competitive pricing. This strategycéntered on building and maintaining strong custorelationships rather than traditional
marketing and advertising. We strive to add vatrettie homebuilders through shorter lead timesetawaterial costs, faster project
completion and higher quality. By executing thim&tgy, we believe we will continue to generate hexsiness.

Our experienced locally focused sales force ibaicore of our sales effort. This sales effort lage deploying salespeople who are
skilled in housing construction to meet with a hbwmnéder’'s construction superintendent, local pusthg agent, or local executive with the
goal of becoming the primary product supplier diested by the homebuilder, the salesperson anat tisr team review blueprints for the
contracted homes and advise the homebuilder irsagzh as opportunities for cost reduction, in@danergy efficiencies, and regional
aesthetic preferences. Next, the team determimesptbcific package of our products that are netamledmplete the project and schedules a
sequence of site deliveries. Our large delivergtfind comprehensive inventory management systabiesos to provide “just-in-time”
product delivery, ensuring a smoother and fastedyetion cycle for the homebuilder. Throughout ¢bastruction process, the salesperson
makes frequent site visits to ensure timely dejivaard proper installation and to make suggestiongefficiency improvements. We believe
this level of service is highly valued by our custirs and generates significant customer loyaltypéd¢ember 31, 2011, we employed
approximately 344 sales representatives, who aiealy paid a commission based on gross margiladotollected and work with
approximately 199 sales coordinators and produstigfpsts.

BACKLOG

Due to the nature of our business, backlog infoiznais not meaningful. While our customers may flevan estimate of their future
needs, in most cases we do not receive a firm draer them until just prior to the anticipated deliy dates. Accordingly, in many cases the
time frame from receipt of a firm order and shipi@oes not exceed a few days.

MATERIALS AND SUPPLIER RELATIONSHIPS

We purchase inventory primarily for distributiolonse of which is also utilized in our manufacturipignts. The key materials we
purchase include dimensional lumber, OSB, enginkewd, windows, doors, and millwork. Our largagbgliers are national lumber and
wood products producers and distributors such aslBhx Holdings Inc., Boise Cascade Company, Ui8nher, Canfor Wood Products and
Weyerhaeuser Company and building products manurfarst such as Masonite International Corporatio,WIndows and Doors and Ply
Gem Windows. We believe there is sufficient supplthe marketplace to competitively source mostwfrequirements without reliance on
any particular supplier and that our diversity @pgliers affords us purchasing flexibility. Duedor centralized oversight of purchasing and
our large lumber and OSB purchasing volumes, wiewelwe are better able to maximize the advantafjbsth our and our suppliers’ broad
footprints and negotiate purchases in multiple retrko achieve more favorable contracts with resjoegrice, terms of sale, and supply than
our regional competitors. Additionally, for certainstomers, we institute purchasing programs onmaterials such as OSB to align portions
of our procurement costs with our customer priciagmitments. We balance our lumber and OSB purshaik a mix of contract and spot
market purchases to ensure consistent quantitipsodiict necessary to fulfill customer contraaissaurce products at the lowest possible
cost, and to minimize our exposure to the volgtitit commodity lumber prices.

We currently source products from approximately08,8uppliers in order to reduce our dependencengisiagle company and to
maximize purchasing leverage. Although no matepalshases from any single supplier representee han 9% of our total materials
purchases in 2011, we believe we are one of tigesaicustomers for many suppliers, and therefore kignificant purchasing leverage. We
have found that using multiple suppliers ensursshble source of products and the best purchasingstas the suppliers compete to gain and
maintain our business.

We maintain strong relationships with our suppliersd we believe opportunities exist to improvecpasing terms in the future,
including inventory storage or “just-in-time” dediry to reduce our inventory carrying costs. We wadlhtinue to pursue additional
procurement cost savings and purchasing synerdiehwould further enhance our margins and cash.flo
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COMPETITION

Due to the continued decline in housing startshaxe and will continue to experience increased @titipn for homebuilder business.
Many of our competitors in the Pro Segment are gmédantly small, privately owned companies, inchglframing and shell construction
contractors, local and regional materials distdibsit single or multi-site lumberyards, and trussnfacturing and millwork operations. Most
of these companies have limited access to capithlack sophisticated information technology systemd large-scale procurement
capabilities. We believe we have substantial coitipetadvantages over these smaller competitorsawoerr long-standing customer
relationships, local market knowledge and competigiricing. Our largest competitors in our markatspf which are privately held, include
84 Lumber Co., Stock Building Supply and Pro-BiHdldings, Inc.

We compete in the Pro Segment of the U.S. resialamtiv construction building products supply markie focus on a distinctly
different target market than the home center mtmuch as The Home Depot and Lowe’s, who cuyrenitinarily serve do-it-yourself and
professional remodeling customers. By contrastcogtomers consist of professional homebuilderstiaose that provide construction
services to them, with whom we develop strong i@ghips. The principal methods of competitiontia Pro Segment are the developmel
long-term relationships with professional buildarsl retaining such customers by delivering a fadige of high-quality products on time and
offering trade credit, competitive pricing, flexiby in transaction processing, and integrated iserand product packages, such as turn-key
framing and shell construction, as well as prefaiad components and installation. Our leading stagksitions in the highly competitive
Pro Segment create economies of scale that allde csst-effectively supply our customers, whictihbenhances profitability and reduces
the risk of losing customers to competitors.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2011, we had approximately 2,48@ifue equivalent employees, none of whom wereesented by a union. We
believe that we have good relations with our emgésy

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS

Our primary enterprise resource planning (“ERP’teyn, which we use for operations representingcqupiately 98% of our sales, is a
proprietary system that has been highly customiimedur computer programmers. The system has besgrdel to operate our businesses in
a highly efficient manner. The materials requiredthousands of standard builder plans are stoydteébsystem for rapid quoting or order
entry. Hundreds of price lists are maintained @u#iands of SKUs, facilitating rapid price changea thanging product cost environment. A
customer’s order can be tracked at each stagesgifrtitess and billing can be customized to redurestmer’s administrative costs and
speed payment.

We have a single financial reporting system thatlieen highly customized for our business. Conatditifinancial, sales and workfo
reporting is integrated using Hyperion Businesslligence system, which aggregates data from ol &Rtems along with workforce
information from our thirdaarty payroll administrator. This technology platfoprovides management with robust corporate acatilon leve
performance management by leveraging standardistdas and analytics allowing us to plan, track esybrt performance and
compensation measures.

We have developed a proprietary program for ugeiimcomponent plants. This software reviews prodesigns for errors, schedules
the plants and provides the data used to measame gfficiency. In addition, we have purchased ssh@ftware products that have been
integrated with our primary ERP system. These @ograssist in analyzing blueprints to generate niahtists and in purchasing lumber
products at the lowest cost.
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SEASONALITY AND OTHER FACTORS

Ouir first and fourth quarters have historically thegnd are expected to continue to be, adverstdgtafl by weather patterns in some of
our markets, causing reduced construction actilfitaddition, quarterly results historically hawdlected, and are expected to continue to
reflect, fluctuations from period to period arisifigm the following:

e The volatility of lumber prices

* The cyclical nature of the homebuilding indus

* General economic conditions in the markets in whiehcompete
» The pricing policies of our competitol

» The production schedules of our customers;

» The effects of weathe

The composition and level of working capital typigahange during periods of increasing sales asavey more inventory and
receivables. Working capital levels typically inase in the second and third quarters of the yeataigher sales during the peak residential
construction season. These increases have in sheqzalted in negative operating cash flows dutig peak season, which historically have
been financed through available cash. Collectiorecéivables and reduction in inventory levelsdwihg the peak building and construction
season have in the past helped to partially offésthegative cash flow. We have also from timérn utilized our borrowing availability
under credit facilities to cover working capitakeads.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We are subject to the informational requirementhefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendetireaccordance therewith, we
file reports, proxy and information statements atieer information with the Securities and Excha@genmission (“SEC”). Our annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on FormQ@,Q:urrent reports on Form 8-K, proxy and informatstatements and other information
and amendments to those reports filed or furnigheduant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securiirchange Act of 1934 are available
through the investor relations section of our wighsnder the links to “SEC Filings.” Our Interneldaess is www.bldr.com. Reports are
available on our website free of charge as soarasonably practicable after we electronically tilem with, or furnish them to, the SEC. In
addition, our officers and directors file with tB&C initial statements of beneficial ownership atedements of change in beneficial
ownership of our securities, which are also avéglam our website at the same location. We arémtiiding this or any other information on
our website as a part of, nor incorporating it éference into, this Form 10-K or any of our othECSilings.

In addition to our website, you may read and coplylip reports we file with or furnish to the SECtla¢ SEC’s Public Reference Room
at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. Yoy pizain information on the operation of the PuBlieference Room by calling the SEC
at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Intertetisat contains our reports, proxy and informatitatements, and other information that
we electronically file with, or furnish to, the SEEEwww.sec.gov.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Floyd F. Sherman, Chief Executive Officer, Presidard Director, age 72Mr. Sherman has been our Chief Executive Officet a
director since 2001, when he joined the companyséteed as President of the company from 2001 Gatibber 2006 and from February
2008 to the present. Prior to joining the compdngyspent 28 years at Triangle Pacific/Armstrong#ig, the last nine of which he served as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Shermagtirrently a director of PGT, Inc. Mr. Sherman basr 40 years of experience in the
building products industry. A native of Kerhonksdfew York and a veteran of the U.S. Army, Mr. Shannis a graduate of the New York
State College of Forestry at Syracuse Universiyal$o holds an M.B.A. degree from Georgia Stativésgity.
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M. Chad Crow, Senior Vice President and Chief FriahOfficer, age 43.Mr. Crow joined the company in September 1999 as
Assistant Controller. He served as Vice Presidedortroller of the company from May 2000 and wasnpoted to Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer in November 2009. Priorjoining the company, Mr. Crow served in a varietyositions at Pier One Imports, most
recently as Director of Accounting. Mr. Crow alsastfive years of public accounting experience Witite Waterhouse LLP. Mr. Crow is a
C.P.A. and received his B.B.A. degree from TexashT@niversity.

Donald F. McAleenan, Senior Vice President and @Gr@ounsel, age 57Mr. McAleenan has served as Senior Vice Presidedt
General Counsel of the company since 1998. Primining the company, Mr. McAleenan served as \Reesident and Deputy General
Counsel of Fibreboard Corporation from 1992 to 1997 McAleenan was also Assistant General CouoBS&IT&E Corporation and spent
nine years as a securities lawyer at two New Ydtk [@w firms. Mr. McAleenan has a B.S. from Geden University and a J.D. from
New York University Law Schoo

Morris E. Tolly, Senior Vice President — Operatioage 68.Mr. Tolly has served as Senior Vice President —ei@pions of the
company since January 25, 2007. Mr. Tolly has leigmBuilders FirstSource since 1998 when the camecquired Pelican Companies,
Inc. (“Pelican”) and has over 40 years of experieincthe building products industry. He served myaiad of roles at Pelican, including
sales, Sales Manager and General Manager. Mr. Walfyan Area Vice President responsible for 12tioea at the time of Pelican’s
acquisition. In 2000, he was promoted to Presidétite company’s Southeast Group, with respongjtiitir 48 locations.

Frederick B. Schenkel, Vice President — Manufantyrage 62.Mr. Schenkel joined the company in 1998 when thagany acquired
Builders Supply and Lumber (“BSL") from Pulte Hor@erporation. He became Vice President of the compat999 and was promoted to
Vice President — Manufacturing in 2002. Mr. Schdrfias more than 30 years of experience managingfaeturing facilities in the
industry and, before joining BSL, held such posi$i@s manufacturing manager for The Ryland Graup, Vice President of Manufacturing
for Diversified Homes Corporation of Maryland, goidnt manager for Regional Building Systems, Inc. 8thenkel holds a B.A. in
accounting from Saint Bonaventure University.

Iltem 1A . Risk Factors

Risks associated with our business, an investrmeniiii securities, and with achieving the forwardkiong statements contained in this
report or in our news releases, websites, pubili@8, investor and analyst conferences or elsesyhieclude, but are not limited to, the risk
factors described below. Any of the risk factorsa#ed below could cause our actual results ferdihaterially from expectations and could
have a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition or operating results. We may nmicged in addressing these challenges anc
risks.

The industry in which we operate is dependent upothe homebuilding industry, the economy, the creditarkets, and other important
factors.

The building products industry is highly dependaminew home construction, which in turn is depehdeon a number of factors,
including interest rates, consumer confidence, egpént rates, foreclosure rates, housing inveriergls, and the health of the economy
mortgage markets. Unfavorable changes in demograptriedit markets, consumer confidence, housifugdebility, or housing inventory
levels, or a weakening of the national economyf@ny regional or local economy in which we operatauld adversely affect consumer
spending, result in decreased demand for homesadvetsely affect our business. Production of neméds may also decline because of
shortages of qualified tradesmen, reliance on igaaely capitalized homebuilders and simtractors, and shortages of material. In addi
the homebuilding industry is subject to variousalpstate, and federal statutes, ordinances, rafesregulations concerning zoning, building
design and safety, construction, energy consemvaitia similar matters, including regulations tmapose restrictive zoning and density
requirements in order to limit the number of hortiet can be built within the boundaries of a paitc area. Increased regulatory restrictions
could limit demand for new homes and could negtiaéect our sales and earnings. Because we hah&antial fixed costs, relatively
modest declines in our customers’ production legeldd have a significant adverse effect on ouarfizial condition, operating results and
cash flows.

The homebuilding industry has been undergoing @ifsignt and sustained downturn that began in nii&2 Challenging conditions
still persist as, according to the U.S. Census &wractual single family housing starts in the Wi&ing 2011 were the lowest since the
downturn began in 2006. We believe that the ongoiagket downturn is attributable to a variety aftéas including: a severe economic
recession, followed by an economic recovery thatlieen modest to date; high unemployment; limiteditavailability; excess home
inventories; a substantial reduction in speculatiome investment; and soft housing demand. The tlowin the homebuilding industry has
resulted in a substantial reduction in demand orpsoducts and services, which in turn had a fgmit adverse effect on our business and
operating results during fiscal years 2007 throRghl.
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In addition, beginning in 2007, the mortgage masletperienced substantial disruption due to ineagfaults, primarily as a result of
credit quality deterioration. The disruption hastiued to date and has resulted in a stricterlaggry environment and reduced availability
of mortgages for potential homebuyers due to & tigkdit market, substantial declines in housinggs, and stricter standards to qualify for
mortgages. Mortgage financing and commercial cifedismaller homebuilders continue to be consticire the housing industry is
dependent upon the economy and employment levelglhas potential homebuyers’ access to mortgagm€ing and homebuilders’ access
to commercial credit, it is likely that the housimglustry will not fully recover until conditionsithe economy and the credit markets
significantly improve and unemployment rates dexlin

We cannot predict the duration and magnitude ottlreent economic and market conditions, or théntinor strength of a future
recovery of housing activity in our markets, if altye also cannot provide any assurances that timelwilding industry will not weaken
further or that the operational strategies we hanygemented to address the current market conditiaiti be successful. Prolonged weakness
in the homebuilding industry would have a signifitadverse effect on our business, financial camdi&nd operating results.

In view of the current housing downturn, we may beequired to take additional impairment charges relaing to our operations or
temporarily idle or permanently close under-performing locations.

During 2010 and 2009, we recorded impairment cleaod&0.8 million and $0.5 million, respectively,dontinuing operations related
long-lived assets and land held for sale. If theaent weakness in the homebuilding industry corgmwve may need to take additional
goodwill and/or asset impairment charges relatingetrtain of our reporting units. Any such ncash charges would have an adverse effe
our financial results. In addition, in responséntdustry and market conditions, we may have to wawily idle or permanently close certain
facilities in under-performing markets, although knae/e no specific plans to close or idle additidaallities at this time. Any such facility
closures could have a significant adverse effeaiwrfinancial condition, operating results, andicéiows.

Our level of indebtedness could adversely affect oability to raise additional capital to fund our operations, limit our ability to react
to changes in the economy or our industry, and preant us from meeting our obligations under our debtnstruments.

As of December 31, 2011, our net funded debt, eketuthe unamortized debt discount, was approxiln&299.7 million, which
consisted of our $160.0 million first-lien term fodue in 2015 (“term loan”) and $139.7 million afrdSecond Priority Senior Secured
Floating Rate Notes due in 2016 (“2016 notes™jaddition, we have significant obligations under @ing operating leases that are not
reflected in our balance sheet.

As of December 31, 2011, all of our funded debt atea variable interest rate. If interest rates, riaur interest expense would increase.
LIBOR rates on our term loan are subject to a 28rfnd LIBOR rates on our 2016 notes are subpeat3% floor. Interest expense on these
debt instruments would not change unless LIBOReased to greater than 2%. Based on debt outstaadthgIBOR rates at December 31,
2011, a 1.0% increase in interest rates wouldesilt in any additional interest expense.

Our substantial debt could have important consecpgeto us, including:

* increasing our vulnerability to general economid ardustry conditions

* requiring a substantial portion of our cash flowedisn operations to be dedicated to the paymeptintipal and interest on our
indebtedness, therefore reducing our ability toawgecash flow to fund our operations, capital expigires, and future business
opportunities

e exposing us to the risk of increased interest rated corresponding increased interest expensaubeall of our borrowings are
variable rates of interes

« limiting our ability to obtain additional financinfgr working capital, capital expenditures, debwg® requirements, acquisitions,
and general corporate or other purposes;

» limiting our ability to adjust to changing marketrditions and placing us at a competitive disadagetcompared to our
competitors who may have less de

12



Table of Contents

In addition, some of our debt instruments, inclgdinose governing our term loan, our letter of ritility and our notes, contain
cross-default provisions that could result in oebtbeing declared immediately due and payablernmdember of debt instruments, even if
we default on only one debt instrument. In suchmevieis unlikely that we would be able to satisfyr obligations under all of such
accelerated indebtedness simultaneously.

Our financial condition and operating performaned that of our subsidiaries is also subject to gilsng economic and competitive
conditions and to certain financial, business, atiér factors beyond our control. There are norasses that we will maintain a level of
liquidity sufficient to permit us to pay the pripail, premium, and interest on our indebtedness.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insigffit to fund our debt service obligations, we rhayforced to reduce or delay capital
expenditures, sell assets, seek additional capitagstructure or refinance our indebtedness. & htsrnative measures may not be successfu
and may not permit us to meet our scheduled debicseobligations. In the absence of such operatisglts and resources, we could face
substantial liquidity problems and might be reqdite dispose of material assets or operations iff@nt to meet our debt service and other
obligations. The financing agreement governingtetn loan and the indenture governing our 2016s@strict our ability to dispose of
assets and to use the proceeds from such dispsiiide may not be able to consummate those digpusivr be able to obtain the proceeds
that we could realize from them, and these procesdsnot be adequate to meet any debt serviceatigits then due.

We may have future capital needs and may not be abto obtain additional financing on acceptable terrs.

Given the ongoing housing downturn, we are subisténteliant on cash on hand to provide workingital and fund our operations.
Our working capital requirements are likely to grasithe housing recovery occurs. However, we angdd in borrowing additional funds
under our term loan. Our inability to renew, amendeplace our term loan, our letter of credit figcior our 2016 notes when required or
when business conditions warrant, could have anmbhtalverse effect on our business, financial @ and results of operations.

Economic and credit market conditions, the perfaroeaof the homebuilding industry, and our finanp@tformance, as well as other
factors, may constrain our financing abilities. @bility to secure additional financing, if availaband to satisfy our financial obligations
under indebtedness outstanding from time to timledepend upon our future operating performance abailability of credit, economic
conditions, and financial, business, and othewofactmany of which are beyond our control. The gmgked continuation or worsening of the
current housing market and the macroeconomic dondithat affect our industry could require usdelsadditional capital and have a
material adverse effect on our ability to securghstapital on favorable terms, if at all.

We may be unable to secure additional financinfin@ncing on favorable terms or our operating démsli may be insufficient to satist
our financial obligations under indebtedness ontlitag from time to time, including our 2016 notear term loan and our letter of credit
facility. The agreements governing our term lo&e, letter of credit facility, and the indenture gaving the 2016 notes, moreover, restrict the
amount of permitted indebtedness allowed. In aolditif financing is not available when needed,soavailable on unfavorable terms, we may
be unable to take advantage of business opposranitirespond to competitive pressures, any oftwtnelld have a material adverse effec
our business, financial condition, and resultspdrations. If additional funds are raised throughissuance of additional equity or
convertible debt securities, our stockholders mayeeence significant dilution.

We may incur additional indebtedness.

We may incur additional indebtedness in the futineluding collateralized debt, subject to theniegbns contained in the financing
agreements governing our term loan, letter of tifadility, and the indenture governing our 2016aso If new debt is added to our current
debt levels, the related risks that we now facddouensify.
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Our debt instruments contain various covenants thatimit our ability to operate our business.

Our financing arrangements, including the financggeement governing our term loan, our letterredit facility, and the indenture
governing our 2016 notes, contain various provisithrat limit our ability to, among other things:

« transfer or sell assets, including the equity idés of our restricted subsidiaries, or use asdetgoceeds
* incur additional debt

e pay dividends or distributions on our capital stockepurchase our capital sto

* make certain restricted payments or investme

» create liens to secure de

» enter into transactions with affiliate

* merge or consolidate with another company or caetito receive the benefits of these financing gearents under a “change in
contro” scenario (as defined in those agreements)

e engage in unrelated business activit

We are subject to various financial covenants aisgbaur term loan. These include maintainingeast $35.0 million in qualified cash
at all times and a specified collateral value ahtheend of at least $160.0 million during the pdrimom March 2 through October 31 of each
year and $150.0 million during the balance of teary It is also a requirement that all lettersrefiit issued under our letter of credit facil
be collateralized by cash equal to 105% of the &ameunt of the letters of credit. Qualified cashefined as the amount of unrestricted cash
and cash equivalents held in deposit or secuadiiesunts which are subject to control agreemerf@vior of our lenders. Specified collateral
value is defined as the amount of qualified castuah time, plus accounts receivable and inventdrigh meet specified criteria within the
term loan agreement. At December 31, 2011, ourfigdatash was $146.6 million, our specified cdlal value was $296.3 million, and we
had $14.2 million of cash collateralizing our oateding letters of credit. Based on our forecastdwaot anticipate falling below the $35.0
million minimum qualified cash requirement or tleguired minimum specified collateral values in 2012

These covenants may restrict our ability to expamitilly pursue our business strategies. Our ghiititcomply with these and other
provisions of the agreements governing our term,loar letter of credit facility, and the indentgeverning our 2016 notes may be affected
by changes in our operating and financial perforteachanges in general business and economic mgliadverse regulatory
developments, a change in control or other evesysrd our control. The breach of any of these canem) including those contained in our
term loan, our letter of credit facility, and threlenture governing our 2016 notes, could resudtdiefault under our indebtedness, which ¢
cause those and other obligations to become dupayable. If any of our indebtedness is acceleratednay not be able to repay it.

We occupy most of our facilities under long-term no-cancelable leases. We may be unable to renew leasit the end of their terms. If
we close a facility, we are still obligated underte applicable lease.

Most of our facilities are located in leased prasaidMany of our current leases are non-cancelatuldygically have initial terms
ranging from 5 to 15 years and most provide optiongnew for specified periods of time. We beliévat leases we enter into in the future
will likely be long-term and nowancelable and have similar renewal options. Itiese or idle a facility, most likely we remain coritted to
perform our obligations under the applicable leadgch would include, among other things, paymdrhe base rent, insurance, taxes, and
other expenses on the leased property for the talafthe lease term. During the period from 200@ugh 2011, we closed or idled a nun
of facilities for which we remain liable on the $aobligations. Our obligation to continue makiegtal payments in respect of leases for
closed or idled facilities could have a materialerde effect on our business and results of opaistiAlternatively, at the end of the lease
term and any renewal period for a facility, we nb@yunable to renew the lease without substantiitiadal cost, if at all. If we are unable to
renew our facility leases, we may close or reloeafi&cility, which could subject us to constructemmd other costs and risks, which in turn
could have a material adverse effect on our busiagrd results of operations. For example, closifegitity, even during the time of
relocation, will reduce the sales that the facilityuld have contributed to our revenues. Additignahe revenue and profit, if any, generated
at a relocated facility may not equal the revermnat arofit generated at the existing one.
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We are a holding company and conduct all of our opations through our subsidiaries.

We are a holding company that derives all of owraping income from our subsidiaries. All of ousets are held by our direct and
indirect subsidiaries. We rely on the earnings eash flows of our subsidiaries, which are paidgdoy our subsidiaries in the form of
dividends and other payments or distributions, é&hour debt service obligations. The ability of subsidiaries to pay dividends or make
other payments or distributions to us will dependleeir respective operating results and may beictsd by, among other things, the laws of
their jurisdiction of organization (which may limthe amount of funds available for the paymentividénds and other distributions to us),
terms of existing and future indebtedness and a@berements of our subsidiaries, the term loanletier of credit facility, the terms of the
indenture governing our 2016 notes, and the cousradrany future outstanding indebtedness we osabsidiaries incur.

The building supply industry is cyclical and seasoal.

The building products supply industry is subjectyalical market pressures. Prices of building pieid are subject to fluctuations
arising from changes in supply and demand, natiandlinternational economic conditions, labor gastenpetition, market speculation,
government regulation, and trade policies, as agfrom periodic delays in the delivery of lumbedather products. For example, prices of
wood products, including lumber and panel produants,subject to significant volatility and directffect our sales and earnings. In partici
low market prices for wood products over a susthiperiod can adversely affect our financial cowditioperating results and cash flows, as
can excessive spikes in market prices. For thegmeaed December 31, 2011, average prices for luariefumber sheet goods were 5.9%
lower than the prior year. Our lumber and lumbezetiyoods product category represented 28.9%aifdales for the year ended
December 31, 2011. We have limited ability to cohtine timing and amount of pricing changes follding products. In addition, the supply
of building products fluctuates based on availabéufacturing capacity. A shortage of capacity>aess capacity in the industry can result
in significant increases or declines in marketgsitor those products, often within a short peabtime. Such price fluctuations can adver
affect our financial condition, operating resultglaash flows.

In addition, although weather patterns affect quarating results throughout the year, adverse wedilstorically has reduced
construction activity in the first and fourth querd in our markets. To the extent that hurricasegere storms, floods, other natural disasters
or similar events occur in the markets in whichaperate, our business may be adversely affectecant@pate that fluctuations from period
to period will continue in the future.

The loss of any of our significant customers couldffect our financial health.

Our 10 largest customers generated approximateB22and 23.8% of our sales for the years endedrbeee31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. We cannot guarantee that we will ta@&nor improve our relationships with these custosror that we will continue to supply
these customers at historical levels. Due to tmeeatihousing downturn, many of our homebuildetauners have substantially reduced
construction activity. Some homebuilder customergshexited or severely curtailed building activitycertain of our markets. This trend is
likely to continue until there is a housing recovier our markets. Continuation of the current hagsilownturn could have a significant
adverse effect on our financial condition, opergtiesults and cash flows.

In addition to these factors, production homebugdmd other customers may: (1) seek to purchase sbthe products that we
currently sell directly from manufacturers, (2)al&o establish their own building products mantidaog and distribution facilities, or
(3) give advantages to manufacturing or distributitermediaries in which they have an economikestin addition, continued consolidation
among production homebuilders could also resudt limss of some of our present customers to our etitaps. The loss of one or more of our
significant customers or deterioration in our rielas with any of them could significantly affectrdinancial condition, operating results and
cash flows. Furthermore, our customers are notiredjtio purchase any minimum amount of productmfts. The contracts into which we
have entered with most of our professional custsmggically provide that we supply particular praetiior services for a certain period of
time when and if ordered by the customer. Shoutdcastomers purchase our products in significaotlyer quantities than they have in the
past, such decreased purchases could have a rhatkmisse effect on our financial condition, opm@tresults, and cash flows.
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Our industry is highly fragmented and competitive,and increased competitive pressure may adverselyfatt our results.

The building products supply industry is highlygraented and competitive. We face significant coitipatfrom local and regional
building materials chains, as well as from privatelvned single site enterprises. Any of these cditgee may (1) foresee the course of
market development more accurately than we dojé€2¢lop products that are superior to our prodi8jshave the ability to produce or
supply similar products at a lower cost, (4) depedtronger relationships with local homebuilde®,adapt more quickly to new technologies
or evolving customer requirements than we do, ph&e access to financing on more favorable tehaiswe can obtain in the market. As a
result, we may not be able to compete successkullythem. In addition, home center retailers, vahti@ve historically concentrated their
sales efforts on retail consumers and small cotaracmay in the future intensify their marketirfpets to professional homebuilders.
Furthermore, certain product manufacturers selldisiibute their products directly to productioonfebuilders. The volume of such direct
sales could increase in the future. Additionallgmafacturers of products distributed by us maytetesell and distribute directly to
homebuilders in the future or enter into exclusiupplier arrangements with other distributors. @tidation of production homebuilders m
result in increased competition for their businégsally, we may not be able to maintain our ogagatosts or product prices at a level
sufficiently low for us to compete effectively.We are unable to compete effectively, our financaidition, operating results, and cash flc
may be adversely affected.

We are subject to competitive pricing pressure fromour customers.

Production homebuilders historically have exerigdificant pressure on their outside supplierseegkprices low because of their
market share and their ability to leverage suchketashare in the highly fragmented building prodwstipply industry. The current housing
industry downturn has resulted in significantlyriegsed pricing pressures from production homehbugilded other customers. These pricing
pressures may adversely affect our operating eanli cash flows. In addition, continued consalisiaamong production homebuilders, and
changes in production homebuildepsirchasing policies or payment practices, couldltés additional pricing pressure. Moreover, agsuli
of the housing downturn, several of our homebuitdestomers have defaulted on amounts owed to thewrpayable days have become
extended as a result of their financial conditi®ach payment failures or delays may significantlyeasely affect our financial condition,
operating results, and cash flows.

The ownership position of affiliates of JLL Partners Inc. and Warburg Pincus LLC limits other stockholers’ ability to influence
corporate matters.

JLL Partners Inc. (*JLL") and Warburg Pincus LLGNarburg Pincus”) together own in excess of 50%uwfautstanding common
stock. Four of our ten directors hold positionshwffiliates of either JLL or Warburg Pincus. Acdimgly, JLL and Warburg Pincus have
significant influence over our management and effand over all matters requiring stockholder apakdncluding the election of directors
and significant corporate transactions, such asmen or other sale of our company or its assétis. joncentrated ownership position limits
other stockholders’ ability to influence corporatatters and, as a result, we may take actionstme of our stockholders do not view as
beneficial. Additionally, JLL and Warburg Pincugan the business of making investments in comsasuiel may, from time to time, acquire
and hold interests in businesses that competetlgil@cindirectly with us. These entities may afmarsue, for their own accounts, acquisition
opportunities that may be complementary to ourrmss, and, as a result, those acquisition opptigamay not be available to us. Further,
certain provisions of our amended and restatedficateé of incorporation and amended and restaggavis may limit your ability to influenc
corporate matters, and, as a result, we may tal@adhat some of our stockholders do not viewerseficial.

Our continued success will depend on our ability toetain our key employees and to attract and retaimew qualified employees.

Our success depends in part on our ability tocttthare, train, and retain qualified managerigletional, sales, and marketing
personnel. We face significant competition for thggpes of employees in our industry and from othéustries. We may be unsuccessful in
attracting and retaining the personnel we requireonduct and expand our operations successfullgddlition, key personnel may leave us
and compete against us. Our success also depeadsgnificant extent on the continued servicewfsenior management team. We may be
unsuccessful in replacing key managers who eitg&gn or retire. The loss of any member of ouraemianagement team or other
experienced, senior employees could impair ouitghd execute our business plan, cause us todesemers and reduce our net sales, or
lead to employee morale problems and/or the losshar key employees. In any such event, our fiigdugondition, operating results, and
cash flows could be adversely affected.
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The nature of our business exposes us to producaliility, product warranty and other claims and other legal proceedings.

We are involved in product liability, product wamtg and other claims relating to the products waufiacture and distribute that, if
adversely determined, could adversely affect marftial condition, operating results, and cash $lowe rely on manufacturers and other
suppliers to provide us with many of the producessell and distribute. Because we do not have tdixaarol over the quality of such
products manufactured or supplied by such thirdypsuppliers, we are exposed to risks relatindeoguality of such products. In addition,
we are exposed to potential claims arising fromcireduct of homebuilders and their subcontracforsyhich we may be contractually
liable. Although we currently maintain what we legk to be suitable and adequate insurance in eg€ess self-insured amounts, there can
be no assurance that we will be able to maintadh snsurance on acceptable terms or that suchansarwill provide adequate protection
against potential liabilities. Product liabilityaiins can be expensive to defend and can divesttbation of management and other personnel
for significant periods, regardless of the ultimaticome. Claims of this nature could also havegative impact on customer confidence in
our products and our company. In addition, we avelved on an ongoing basis in other types of Ipgateedings. We cannot assure you that
any current or future claims will not adverselyeatfour financial condition, operating results, aadh flows.

Product shortages, loss of key suppliers, and ouregpendence on third-party suppliers and manufactures could affect our financial
health.

Our ability to offer a wide variety of productsdar customers is dependent upon our ability toinkadequate product supply from
manufacturers and other suppliers. Generally, conlycts are obtainable from various sources amdfficient quantities. However, the loss
of, or a substantial decrease in the availabilitypooducts from our suppliers or the loss of kapier arrangements could adversely impact
our financial condition, operating results, andhcisws.

Although in many instances we have agreementsauttsuppliers, these agreements are generallyriabi@ by either party on limited
notice. Failure by our suppliers to continue togyps with products on commercially reasonablentgror at all, could put pressure on our
operating margins or have a material adverse efiectur financial condition, operating results, @adh flows. Shorterm changes in the cc
of these materials, some of which are subjectgnificant fluctuations, are sometimes, but not gisvpassed on to our customers. Our del
ability to pass on material price increases toaustomers could adversely impact our financial @bt operating results, and cash flows.

A range of factors may make our quarterly revenuesnd earnings variable.

We have historically experienced, and in the futuilecontinue to experience, variability in revessiand earnings on a quarterly basis.
The factors expected to contribute to this varigbihclude, among others: (1) the volatility ofiqges of lumber, wood products and other
building products, (2) the cyclical nature of tteebuilding industry, (3) general economic condisian the various local markets in which
we compete, (4) the pricing policies of our comioesi, (5) the production schedules of our custoyeerd (6) the effects of the weather. Tk
factors, among others, make it difficult to projeat operating results on a consistent basis, wimiai affect the price of our stock.

We may be adversely affected by any disruption inwr information technology systems.

Our operations are dependent upon our informagohrtology systems, which encompass all of our ntajemess functions. Our
primary ERP system, which we use for operationsesgmting approximately 98% of our sales, is a petgry system that has been highly
customized by our computer programmers. Our cepdafinancial reporting system currently drawsadabm our ERP systems. We rely
upon such information technology systems to mamaglereplenish inventory, to fill and ship custoroeters on a timely basis, and to
coordinate our sales activities across all of dodpcts and services. A substantial disruptionuninformation technology systems for any
prolonged time period (arising from, for examplgstem capacity limits from unexpected increasesuinvolume of business, outages, or
delays in our service) could result in delays icereing inventory and supplies or filling custonmeders and adversely affect our customer
service and relationships. Our systems might beagdch or interrupted by natural or man-made evarlty computer viruses, physical or
electronic break-ins, or similar disruptions affegtthe global Internet. There can be no assurtiratesuch delays, problems, or costs will not
have a material adverse effect on our financiabldt@n, operating results and cash flows.
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We may be adversely affected by any natural or mamade disruptions to our distribution and manufacturing facilities.

We currently maintain a broad network of distribatand manufacturing facilities throughout the beut and eastern U.S. Any serious
disruption to our facilities resulting from fireaghquake, weather-related events, an act of tsmoor any other cause could damage a
significant portion of our inventory and could méély impair our ability to distribute our produscto customers. Moreover, we could incur
significantly higher costs and longer lead timesoasted with distributing our products to our omsérs during the time that it takes for us to
reopen or replace a damaged facility. In additary shortages of fuel or significant fuel cost @ases could seriously disrupt our ability to
distribute products to our customers. If any okthevents were to occur, our financial conditigrerating results, and cash flows could be
materially adversely affected.

We may be unable to successfully implement our grdtv strategy, which includes increasing sales of oyrefabricated components
and other value-added products, pursuing strategiacquisitions and opening new facilities.

Our long-term strategy depends in part on growingsales of prefabricated components and otheevatided products and increasing
our market share. If any of these initiatives avesuccessful, or require extensive investmentgoowth may be limited, and we may be
unable to achieve or maintain expected levels ofvft and profitability.

Our long-term business plan also provides for cargd growth through strategic acquisitions and miggrowth through the
construction of new facilities or the expansioregisting facilities. Failure to identify and acquisuitable acquisition candidates on
appropriate terms could have a material adversetedin our growth strategy. Moreover, our redugeetrating results during the ongoing
housing downturn, our liquidity position, or thetérements of our term loan, our letter of creditifity or the indenture governing our 2016
notes, could prevent us from obtaining the capéglired to effect new acquisitions or expansidrexgsting facilities. Our failure to make
successful acquisitions or to build or expand fiaed, including manufacturing facilities, produsaeable product, or meet customer demand
in a timely manner could result in damage to os loscustomer relationships, which could adversé#fgct our financial condition, operating
results, and cash flows. In addition, although weehbeen successful in the past in integratingcguiaitions, we may not be able to integrate
the operations of future acquired businesses wittown in an efficient and cost-effective mannewithout significant disruption to our
existing operations. Acquisitions, moreover, invobignificant risks and uncertainties, includingentainties as to the future financial
performance of the acquired business, difficulieegrating acquired personnel and corporate cedtimto our business, the potential loss of
key employees, customers or suppliers, difficulietegrating different computer and accountiggtems, exposure to unforeseen liabilities
of acquired companies, and the diversion of managemttention and resources from existing operatigvie may be unable to successfully
complete potential acquisitions due to multipletdas, such as issues related to regulatory revigdveoproposed transactions. We may als
required to incur additional debt in order to cansuate acquisitions in the future, which debt magiestantial and may limit our flexibility
in using our cash flow from operations. Our failtwentegrate future acquired businesses effegtiveto manage other consequences of our
acquisitions, including increased indebtednesddcarevent us from remaining competitive and, u#ttely, could adversely affect our
financial condition, operating results, and casiw8.

Federal, state, local and other regulations couldriipose substantial costs and/or restrictions on owperations that would reduce our
net income.

We are subject to various federal, state, local,@her regulations, including, among other thimggulations promulgated by the
Department of Transportation and applicable toflaat of delivery trucks, work safety regulatiomr®mulgated by the Department of Labor’s
Occupational Safety and Health Administration, esgpient regulations promulgated by the United Statpsal Employment Opportunity
Commission, accounting standards issued by thenEiabAccounting Standards Board or similar enditiend state and local zoning
restrictions and building codes. More burdensomeletory requirements in these or other areas mengase our general and administrative
costs and adversely affect our financial conditmperating results, and cash flows. Moreover, failo comply with the regulatory
requirements applicable to our business could expedo substantial penalties that could adveis#gt our financial condition, operating
results and cash flows.

We are subject to potential exposure to environmeat liabilities and are subject to environmental reglation.

We are subject to various federal, state, and lecaironmental laws, ordinances, and regulatiofithotigh we believe that our faciliti
are in material compliance with such laws, ordir@nd regulations, as owners and lessees qingagrty, we can be held liable for the
investigation or remediation of contamination ontsproperties, in some circumstances, without egawhether we knew of or were
responsible for such contamination. No assurancéegrovided that remediation may not be requiimdtie future as a result of spills or
releases of petroleum products or hazardous sudestathe discovery of unknown environmental coad&j more stringent standards
regarding existing residual contamination, or clemig legislation, laws, rules or regulations. Mboedensome environmental regulatory
requirements may increase our general and adnatisrcosts and adversely affect our financial émg, operating results, and cash flows.
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We may be adversely affected by uncertainty in theconomy and financial markets, including as a resubf terrorism or unrest in the
Middle East or elsewhere.

Instability in the economy and financial marketssluding as a result of terrorism or unrest intiddle East or elsewhere, may resu
a decrease in housing starts, which would adveedédgt our business. In addition, such unresetated adverse developments, including a
retaliatory military strike or terrorist attack, yneause unpredictable or unfavorable economic ¢mmdi and could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition, operating resuind cash flows. Any shortages of fuel or sigaifit fuel cost increases related to
geopolitical conditions could seriously disrupt aiility to distribute products to our customersatdition, domestic terrorist attacks may
affect our ability to keep our operations and sasifunctioning properly and could have a matexaerse effect on our financial condition,
operating results, and cash flows.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

We have a broad network of distribution and manuf@eg facilities in 9 states throughout the southend eastern U.S. We have 51
distribution facilities and 44 manufacturing fatiéds, many of which are co-located in the followmarkets:

Alabama Maryland/Virginia South Carolina

Auburn Baltimore/Washingtol Senec:

Central Alabam: Northeast Marylani Charlestor
Columbia

Florida North Carolina Florence

Bunnell Charlotte Grand Strani

Emerald Coas Fayetteville Greenville

Jacksonville High Point Southeast South Carolil

Orlando Raleigh

South Floride Washingtor Tennesset

Tampa Western North Carolin Eastern Tenness:

Wilmington Knoxville

Georgia Nashville

Atlanta

Central Georgii Texas

Northern Georgii Dallas/Fort Wortt
San Antonic

Distribution centers typically include 15 to 25 esiof outside storage, a 60,000 square foot wasehdid,000 square feet of office
space, and 30,000 square feet of covered stor&geodtside area provides space for lumber storage ataging area for delivery while the
warehouse stores millwork, windows and doors. TikFidution centers are usually located in indadtireas with low cost real estate and
easy access to freeways to maximize distributifiniefcy and convenience. A majority of the disttion centers are situated on rail lines for
efficient receipt of goods.

Our manufacturing facilities produce trusses, \paliels, engineered wood, stairs, windows, pre-ligogs and custom millwork. In
many cases, they are located on the same prensises distribution facilities. Truss and panel mfaturing facilities vary in size from
30,000 square feet to 60,000 square feet withl®tacres of outside storage for lumber and fosfiad goods. Our window manufacturing
facility in Houston, Texas has approximately 200,8quare feet.

We lease 49 facilities and own 19 facilities. Thieseses typically have an initial operating leasentof 5 to 15 years and most provide
options to renew for specified periods of time. Ajarity of our leases provide for fixed annual edst Certain of our leases include
provisions for escalating rent, as an example,dasechanges in the consumer price index. Most®fdases require us to pay taxes,
insurance and common area maintenance expensesadsgdavith the properties.

We operate a fleet of approximately 910 truckseliver products from our distribution and manufaictg centers to job sites. Through
our emphasis on local market flexibility and stgatally placed locations, we minimize shipping dredght costs while
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maintaining a high degree of local market experfl$gough knowledge of local homebuilder needstaasr coordination and rapid
restocking ability, we reduce working capital regaients and guard against out-of-stock productsb®lieve that this reliability is highly
valued by our customers and reinforces customatioekhips.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various claims and lawsuitsdecital to the conduct of our business in the orglicaurse. We carry insurance
coverage in such amounts in excess of our self@&ustetention as we believe to be reasonable uhdarircumstances and that may or may
not cover any or all of our liabilities in resp@dtclaims and lawsuits. We do not believe thatuhienate resolution of these matters will have
a material adverse effect on our consolidated firposition, cash flows or operating results.

Although our business and facilities are subjedetteral, state and local environmental regulativironmental regulation does not
have a material effect on our operations. We beliat our facilities are in material compliancéhsuch laws and regulations. As owners
and lessees of real property, we can be held Ifabldhe investigation or remediation of contamioaton such properties, in some
circumstances without regard to whether we knewarafere responsible for such contamination. Ourenurexpenditures with respect to
environmental investigation and remediation atfaailities are minimal, although no assurance capiovided that more significant
remediation may not be required in the future essalt of spills or releases of petroleum prodectsazardous substances or the discovery of
unknown environmental conditions, or changes itislation, laws, rules or regulations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related $tdholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity 8dtes

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Stock Math C under the symbol “BLDR”. On February 29, 201he closing price of
our common stock as reported on the NASDAQ StockkietaLC was $3.06. The approximate number of stotiters of record of our
common stock on that date was 106, although wethat the number of beneficial owners of our mmm stock is substantially greater.

The table below sets forth the high and low satesep of our common stock for the periods indicated

High Low

2011

First quarte| $2.9¢ $1.9C
Second quarte $3.3¢ $2.0C
Third quartel $2.5¢ $1.2¢
Fourth quarte $2.0¢€ $1.01
2010

First quartel $4.07 $2.81
Second quarte $4.3(C $2.3¢
Third quartel $2.7¢ $1.9C
Fourth quarte $2.3¢ $1.45

We have not paid regular dividends in the past. ftyre determination relating to dividend policyliilee made at the discretion of our
board of directors and will depend on a numbemofdrs, including restrictions in our debt instrumse as well as our future earnings, capital
requirements, financial condition, prospects armtofactors that our board of directors may dedevemt. The terms of our term loan
agreement and the indenture governing our 2016 mabeently restrict our ability to pay dividen@ee “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems — Liquidity and Capital Resources” contaiimettem 7 of this annual report on
Form 10-K.
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The following graph and table demonstrate the perémce of the cumulative total return to the stadéters of our common stock
during the five year period in comparison to thenalative total returns of the Russell 2000 indée, &P Building Products index and the
S&P 600 Building Products index. The graph andeatzck the performance of a $100 investment incoammon stock and in each of the
indexes (with the reinvestment of all dividende)nfr December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2011. In 20&1Included the S&P 600 Building
Products index in our graph and table. This ingéhich is composed of multiple suppliers in the hboikling industry that are similar to us
in size and operations, provides a more comprebemsimparison of cumulative total returns in relatio our stock.

COMPARISON OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

Amaong Builders FirstSource, Inc., the Russell 2000 Index, the S&F Building Products Index,
and S&P 600 Building Products Index

$120
$100
80
$60
$40
$20
$n i i i
12106 12107 12/08 121049 12140 1211
—HB—Builders FirstSource, Inc. — 2 — Russell 2000
= =« - 5&P Building Products —#—5%5&P 600 Building Products
Year Ended December 31,
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Builders FirstSource, Inc. $100.0C $ 40.4¢ $ 85 $21.5¢ $11.08 $ 11.4¢
Russell 200( $100.0C $ 98.4: $65.1¢ $82.8¢ $105.1¢ $100.7¢
S&P Building Product $100.0C $100.9¢ $59.77 $77.601 $ 72.8¢8 $ 61.9¢
S&P 600 Building Product $100.0C $ 87.11 $70.6C $83.8¢ $97.6c $ 94.1C

22



Table of Contents

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial datathe years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 an® 20@ as of December 31, 2011
and 2010 were derived from our consolidated finalnstiatements that have been audited by Pricewaisei€oopers LLP, independent
registered public accounting firm, and are includedtem 8 of this annual report on Form 10-K. &elg consolidated financial data as of
December 31, 2009 and as of and for the years dbdeember 31, 2008 and 2007 were derived from onsalidated financial statements
that have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopéd®s lulit are not included herein.

The following data should be read in conjunctiottmviManagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Finah€ondition and Results of
Operations” contained in Item 7 of this annual repa Form 10-K and with our consolidated finanatdtements and related notes included
as Item 8 of this annual report on Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Statement of operations data

Sales $779,09: $700,34: $677,88¢ $992,01: $1,468,42
Gross margir 157,94! 131,75t 142,40t 215,54: 363,16:
Selling, general and administrative exper 192,95¢ 194,09: 201,40: 280,01( 341,94:
Asset impairment — 83¢ 47C 46,94¢ 35C
Facility closure cost 2,461 55¢ 1,20( 1,192 101
Loss from continuing operations( (64,637 (94,297 (56,889 (120,58 (2,607)
Loss from continuing operations per sh— basic and diluted(z $ (068 $ (109 $ (14 $ (310 ¢ (0.09)
Balance sheet data (end of period

Cash and cash equivalel $146,83. $103,23: $ 84,09¢ $106,89: $ 97,57«
Total asset 488,80: 412,80: 434,95: 521,14( 647,42:
Total debt (including current portio 297,50¢ 169,10: 299,18: 319,22¢ 279,26t
Stockholder equity 101,22: 159,50! 46,94" 102,47: 241,54
Other financial date

Depreciation and amortization (excluding discongithwperations $ 14,04. $ 1543 $ 17,91 $ 20,83 $ 22,44,

(1) Loss from continuing operations included a a#ibn allowance of $26.1 million, $35.4 million, $3illion and $31.6 million against
primarily all of our deferred tax assets for thangeended December 31, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 28@Bseussed in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements included in I&of this annual report on Form-K.

(2) For the years ended December 31, 2009, 20@82@@7, loss from continuing operations per shasasic and diluted—reflects an
increase to the number of weighted average comimares by an adjustment factor of 1.09 relatededtinus element created in
connection with our common stock rights offeringlanuary 2010. See Note 2 to the consolidateddiabstatements included in Iten
of this annual report on Form-K.
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Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financi@bndition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations should be read in catijom with the selected financial
data and the consolidated financial statementselated notes contained in Item 6. Selected Fimhiata and Item 8. Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data of this annual report omFd-K, respectively. See “Risk Factorgdntained in Item 1A. Risk Factors of this ani
report on Form 10-K and “Cautionary Statement” egred in Item 1. Business of this annual reporfForm 10-K for a discussion of the
uncertainties, risks and assumptions associatdtthdise statements.

OVERVIEW

We are a leading supplier and manufacturer of siratand related building products for residemtiadv construction in the U.S. We
offer an integrated solution to our customers mimg manufacturing, supply and installation of & fange of structural and related building
products. Our manufactured products include ounfgebuilt roof and floor trusses, wall panels astdirs, aluminum and vinyl windows,
custom millwork and trim, as well as engineered @vtitat we design and cut for each home. We alssndsle interior and exterior doors into
pre-hung units. Additionally, we supply our customeith a broad offering of professional grade dinig) products not manufactured by us,
such as dimensional lumber and lumber sheet goadsus window, door and millwork lines, as wellabinets, roofing and gypsum
wallboard. Our full range of construction-relatemsces includes professional installation, tury-kaming and shell construction, and spans
all our product categories.

We group our building products into five producteggories:

» Prefabricated ComponentOur prefabricated components consist of wood feat roof trusses, steel roof trusses, wall panels,
stairs, and engineered woc

e Windows & DoorsOur windows & doors category is comprised of thenofacturing, assembly, and distribution of windcavsl
the assembly and distribution of interior and extedoor units.

* Lumber & Lumber Sheet GooLumber & lumber sheet goods include dimensionaldeamplywood, and OSB products used in
on-site house framing

* Millwork. Millwork includes interior trim, exterior trim, camns and posts that we distribute, as well as ousiderior features
that we manufacture under the Synbc® brand name

e Other Building Products & Service®ther building products & services are comprisegroflucts such as cabinets, gypsum,
roofing and insulation and services such as tugnfi@ming, shell construction, design assistannd,@ofessional installation
spanning all of our product categori

Our operating results are dependent on the follgwiends, events and uncertainties, some of whielb@yond our control:

e Homebuilding IndustryOur business is driven primarily by the residentiav construction market, which is in turn dependen
upon a number of factors, including demographindse interest rates, consumer confidence, employrags, foreclosure rates,
and the health of the economy and mortgage mam®etsy. the past few years, many homebuilders siganitly decreased their
starts because of lower demand and an excess &f mwentory. Due to the decline in housing stamnts imcreased competition for
homebuilder business, we have and will continuexizerience pressure on our gross margins. Singlgyfiousing starts in 2011
were the lowest since the downturn began in 20@8vé¥er, industry forecasters expect to see someoement over the next
few years. We also still believe there are sevadningful trends that indicate U.S. housing denwifidikely recover in the lon
term and that the current downturn in the housmtystry is likely a trough in the cyclical naturfetioe residential construction
industry. These trends include relatively low ietdrrates, the aging of housing stock, and norm@lifation growth due to
immigration and birthrate exceeding death r

» Targeting Large Production Homebuildef3ver the past ten years, the homebuilding industs/undergone consolidation, and
the larger homebuilders have increased their matiate. We expect that trend to continue due tbéhier liquidity and land
positions of the larger homebuilders relative t® $maller, less capitalized homebuilders. Our féswn maintaining relationships
and market share with these customers while balgrtbie competitive pressures we are facing in cankets with certain
profitability expectations. Our sales to the “BeitdL00,” the country’s largest 100 homebuildersréased 9.9% during 2011,
despite a 8.6% decrease in actual U.S. s-family housing starts for the year. We expect thatability to
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maintain strong relationships with the largestdberis will be vital to our ability to grow and exmhimto new markets as well as
maintain our current market share through the otigtewnturn. Additionally, during this downturn, wave been successful in
expanding our custom homebuilder base while maiirtgiacceptable credit standar

e Expand into Mul-Family and Light Commercial Busine&§e continue to look for ways to expand our multifly and light
commercial business to further diversify our custoivase and lessen our dependence on single-feasiljential new
construction

» Use of Prefabricated Componeniior to the current housing downturn, homebuildegse increasingly using prefabricated
components in order to realize increased efficiearay improved quality. Shortening cycle time fra@rsto completion was a key
imperative of the homebuilders during periods ofrsy consumer demand. With the current housing dannthat trend
decelerated as cycle time had less relevance. @essowvho traditionally used prefabricated composieior the most part, still di
However, the conversion of customers to this prodffering has slowed. We expect this trend to i at least for the duration
of this downturn. In response, we have reducedmanufacturing capacity and delayed plans to openfaeilities.

» Economic ConditionsEconomic changes both nationally and locally in markets impact our financial performance. Theding
products supply industry is highly dependent upew home construction and subject to cyclical macketinges. Our operations
are subject to fluctuations arising from changestipply and demand, national and local economiditions, labor costs,
competition, government regulation, trade poli@ad other factors that affect the homebuilding sidusuch as demographic
trends, interest rates, single-family housing stanployment levels, consumer confidence, anavhdability of credit to
homebuilders, contractors, and homeowners. Ovepdbefew years, the mortgage markets have expedesubstantial disruptic
due to increased defaults. This resulted in atstriegulatory environment and reduced availabditynortgages for potential
homebuyers due to an illiquid credit market antiteg standards to qualify for mortgages. Mortgagarfcing and commercial
credit for smaller homebuilders continue to be selyeconstrained. As the housing industry is depahdpon the economy and
employment levels as well as potential homebuyesess to mortgage financing and homebuilderséss to commercial credit
is likely that the housing industry will not sigiziéintly improve until conditions in the economy &hd credit markets improve a
unemployment rates declir

» Cost of MaterialsPrices of wood products, which are subject to catlmarket fluctuations, may adversely impact otega
income when prices rapidly rise or fall within datésely short period of time. We purchase certa@terials, including lumber
products, which are then sold to customers asagelised as direct production inputs for our manufad and prefabricated
products. Short-term changes in the cost of themtenals, some of which are subject to signifidarttuations, are sometimes
passed on to our customers, but our pricing quartaieriods may limit our ability to pass on suclke@ichanges. We may also be
limited in our ability to pass on increases on guhd freight costs on our products due to the mfdeel. Our inability to pass on
material price increases to our customers coule@@ay impact our operating resu

« Controlling ExpensedAnother important aspect of our strategy is colitrglcosts and enhancing our status as a low-agktibg
materials supplier in the markets we serve. Weghage attention to managing our working capital apdrating expenses. We
have a “best practices” operating philosophy, wignbourages increasing efficiency, lowering cdstproving working capital,
and maximizing profitability and cash flow. We ctargtly analyze our workforce productivity to acheethe optimum, cost-
efficient labor mix for our facilities. Further, wray careful attention to our logistics functiordats effect on our shipping and
handling costs
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CURRENT OPERATING CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

The homebuilding industry continues to be challaggis U.S. single-family housing starts in 2011entée lowest since the downturn
began in 2006. According to the U.S. Census Buraetual U.S. single-family housing starts for 2@ldre 430,700, down 8.6% compared to
2010. The housing industry continues to struggke tduthe limited availability of credit to smalleomebuilders and potential homebuyers, a
slow economic recovery, excess home inventory agid tinemployment rates, among other factors. Howeatual U.S. single-family
housing starts for the fourth quarter of 2011 wi3@,100, a 4.7% increase from the fourth quart@0df. The National Association of
Homebuilders (“NAHB”) is forecasting 499,000 U.shgle-family housing starts for 2012, which is acrease of 15.9% from 2011.

We achieved an 11.2% increase in sales during 288Xbmpared to the prior year. We believe our boseding of building products
and construction services represents a value pitapoto our customers that is superior to thabaf competitors. We believe this allowed us
to increase our sales volume despite a signifidanline in construction activity during the yeahi§increased sales volume was achieved
through the growth of sales to existing customarstae addition of new customers. We were also tabiecrease our gross margin
percentage by 1.5 percentage points during 201paoed to 2010, primarily due to increased salesmaeland our ability to leverage fixed
costs within costs of goods sold. We have contirtoadanage our operating expenses during the downmtith a key focus on conserving
liquidity. Our selling, general, and administrategpenses remained relatively flat when compardbdgrior year despite our increase in
sales. We have made significant changes to ounéssiduring the downturn that have improved ouraijyey efficiency and allowed us to
better leverage our operating costs against changsedes.

While many forecasters believe there may only bderate improvement in housing in the near-termstil believe the long-term
outlook for the housing industry is positive duggtowth in the underlying demographics. Regardiéshe rate of recovery in housing, we
feel we are well-positioned to take advantage gf@mstruction activity in our markets and continoéncrease our market share. We will
continue to focus on working capital by closely mtoring the credit exposure of our customers anevbyking with our vendors to improve
our payment terms and pricing on our products. Wealgo continue to work diligently to achieve tappropriate balance of short-term cost
reductions while maintaining the expertise to gtbe business when market conditions improve. Wet Wwaoreate long-term shareholder
value and avoid taking steps that will limit outilép to compete.

SEASONALITY AND OTHER FACTORS

Our first and fourth quarters have historically thegnd are expected to continue to be, adverstdgtafl by weather patterns in some of
our markets, causing reduced construction actilfitiaddition, quarterly results historically hawdlected, and are expected to continue to
reflect, fluctuations from period to period arisifigm the following:

e The volatility of lumber prices

* The cyclical nature of the homebuilding indus

* General economic conditions in the markets in wihvehcompete

» The pricing policies of our competitol

» The production schedules of our customers;

* The effects of weathe

The composition and level of working capital typigahange during periods of increasing sales asavey more inventory and

receivables. Working capital levels typically inase in the second and third quarters of the yeataigher sales during the peak residential
construction season. These increases have in shegzalted in negative operating cash flows dutig peak season, which historically have
been financed through available cash. Collectioreoéivables and reduction in inventory levelsdwiihg the peak building and construction

season have in the past positively impacted cash Ve have also from time to time utilized oureaving availability under credit facilities
to cover working capital needs.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth the percentage iahethip to sales of certain costs, expenses amanadtems for the years ended
December 31:

2011 2010 2009

Sales 100.0% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 79.71% 81.2% 79.(%
Gross margir 20.2% 18.8% 21.(%
Selling, general and administrative exper 24.8% 27.1% 29.71%
Asset impairment 0.C% 0.1% 0.1%
Facility closure cost 0.2% 0.1% 0.1%
Loss from operation (4.8% (9.2)% (8.9%
Interest expense, n 3.2% 4.5% 4.C%
Income tax expense (benel 0.2% (0.2)% (4.9%
Loss from continuing operatiol (8.9% (13.9% (8.4%
Loss from discontinued operations, net of (0.0% (0.2)% (0.1%
Net loss (8.9% (13.6)% (9.9)%

2011 Compared with 2010

SalesSales for the year ended December 31, 2011 wer@ BTillion, an 11.2% increase from sales of $700ilon for 2010. We
achieved this increase in sales despite an 8.6%ndee U.S. singldamily housing starts through our ability to incseanarket share with o
existing customers and by adding a significant nemah new customers. We estimate our sales volaereased approximately 12% during
2011, which was partially offset by commodity prieflation.

The following table shows sales classified by majaduct category (dollars in millions):

2011 2010
Sales % of Sales Sales % of Sales % Change

Prefabricated components $147.€ 18.€%  $135:t 19.2% 9.C%
Windows & doors 183.0 23.5% 161.1 23.(% 13.8%
Lumber & lumber sheet goo 225.( 28.9% 201. 28.8% 11.7%
Millwork 81.¢ 10.5% 75.€ 10.8% 7.€%
Other building products & servici 141.€ 18.2% 126.5 18.1% 11.€%
Total sales $779.1 100.%  $700.: 100.(% 11.2%

Increased sales volume was achieved across alligrodtegories. Sales of our windows and doorgasad $22.2 million, which was
primarily attributable to an increase in our saltassembled and distributed vinyl and aluminumdaein products. For the lumber and lum
sheet goods category, unit volume increases obappately $27.8 million were the main driver of tinerease, partially offset by
approximately $4.2 million in lower customer prigirSales of other building products & serviceséased approximately $15.1 million due
largely to increased sales in roofing, hardwareiasthllation services.

Gross Margin.Gross margin increased $26.2 million to $157.9iamill Our gross margin percentage increased fro@248n 2010 to
20.3% in 2011, a 1.5 percentage point increase giss margin percentage increased by 0.9 peraeptzgts due to increased sales volume
and our ability to leverage fixed costs in cosgobds sold. The remaining increase in our grosgimaercentage was primarily due to
improved customer pricing, coupled with less vditstin the commodity markets during the currenage

Selling, General and Administrative Expenssslling, general and administrative expenses dsete®l1.1 million, or 0.6%. Our salaries
and benefits expense, excluding stock compensakpanse, was $110.5 million for 2011, a declin820 million from 2010, as we focused
on controlling operating costs. Our office genenadl administrative expense increased $1.1 milpoimarily due to the benefit of the $1.2
million litigation settlement we received in 20Mhile delivery expenses were relatively flat inaipfuel costs increased due to higher prices
and increased sales volume but were offset by lewkicle and equipment lease expense.

As a percent of sales, selling, general and adimitiige expenses, excluding stock compensationresgoand the benefit of the litigati
settlement recorded in 2010, decreased from 27032010 to 24.2% in 2011. Salaries and benefitsesgyeexcluding stock compensation
expense, as a percentage of sales decreased 1d98élavery costs as a percentage of sales decrégse2@%. Our office general and
administrative expense, excluding the litigatiotilsment recorded in 2010, as a percentage of dele®eased 0.3% and occupancy decreasec
by 0.2% due to the fixed nature of the category.
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Interest Expense, ndhterest expense was $24.9 million in 2011, a dezef $6.7 million. The decrease was primarily duiie write-
off of $1.6 million of unamortized debt issuancetsorelated to long-term debt repaid in 2010, $2ilbon of costs incurred related to our
recapitalization transaction in 2010, and the woiieof $0.6 million in debt issuance costs relatedhe capacity reduction of our revolving
credit facility in 2010. In addition, interest exys® related to our interest rate swaps, which esuring the current year, decreased $4.3
million from 2010. These decreases were partidfised by $1.5 million of interest expense on ountdoan agreement entered into in
December 2011 and $0.7 million of fair value adjueshts on the warrants issued as part of the team lo

Income Tax Expense (Benefilje recorded income tax expense of $2.2 millionrdp@011 compared to an income tax benefit of $1.1
million during 2010. We recorded an after-tax, mash valuation allowance of $26.1 million and $3Billion related to our net deferred tax
assets for 2011 and 2010, respectively. Absenwdiigtion allowance, our effective tax rate woki#le been 38.3% for both 2011 and 2010.

2010 Compared with 2009

In 2010 we experienced extreme volatility in thenoaodity markets, especially during the first hdl610, resulting in a 28.1%
increase in average market prices on our lumbeiflanter sheet goods when compared to 2009. Siaghéhyf housing starts in our markets
increased approximately 6.5%, while single-famiytsi under construction in our markets decreasedoxpmately 6.2% from 2009.

SalesSales for the year ended December 31, 2010 wei@ $ndillion, a 3.3% increase from sales of $677ifion for 2009. The
increase in our sales was primarily due to thecedfef commodity inflation partially resulting frodemand created by the federal tax credit
for first-time homebuyers, which expired in thesfihalf of 2010. As the housing industry continbedtruggle during 2010, we maintained
our tightened credit policies in order to avoidit@kany unnecessary credit risks. While these gigbtedit standards may have reduced our
growth potential, they were designed to limit omp@sure to large write-offs of uncollectible recaie balances in the future. We do,
however, believe that we were able to slightly @ase share with our Builder 100 customers.

The following table shows sales classified by majaduct category (dollars in millions):

2010 2009
Sales % of Sales Sales % of Sales % Change
Prefabricated components $135.5 19.3%  $129.¢ 19.1% 4.4%
Windows & doors 161.] 23.(% 164.C 24.2% (1.89%
Lumber & lumber sheet goo 201.¢ 28.8% 164.¢ 24.2% 22.8%
Millwork 75.¢ 10.8% 72.¢ 10.7% 4.2%
Other building products & servici 126.5 18.1% 146.7 21.1% (13.%
Total sales $700.: 100.(%  $677.¢ 100.(% 3.2%

Our sales increase was due primarily to an increapece, partially offset by a slight decreasevadume. For the lumber and lumber
sheet goods category, price accounted for apprd&ign85% of our sales increase in this productgate while unit volume accounted for
5% of the increase. This equates to $35.1 millioch 1.7 million in sales increases due to priceasldme, respectively, within this product
category.

Our sales mix shifted away from other building prod and services during the year. This categongwincludes labor revenue on
installed services, declined as a percentage e$ saitgely due to 28% commodity inflation during frear and a decrease in multi-family
construction, which was down approximately 53%.

Gross MarginGross margin decreased $10.7 million to $131.8onillOur gross margin percentage decreased fro@%2ih 2009 to
18.8% in 2010, a 2.2 percentage point decline.gdass margin percentage decreased by 2.6 percemags due to price, due to the
negative impact of the commaodity price volatilises during the first half of 2010, along with vegmpetitive pricing conditions. Our gross
margin percentage increased 0.3 percentage paisttodzolume and our ability to leverage fixed sdetcost of goods sold and 0.1
percentage points due to a shift in sales mix.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expensgalling, general and administrative expenses deett$7.3 million, or 3.6%. Our office
general and administrative expense decreased $igpprimarily due to a $1.0 million decreasedapreciation expense, a $1.2 million
litigation settlement we received in 2010, as wsli$3.2 million of recapitalization costs we inewarin 2009. Additionally, bad debt expense
decreased $1.9 million due to tightened creditdseats.

As a percent of sales, selling, general and adiréitiige expenses decreased from 29.7% in 2009.#92 2010. Our office general
and administrative expense as a percentage ofdadesased 0.9%, delivery costs decreased by @&%apancy decreased by 0.3% due t
fixed nature of the category and bad debt expeaseedsed by 0.3%.

Interest Expense, ndhterest expense was $31.7 million in 2010, andase of $4.6 million. The increase was primarilg tuhigher
interest rates on our 2016 notes issued in JarBgdry, combined with the write-off of $1.6 millioi ehamortized debt issuance costs related
to long-term debt repaid, $2.5 million of costsuimed related to our recapitalization transactand the write-off of $0.6 million in debt
issuance costs related to the reduction of ourlveng credit facility from $250 million to $150 nfibn in 2010. These increases were partially
offset by lower average debt balances and a wfitef&1.2 million in debt issue costs and $1.6lioil of expense related to the settlement of
one of our swaps in 2009.

Income Tax (Benefit) Expense recorded an income tax benefit of $1.1 milliamidg 2010 compared to a benefit of $30.8 million
during 2009. Our benefit was reduced by an afterrtan-cash valuation allowance of $35.4 milliord 3.9 million related to our net
deferred tax assets for 2010 and 2009, respectieB009, we recognized a $2.1 million income liaxefit in continuing operations related
to losses generated by our discontinued operatinago recently enacted tax legislation that alldfer an extended carry-back of net
operating losses generated in 2009. Excluding #ihgation allowance, our effective tax rate wouldénheen 38.3 percent for 2010. Excluc
the valuation allowance and the impact of the ckandax law for 2009, our effective tax rate wohkve been 37.2 percent for 2009.

Discontinued Operations, ndtoss from discontinued operations was $1.2 millim2010 compared to $5.0 million in 2009. In 20d@
recognized $1.1 million in expense related to fatuninimum lease obligations on closed facilitied evisions to sub-rental income
estimates. In 2009, we recognized $2.4 millionxpense related to future minimum lease obligatmmslosed facilities and employee
severance. We also reduced our expense in 2002.Bydllion due to a negotiated lease terminatidre remaining loss from discontinued
operations was primarily related to operating lesseurred in our Ohio market which we exited 920

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our primary capital requirements are to fund wogkiapital needs and operating expenses, meet eggaberest and principal
payments, and fund capital expenditures. In thé pas capital resources have primarily consistecbsh flows from operations and
borrowings under our various credit facilities.

In December of 2011, we entered into a $160.0 onilfirst-lien term loan and a stand-alone lettecrefit facility, which provides up to
$20.0 million of letters of credit. The term loavhich was issued at 97%, provided $119.6 milliomef proceeds after repaying the $20.0
million outstanding under the existing senior sedurevolving credit facility, using $14.2 million tollateralize letters of credit outstanding
under the new letter of credit facility, and payfiegs and expenses related to this transacticconjunction with the closing of the term loan,
we terminated our existing senior secured revolvirgglit facility (See Note 8 to the consolidatethficial statements included in Item 8 of
this annual report on Form 10-K). The homebuildimdustry, and therefore our industry, has beensigaificant downturn since 2006. We
are expecting increased stability and a slight ampment in the housing industry in 2012. Beyond2@lis difficult for us to predict what
will happen as our industry is dependent on a nurabfactors, including national economic condispemployment levels, the availability
credit for homebuilders and potential home buyks level of foreclosures, existing home inventenyd interest rates. With the sustained
downturn in the housing industry, our operatioresras longer providing positive cash flows, and weereot expecting our cash flows from
operations to be positive in 2012.
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Our term loan contains financial covenants, whiatiiide maintaining a minimum amount of qualifiedltand specified collateral
value. Qualified cash is defined as the amounneoéstricted cash and cash equivalents held in deprosecurities accounts which are subject
to control agreements in favor of our lenders. @ied cash must be at least $35.0 million at aflés. Specified collateral value is defined as
the amount of qualified cash at such time, plu®ants receivable and inventory which meet specifiiéria within the term loan agreement.
The minimum specified collateral value must equédtast $160 million during the period from MarctthPough October 31 of each year and
at least $150 million during the balance of thery@ae following table shows our qualified cash apeécified collateral value as of
December 31, 2011 (in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalel $ 146,83
Less:

Non-qualified cast (239)
Qualified cast 146,59t
Accounts receivabl 76,42¢
Less:

Ineligible receivable (89)
Net amount of accounts receiva 76,34(
Inventory 73,321
Less:

Inventory limitation* —
Value of inventory $ 73,327
Specified collateral valu $ 296,26!
Minimum specified collateral valt $150,00(

*  The value of inventory is limited to 122.222%th& net amount of accounts receivable from Novertiliterough March 1, and to
100.0% of the net amount of accounts receivabédl ather times during the yes

Our liquidity at December 31, 2011 was $111.8 williwhich includes $146.8 million in cash, redubgahe $35.0 million minimum
qualified cash requirement in our term loan. Iniadd to the $146.8 million of cash, we also had $1million in restricted cash at
December 31, 2011, of which $1.9 million was inéddn other long-term assets on the balance sRestricted cash consists of the $14.2
million used from the proceeds of the term loandbhateralize letters of credit outstanding under hew letter of credit facility and $0.9
million provided as collateral for other casualtgurance obligations. At December 31, 2011, we weten violation of any covenants or
restrictions imposed by any of our debt agreements.

We believe our liquidity is sufficient to meet cugeds in 2012. We expect our cash usage for 201 Benin the range of $45-$55
million and to end the year with (i) cash of $9®@&Imillion and (ii) liquidity of approximately $5$65 million, after deducting the $35.0
million minimum qualified cash requirement in oarr loan. This forecast is based on 460,000 sifagtely housing starts for 2012, market
prices for commodity products remaining relativeigble for the year, continued improvement in groasgin, an operating expense structure
consistent with current levels, and capital expemds of $8-$10 million. We considered various sc&rs when evaluating our liquidity for
2012, including housing starts consistent with 20/& believe our liquidity is sufficient to meetrd2012 needs. We do not expect working
capital or our current financing arrangements talseurce of funds for the next twelve months.

In the event that housing starts or sales volum@®a2 are higher or lower than expected, or ito#issumptions used in our forecas
differ from actual results, our forecasted castgasand liquidity levels may change. Should theentrindustry conditions continue beyond
2012 or further deteriorate, we may be requiredghise additional funds through the sale of comntooksor debt in the public capital markets
or in privately negotiated transactions. Therelmamo assurance that any of these financing optiausd be available on favorable terms, if
at all. Alternatives to help supplement our ligtydiosition could include, but are not limited idljng or permanently closing additional
facilities, adjusting our headcount in responseuient business conditions, attempts to renegoliatses, and divesting of non-core
businesses. There are no assurances that thesendtggove successful if housing activity doeg moprove.
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Since the beginning of the housing downturn, a grinfocus has been on protecting our liquidity. @ction plan, which consists of
generating new business, reducing physical capadfysting staffing levels, implementing cost @mient programs, managing credit
tightly, raising additional capital when needed] amost importantly, conserving cash has allowetburitigate the effects of the difficult
industry conditions. We will continue to executeststrategy as long as these conditions persist.

Consolidated Cash Flows

Cash used in operating activities was $66.4 mildod $41.7 million for 2011 and 2010, respectiviélie received a federal income tax
refund related to the carry-back of losses of agprately $33.8 million in 2010. Excluding the fedkincome tax refund received in 2010,
our cash used for 2010 was approximately $75.5anillThe decrease in cash used in operating desyitet of the income tax refund, is
primarily related to lower operating losses in 2@binpared to 2010 due to increased sales and iregm@noss margins. This decrease was
partially offset by an increase in cash used dughtmges in working capital. Of the $66.4 millidrcash used in 2011, approximately $24.6
million was due to an increase in working capitethjich was primarily related to increases in acceuateivable and inventory to support our
strong sales performance. Our asset utilizatioraneed healthy as our accounts receivable days asetdan 2011 compared to 2010, as we
increased the rate of our overall receivable ctdes. Our inventory turns were relatively flatver, our accounts payable days decreased
from 2010. We continue our focus on diligently mging working capital.

Cash used in operating activities increased $3%9l®min 2010 compared to 2009. We received fetigreome tax refunds related to
the carry-back of losses of approximately $33.8iomland $31.8 million in 2010 and 2009, respedyivExcluding the federal income tax
refund received in 2010, our cash used for 2010apasoximately $75.5 million. Of this cash use@@10, approximately $5.5 million
related to an increase in working capital, primyardlated to increased inventory purchases towdwelend of the year in an attempt to protect
our first quarter 2011 pricing commitments. The agmng cash used was to fund our operating lossésash interest payments. Our asset
utilization improved as our accounts receivablesddgcreased in 2010 compared to 2009 as we codtiedecing our overall delinquency
rate and increased the rate of our overall recéévedilections. Our inventory turns remained flaty-over-year and our accounts payable
days increased slightly from 2009.

Cash used in investing activities increased by ®flllion in 2011 compared to 2010. The increass pramarily due to a $14.2 million
increase in restricted cash used to collateraditters of credit outstanding under our letter eddrfacility. Capital expenditures decreased
$4.2 million as we had fewer buyouts of expirindniete and equipment leases in the current year.

Cash used in investing activities increased by $8lon in 2010 compared to 2009. The increase prawarily due to a $6.9 million
increase in capital expenditures related to buyofiexpiring vehicle and equipment leases. In daldjtproceeds from the sale of assets
decreased $1.4 million as we actively sold off egcequipment in 2009.

Net cash provided by financing activities increabg$59.4 million in 2011 compared to 2010. In 20ddr net cash provided by
financing activities of $128.6 million was primarilue to the $155.2 million of proceeds from ountéoan, net of debt discount, partially
offset by $20.0 million of payments under our resod) credit facility and $5.3 million used to repayr remaining 2012 notes. The net
proceeds received upon completion of our righteraffy and debt exchange in the first quarter of02@as the primary source of the cash
provided in 2010.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $68iltion in 2010 compared to net cash used in faiiag activities of $19.9 million in
2009. The net proceeds received upon completiauofights offering and debt exchange in the fipsarter of 2010 was the primary source
of the cash provided in 2010. The primary use shda 2009 was $20.0 million of payments underreuolving credit facility.

Capital Resources
First-Lien Term Loan and Letter of Credit Facility

In December 2011, we completed a $160.0 milliostfien term loan which included detachable wasgfwarrants”)that allow for the
purchase of up to 1.6 million shares of our commsimick at a price of $2.50 per share. At the same,tive entered into a staatbne letter o
credit facility (“letter of credit facility”), whib provides for the issuance of up to $20.0 milldretters of credit. The term loan and the letter
of credit facility are both scheduled to matureSaptember 30, 2015.
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The term loan is collateralized by a first liensaubstantially all of our assets, and is guaranibgeall of our subsidiaries. Interest accr
on the loan at 3-month LIBOR (subject to a 2% fjqdus 9.5%. The weighted average interest ratiherorrowings outstanding under the
term loan was 11.5% at December 31, 2011. Interesite term loan is payable quarterly in arreatsay time we can redeem some or all of
the loan at a redemption price equal to par pluapgiicable prepayment premium that declines ratitbpar. In addition to the financial
covenants, the term loan contains other restrictoxenants, which, among other things, relate égtiyment of dividends, incurrence of
indebtedness, repurchase of common stock or otbteibdtions, asset sales and investments. We n@ra violation of any of these
covenants at December 31, 2011.

The letter of credit facility includes a commitmdaé of 0.5% on any unused amount and assessessingt a rate of 2.0% on any
outstanding letters of credit. All letters of creidsued under the letter of credit facility mustdmllateralized by cash equal to 105% of the
amount of the letters of credit.

Rights Offering and Debt Exchan

In January 2010, we completed a common stock rigiiésing and debt exchange for our 2012 notespdys of these transactions, we
raised $180.1 million of new equity capital throupk issuance of 51,459,184 shares of common &tdtle rights offering at a subscription
price of $3.50 per share. We used $105.1 milliothefproceeds from the rights offering to repuret@portion of the 2012 notes in the debt
exchange. We used a portion of the remaining $T8I®n of proceeds to pay expenses of the rigffitsrmg and the debt exchange and the
remainder was used for general corporate purposes.

In the debt exchange, holders of the 2012 notelsasged $269.8 million aggregate principal amourQif2 notes for (i) $139.7 millic
aggregate principal amount of new 2016 notes${i)5.1 million in cash, and (iii) 7,112,244 shasésur common stock. We also amended
the indenture under which the 2012 notes were dstueliminate substantially all of the restrictis@venants, certain conditions to
defeasance, and certain events of default andease the liens on the collateral securing the 2@t&s. In 2011, we repaid $5.3 million of
our remaining 2012 notes.

The $139.7 million in aggregate principal amounhefv 2016 notes mature on February 15, 2016. sttexerues on the 2016 notes
rate of 3-month LIBOR (subject to a 3.0% floor) plL0.0%. LIBOR is reset at the beginning of eadiriguly period. The weighted-average
interest rate at December 31, 2011 for the 2016swhs 13.0%. Interest on the floating rate nat@syable quarterly in arrears. At any time
we can redeem some or all of the notes at a redemyptice equal to par plus a specified premiunt tleelines ratably to par. In the event
change in control, we may be required to offerduecchase the 2016 notes at a purchase price eqli@lléd of the principal, plus accrued and
unpaid interest.

The notes are jointly and severally guaranteedlyf @ur subsidiaries and collateralized by a gle@f common stock of certain of our
subsidiaries and by a second priority lien on sadislly all tangible and intangible property anterests in property and proceeds thereof
now owned or hereafter acquired by us and subathndill of our subsidiaries. All of the subsidiesiare wholly-owned and domiciled in the
United States. The parent company has no indepéadeets or operations, and the guarantees amnfililinconditional. The indenture
covering the notes contains certain restrictiveeoants, which, among other things, relate to tlyeneat of dividends, incurrence of
indebtedness, repurchase of common stock or otbibditions, asset sales and investments.
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Long-term debt consisted of the following as of Braber 31:

2011 2010
(In thousands)
Revolving credit facility $ — $ 20,00(
Term loan 160,00(
Floating rate notes
2012 note — 5,24¢
2016 note: 139,71¢ 139,71¢
Other lon¢-term debt* 4,08t 4,13¢
303,80: 169,10:
Unamortized debt discou (6,29¢) —
297,50¢ 169,10:
Less: current portion of lo-term debt 54 5,301
Total lon¢-term debt, net of current maturiti $297,45! $163,80:

*  We completed construction on a new multi-purpfasglity during 2006. Other long-term debt represesm unfunded lease obligation
for this facility. For accounting purposes, we deemed the owner. As a result, the building anaffsetting longterm lease obligatio
are included on the consolidated balance sheetasiponent of fixed assets and other debt, resedgtiThe building is being
depreciated over its useful life, and the leaseabibn is being amortized such that there willhoegain or loss recorded if the lease is
not extended at the end of the te

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures vary depending on prevailingifess factors, including current and anticipategket conditions. Historically,
capital expenditures have for the most part renthirieelatively low levels in comparison to the @img cash flows generated during the
corresponding periods. We expect our 2012 capxadeditures to be approximately $8 to $10 millismarily related to buyouts of
additional expiring equipment and vehicle leasekfanility improvements that will be needed to sotur operations.

DISCLOSURES OF CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCI AL COMMITMENTS
The following summarizes our contractual obligasi@s of December 31, 2011 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Contractual obligations Total Less than 1 yea 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years
Long-term debt $303,80: $ 54 $§ 127 $299.87! $ 3,747
Interest on lon-term debt(1 149,90( 37,857 75,09( 35,42t 1,52¢
Operating lease 82,42% 19,31¢ 29,29 18,21 15,607
Uncertain tax positions(: — — — — —

Total contractual cash obligatio $536,13( $ 57,22¢  $104,51(  $353,51. $ 20,88:

(1) LIBOR rates on our term loan are subject t&@for and LIBOR rates on our 2016 notes are sulifea 3% floor. Therefore, actual
interest may differ from the amounts presented alibIBOR increases to greater than Z

(2) We have $2.3 million of uncertain tax positiorsorded in long-term liabilities or as a reductto operating loss carryforwards. We
also have $0.4 million in interest and penaltiesaed related to these uncertain tax positioris.nbt reasonably possible to predict at
this time when (or if) any of these amounts willdsdtled.

The amounts reflected in the table above for opeydéases represent future minimum lease paymemsr non-cancelable operating
leases with an initial or remaining term in exceene year at December 31, 2011. Purchase ord&eed into in the ordinary course of
business are excluded from the above table bethegare payable within one year. Amounts for whighare liable under purchase orders
are reflected on our consolidated balance shemt@sunts payable and accrued liabilities.
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OTHER CASH OBLIGATIONS NOT REFLECTED IN THE BALANCE SHEET

In accordance with accounting principles generafigepted in the United States, commonly referrexstGAAP, our operating leases
are not recorded in our balance sheet. In additidhe lease obligations included in the abovestalsk have residual value guarantees on
certain equipment leases. Under these leases veethawption of (1) purchasing the equipment aetine of the lease term, (2) arranging for
the sale of the equipment to a third party, omé3)irning the equipment to the lessor to sell tpg@mment. If the sales proceeds in either case
are less than the residual value, then we arenedjto reimburse the lessor for the deficiencyaip specified level as stated in each lease
agreement. The guarantees under these leaseg fi@sidual values of equipment at the end of thpeaetive operating lease periods
approximated $1.0 million as of December 31, 2011.

Based upon the expectation that none of thesedesss®ts will have a residual value at the entiefdase term that is materially less
than the value specified in the related operatagé agreement or that we will purchase the equipatéhe end of the lease term, we do not
believe it is probable that we will be requiredidad any amounts under the terms of these guaranteegements. Accordingly, no accruals
have been recognized for these guarantees.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Critical accounting policies are those that bothiarportant to the accurate portrayal of a compafigancial condition and results, and
require subjective or complex judgments, often essalt of the need to make estimates about tleetadf matters that are inherently
uncertain.

In order to prepare financial statements that aonfito GAAP, we make estimates and assumptionsaffedt the amounts reported in
our financial statements and accompanying notedai@eestimates are particularly sensitive duén@artsignificance to the financial
statements and the possibility that future evergg be significantly different from our expectations

We have identified the following accounting poliitat require us to make the most subjective mmptex judgments in order to fairly
present our consolidated financial position andlte®f operations.

Vendor Rebateddany of our arrangements with our vendors provimteus to receive a rebate of a specified amourdigayto us when
we achieve any of a number of measures, generd#ijed to the volume of purchases from our vendliesaccount for these rebates as a
reduction of the prices of the vendor’s productsiolw reduces inventory until we sell the produtiyhich time these rebates reduce cost of
sales. Throughout the year, we estimate the anafusbates based upon our historical level of pasels. We continually revise these
estimates to reflect actual purchase levels.

If market conditions were to change, vendors mange the terms of some or all of these progranthofgh these changes would not
affect the amounts which we have recorded relatgutdduct already purchased, it may impact ourgnoargins on products we sell or sales
earned in future periods.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Related Resel#e maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsefstimated losses due to the
failure of our customers to make required paymadts perform periodic credit evaluations of our omsérs and typically do not require
collateral. However, as industry conditions havetitmed to decline, we have, in some cases, redjoiistomers to collateralize their debt to
us. Consistent with industry practices, we typicadiquire payment from most customers within 30sd@s our business is seasonal in cel
regions, our customers’ businesses are also sdaSaihes are lowest in the winter months, and @st due accounts receivable balance as a
percentage of total receivables generally incredsesg this time. Throughout the year, we recatingated reserves based upon our
historical write-offs of uncollectible accountskitag into consideration certain factors, such daggtatistics and trends, customer payment
history, independent credit reports, and discusswith customers.

Periodically, we perform a specific analysis ofadtounts past due and write off account balanteswe have exhausted reasonable
collection efforts and determined that the likedoof collection is remote. We charge these wrffs-against our allowance for doubtful
accounts. In previous years, we experienced hitfagr normal past due account balances and aslg msuallowance for doubtful accounts
increased as a percentage of trade accounts rbkeiliaresponse to these conditions, we tightengdredit standards, lowered credit limits
to some of our customers, and in some cases disaedtallowing credit or required collateral to pogt outstanding receivable balances. As
a result, our bad debt expense decreased appretyn$at4 million from 2010, which also resultedamlecrease in allowance for doubtful
accounts. Any future decline in the macroeconomitdrs that affect the overall housing industrpar specific customers’ business could
cause us to revise our estimate of expected l@ssbmcrease our allowance for doubtful accounts.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assetng-lived assets, including property and equipmare reviewed for possible impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrgingunt of an asset may not be recoverable. Thgiegramount of a long-lived asset group
is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of thaseudinted cash flows expected to result from theeamsl eventual disposition of the asset
group. Our long-lived assets and liabilities areuged at the lowest level for which identifiablesledlows are largely independent of the cash
flows of other groups of assets and liabilitiesr @sset groups consist of geographical markets;twduie one level below our reporting units.
Our judgment regarding the existence of impairnieditators is based on market and operational pedace. Determining whether
impairment has occurred typically requires variesmates and assumptions, including determininighwtash flows are directly related to
the potentially impaired asset, the useful liferowbich cash flows will occur, their amount, ane tsset’s residual value, if any. In turn,
measurement of an impairment loss requires a detetion of fair value, which is based on the bagtimation available.

We use internal cash flow estimates, quoted mamkets when available and independent appraissisppropriate, to determine fair
value. We derive the required cash flow estimata four historical experience and our internal bess plans and apply an appropriate
discount rate. These cash flow estimates are beeretmaining useful lives of the assets within eaelnket. Forecasted housing starts for ¢
market are used to help estimate future revenwsotitial trends are then used to project gross im=aemnd operating expenses based upon
various revenue levels. If these projected cashisflare less than the carrying amount, an impairtesstis recognized based on the fair value
of the asset group. Due to the uncertainties aataativith these projections, actual results coiffdrdrom projected results, and further
impairment of long-lived assets could be recordedure non-cash impairment of long-lived assetsldvbave the effect of decreasing our
earnings or increasing our losses in such periotwbuld not impact our current outstanding debigaitions or compliance with covenants
contained in the related debt agreements.

We recorded asset impairment charges of $0.8 millied $0.5 million in 2010 and 2009, respectiviéle recorded no asset impairment
charges in 2011.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the amount we tpadcquire businesses over the estimated failevafl tangible assets and
identifiable intangible assets acquired, less litds assumed. At December 31, 2011, our goodailance was $111.2 million, representing
22.7% of our total assets.

We test goodwill for impairment in the fourth quarof each year or at any other time when impaitriraficators exist by comparing
the estimated implied value of a reporting ungisodwill to its book value. Examples of such indlica that could cause us to test goodwill
impairment between annual tests include a sigmficaange in the business climate, unexpected ciitiopeor a significant deterioration in
market share. Our industry has been in a signifiaad severe downturn that began in mid-2006. imehvironment, we have closely
monitored the trends in economic factors and ték@cts on operating results to determine if anaimmpent trigger was present that would
warrant a reassessment of the recoverability o€#neying amount of goodwill prior to the requiradnual impairment test and performed
interim impairment tests when warranted. The mamynemic factors that affect our industry, primatie continued decline in housing st¢
have caused us to re-evaluate our expectatiorssriamber of our reporting units. Housing startsaasegnificant sales driver for us. If there is
a significant decline or an expected decline indirogi starts, this could adversely affect our exquems for a reporting unit and the value of
that reporting unit. We did not have any goodwilpiairments in continuing operations in 2011, 2042QD9.

The process of evaluating goodwill for impairmentadlves the determination of fair value of our rgjpg units. Our reporting units:
Atlantic, Raleigh, Southeast, Florida, Dallas andtf Texas represent financially discrete, seltangg components of our three regional
operating segments. We evaluate goodwill for impaint using a two-step process. The first step iddotify potential impairment by
comparing the fair value of a reporting unit to bmok value, including goodwill. If the fair valwé a reporting unit exceeds the book value,
goodwill is not impaired. If the book value exceds fair value, the second step of the procepsiirmed to measure the amount of
impairment. In step two, the estimated fair val@ithe reporting unit is allocated to all other assend liabilities of that reporting unit based
on their respective fair values. The excess ofdirevalue of the reporting unit over the amoubedted to its assets and liabilities is the
implied fair value of goodwill. Goodwill impairmeiig measured as the excess of the carrying valeeitsvimplied fair value. The fair value
of a reporting unit is estimated based upon th@gpted discounted cash flow expected to be gertefeden the reporting unit using a
discounted cash flow methodology. Where availahl @ppropriate, comparative market multiples aesiue corroborate the results of the
discounted cash flow.

We developed a range of fair values for our repgrtinits using a five-year discounted cash flowhmdology. Inherent in such fair
value determinations are estimates relating taréutash flows, including revenue growth, gross nimargperating expenses and long-term
growth rates, and our interpretation of currentneeoic indicators and market conditions and thepait on our strategic plans and
operations. Due to the uncertainties associatdu suith estimates, interpretations and assumptansal results could differ from projected
results, and further impairment of goodwill coulel tecorded.
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Significant information and assumptions utilizedestimating future cash flows for our reportingtanincludes publicly available
industry information on projected singl@mily housing starts and lumber commodity pricdsolr are used to project revenue. Projected ¢
margins and operating expenses reflect the imgaeicent headcount reductions and other cost remtuititiatives and are flexed in future
years based upon historical trends at various evéavels. Lon-term growth was based upon terminal value earriyefisre interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) multiples®bx for all reporting units to reflect the relev@xpected acquisition price. A discount
rate of 14.7% was used for all reporting units snidtended to reflect the weighted average cosapital for a potential market participant
and includes all risks of ownership and the assedidsks of realizing the stream of projected fatoash flows. Decreasing the long-term
growth to an EBITDA multiple of 4.5x, or increasitige discount rate by 1.0% to 15.7%, would not hzhanged the results of our
impairment testing.

At December 31, 2011, the excess (or “cushionthefimplied fair value of goodwill over the carrginalue of goodwill for each of our
five reporting units which have remaining goodwilances ranged from $8.1 million to $109.5 millidhe cushion for one of our reporting
units at December 31, 2011, was $8.1 million. Matiedeviations from projected cash flows for tiejgarting unit could result in future
goodwill impairment. This reporting unit had a gadldibalance of $11.0 million at December 31, 20Eactors that could negatively impact
the estimated fair value of our reporting units aotkentially trigger additional impairment includayt are not limited to, unexpected
competition, lower than expected housing startsnarease in market participant weighted averagt abcapital, increases in material or
labor cost, and significant declines in our madagtitalization. Future non-cash impairment of goitldwould have the effect of decreasing
our earnings or increasing our losses in such gehot would not impact our current outstandingtdsdtigations or compliance with
covenants contained in the related debt agreem&nhBecember 31, 2011, we reconciled to within @smnable range our estimated fair value
as determined by the sum of the discounted caslsftif our reporting units to our market capitali@at using an estimated control premium
of 29.1%.

Deferred Income Taxe®/e assess whether it is more likely than not thatesor all of our deferred tax assets will not éaived. We
consider the reversal of existing deferred taxilitéds, future taxable income, and tax planningigies in our assessment. We have certain
state income tax carryforwards where we beliei@nlikely that we will realize the benefits assded with these tax carryforwards and h
established a valuation allowance against our tedeax assets. Changes in our estimates of ftaedle income and tax planning strategies
will affect our estimate of the realization of ttax benefits of these tax carryforwards. Additibpah light of the continued downturn in the
housing market and the uncertainty as to its leagthmagnitude, we have been in a cumulative losgipn for the past few years.
Cumulative losses in recent years represent sigmfinegative evidence in considering whether dedetax assets are realizable, and also
usually preclude relying on projections of futuagable income to support the recovery of deferagdassets. Therefore, we recorded a
valuation allowance of approximately $26.1 milli&85.4 million and $3.9 million related to our cionting operations in 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively. Further declines in housingvigtcould cause us to establish additional vatraallowances. To the extent we generate
sufficient taxable income in the future to fullylizie the tax benefits of the related net defetedassets, we may reverse some or all of the
valuation allowances.

Insurance Deductible ReserWe have large deductibles for general liabilitytodliability and workers’ compensation insurancheT
expected liability for unpaid claims falling withur deductible, including incurred but not repdrtesses, is determined using the assistance
of a third-party actuary. This amount is reflectedour balance sheet as an accrued liability. ©coanting policy includes an internal
evaluation and adjustment of our reserve for alliilmnce-related liabilities on a quarterly basisleAst on an annual basis, we engage an
external actuarial professional to independentbesas and estimate the total liability outstandivigich is compared to the actual reserve
balance at that time and adjusted accordingly.

Stock-Based Compensati@@alculating stock-based compensation expense esqthie input of subjective assumptions. We detegmin
the fair value of each option grant using the Bi&ckoles option-pricing model with assumptions dasémarily on historical data. Specific
inputs to the model include: the expected lifehaf $tock-based awards, stock price volatility, divid yield and risk-free rate.

The expected life represents the period of timeoffiteons are expected to be outstanding. We con#lidecontractual term, the vesting
period and the expected lives used by a peer grithpsimilar option terms in determining the expttife assumption. The expected
volatility is based on the historical volatility otir common stock over the most recent period etpule expected life of the option. The
expected dividend yield is based on our historgaifpaying regular dividends in the past and ourezu intention to not pay regular
dividends in the foreseeable future. The risk-fizge is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curvdfeceat the time of grant and has a term
equal to the expected life of the options. We rd@xpense for the unvested portion of grants dwerequisite service (i.e., vesting) periods.
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RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Stassl&oard (“FASB”) issued an update to existing guitk under thetangibles —
Goodwill and Othetopic of the Codification. The new guidance perraitsentity to perform a qualitative assessmengeterdhine whether it
is more likely than not that the fair value of aogting unit is less than its carrying amount.dfentity determines this to be the case, it is then
required to perform the current two-step goodwilpairment test to identify any potential goodwitigairment and measure the amount of
goodwill impairment loss to be recognized for thegiorting unit, if any. Otherwise, the tvatep goodwill impairment test is not required. 1
guidance becomes effective for us on January 12,20t all annual and interim goodwill impairmessts. We do not expect these changes to
have a material impact on our financial positiomesults of operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued guidance undeCtimaprehensive Incontepic of the Codification which eliminates the @nt option
to report other comprehensive income and its coraptsnin the statement of changes in stockholagpsity. Rather, an entity will be requir
to present the total of comprehensive income, tleponents of net income and the components of otiraprehensive income either in a
single continuous statement or in two separatebuosecutive statements. In December 2011, the F8SEd an amendment to the guidance
issued in June. This amendment defers the speegigrements to present items that are reclasdified accumulated other comprehensive
income to net income separately with their respeatomponents of net income and other compreheirsteene. All other requirements of
the guidance issued in June was unaffected. Ahisfguidance becomes effective for us on Janug2p12. These changes will be for
presentation and disclosure only and will havempact on our financial position or results of opierss.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Maat Risk

We may experience changes in interest expense wheket interest rates change. LIBOR rates on aur tean are subject to a 2%
floor and LIBOR rates on our 2016 notes are suligeat 3% floor. Interest expense on these debtimgints would not change unless LIBOR
increased to greater than 2%. Changes in our deitd @lso increase these risks. Based on debtamdlisiy and LIBOR rates at December 31,
2011, a 1.0% increase in interest rates wouldemilt in any additional interest expense annually.

We purchase certain materials, including lumbedpots, which are then sold to customers as welkad as direct production inputs
our manufactured products that we deliver. Shartrtehanges in the cost of these materials andelaged in-bound freight costs, some of
which are subject to significant fluctuations, aoenetimes, but not always, passed on to our custor®er delayed ability to pass on mate
price increases to our customers can adverselgtafte operating income.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of BenglFirstSource, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statenfeop&i@tions, changes in
stockholders’ equity and cash flows present fairlyall material respects, the financial positidrBailders FirstSource, Inc. and its
subsidiaries at December 31, 2011 and 2010, anck$dts of their operations and their cash floarsefach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2011 in conformity with accawngirinciples generally accepted in the UnitedeStaf America. Also in our opinion,
the Company maintained, in all material respedfsctve internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2011, based on criteria
established imnternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway Commission
(COSO0). The Company’s management is responsiblidnése financial statements, for maintaining eféecinternal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectissméd internal control over financial reportingclided in Management’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting appearing undemi©A. Our responsibility is to express opiniongtugse financial statements and on the
Company’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our integrated audits. We conductedwitsain accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boaraifeld States). Those standards require that wegpldrperform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatehsénts are free of material misstatement andh&heffective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all materggdpects. Our audits of the financial statememisiited examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fiahstatements, assessing the accounting prirscyed and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financé&éstent presentation. Our audit of internal cordk@r financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal control drgaincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectivenégst@rnal control based on the assessed risk.aQdits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the dtanoes. We believe that our audits provide a redse basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over firgad reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and(idyide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iizé statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 2, 2012
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Sales
Cost of sale:

Gross margir

BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Selling, general and administrative exper

Asset impairment
Facility closure cost

Loss from operation
Interest expense, n

Loss from continuing operations before income tz
Income tax expense (benel

Loss from continuing operatiol

Loss from discontinued operations (net of inconxebinefit of $0 in 2011, 2010 and

2009)
Net loss

Basic and diluted net loss per sha
Loss from continuing operatiol
Loss from discontinued operatio

Net loss

Weighted average common shares outstanc

Basic and dilutes

Years Ended December 31,

2011

2010

2009

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

779,090 $ 700,34 $ 677,88
621,14 568,58 535,48
157,94! 131,75 142,40
192,95¢ 194,09: 201,40:

— 83¢ 47¢
2,461 55¢ 1,20(
(37,47%) (63,73)) (60,66°)
24,93¢ 31,67 27,048
(62,412 (95,40%) (87,71
2,217 (1,117) (30,829
(64,637 (94,29) (56,88¢)
(364) (1,215) (4,965)
(64,999 $ (95509 $ (61,859
(0.6 $ (1.09 $ (1.45)
(0.00) (0.01) (0.19)

$ (0.6 $ (104 $ (1.5¢)
94,95( 91,67¢ 39,16+

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

40



Table of Contents

BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,

2011 2010
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 146,83. $ 103,23:
Restricted cas 13,22¢ —
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $2,138%n444 for 2011 and 2010, respectiv 76,42¢ 59,69:
Inventories 73,321 63,81(
Other current asse 9,84: 8,61¢
Total current asse 319,66 235,34
Property, plant and equipment, | 48,22¢ 57,06¢
Goodwill 111,19: 111,19:
Intangible assets, n 1,65 2,20(
Other assets, n 8,06¢ 6,99¢
Total asset $ 488,80: $ 412 ,80:

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 48,61¢  $ 44,86¢
Accrued liabilities 25,18: 26,28
Current maturities of lor-term deb 54 5,301

Total current liabilities 73,85¢ 76,45
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti 297,45! 163,80:
Deferred income taxe 5,53¢ 5,052
Other lon¢-term liabilities 10,73( 7,99¢

Total liabilities 387,57¢ 253,29¢

Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000 sharémenréd; zero shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2011 and 20 — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 200,000 shares ariolp 96,806 and 96,769 shares issued

outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respéc 95( 94¢
Additional paic-in capital 359,75( 355,19:
Accumulated defici (259,47¢) (194,48)
Accumulated other comprehensive | — (2,157
Total stockholder equity 101,22- 159,50!
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 488,80 $ 412,80:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss $ (64,999 $ (95,509 $ (61,85¢)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 14,04: 15,43 17,91¢
Asset impairment — 83¢ 47C
Amortization of deferred loan cos 1,344 5,95¢ 3,76:
Amortization of debt discour 10€ — —
Fair value adjustment of stock warra 73€ — —
Deferred income taxe 1,817 (1,235 411
Bad debt expens 437 792 2,711
Net nor-cash (income) expense from discontinued opera — 3 724
Stock compensation exper 4,55¢ 4,30¢ 2,861
Net gain on sales of assi (212 (25¢) (607)
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Receivable! (a7,17% 40,00: 23,03(
Inventories (9,517 (15,78%) 20,84¢
Other current asse (1,229 (873) 617
Other assets and liabilitit 384 (280) (3,555
Accounts payabl 3,752 5,29¢ 4,15¢
Accrued liabilities (45€) (399 (14,240
Net cash used in operating activit (66,409 (41,720 (2,74¢€)
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property, plant and equipn (4,792 (8,959 (2,109
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipt 34¢ 602 1,98¢
Increase in restricted ca (14,165 — —
Net cash used in investing activit| (18,60¢) (8,357 (1179)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Net payments under revolving credit facil (20,000 — (20,000
Proceeds from issuance of long term c 155,20( — —
Payments of lor-term debt and other loa (5,299 (105,18%) 43
Deferred loan cost (1,285 (50) —
Proceeds from rights offerir — 180,10° —
Payment of recapitalization co¢ — (5,637) (620
Exercise of stock optior — — 85¢
Repurchase of common sta (2) (31) (126)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 128,61! 69,207 (19,930
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 43,59¢ 19,13¢ (22,797
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 103,23« 84,09¢ 106,89:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 146,83. $ 103,23: % 84,09¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’' EQUITY

Accumulated
Additional Paid Other

Common Stock in Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Deficit (Loss) Income Total
(In thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2C 36,12¢ $ 357 $ 146,65( $ (37,119 $ (7,419 $ 102,47
Issuance of restricted stock, net of
forfeitures 9 — — — — —
Vesting of restricted stoc — 4 4 — — —
Stock compensation exper — — 2,86: — — 2,86:
Exercise of stock optior 273 3 85€ — — 85¢
Repurchase of common sta (63) (1) (125) — (12€)
Comprehensive los
Net loss — — — (61,859 — (61,859
Change in fair value of interest rat
swaps — — — — 2,731 2,731
Total comprehensive ot — — — — — (59,127)
Balance at December 31, 2C 36,341 363 150,24( (98,979 (4,687) 46,947
Issuance of restricted stock, net of
forfeitures 1,861 — — — — —
Stock compensation exper — — 4,30¢ — — 4,30¢
Repurchase of common sta (10 — (31 — (32)
Issuance of common stock from rights
offering 51,45¢ 51E 175,85! — — 176,37!
Issuance of common stock in debt
exchange 7,117 71 24,82: — 24,89:
Comprehensive los
Net loss — — — (95,50¢) — (95,50¢)
Change in fair value of interest rat
swaps — — — — 2,52¢ 2,52¢
Total comprehensive ot — — — — — (92,98:)
Balance at December 31, 2C 96,76¢ 94¢ 355,19: (194,48) (2,157%) 159,50!
Issuance of restricted stock, net of
forfeitures 38 — — — — —
Vesting of restricted stoc — 1 D — — —
Stock compensation exper — — 4,55¢ — — 4,55¢
Repurchase of common sta (@D} — 2 — 2
Comprehensive los
Net loss — — — (64,995 — (64,995
Change in fair value of interest rate
swaps — — — — 2,157 2,157
Total comprehensive lo: — — — — — (62,839
Balance at December 31, 2C 96,80¢ $ 95C $ 359,75( $ (259,47 $ — $ 101,22

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of the Business

Builders FirstSource, Inc., a Delaware corporafammed in 1998, is a leading supplier and manufactaf structural and related
building products for residential new constructinrthe United States. In this annual report, rafees to the “company,” “we,” “our,” “ours

or “us” refer to Builders FirstSource, Inc. anddtmsolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise statéite context otherwise requires.

We manage our business as three regional opegings — Atlantic, Southeast and Central. We s8&/markets in 9 states,
principally in the southern and eastern UnitedetatVe have 51 distribution centers and 44 manufiagt facilities, many of which are
located on the same premises as our distributintece We serve a broad customer base ranginggroduction homebuilders to small
custom homebuilders.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements presentablts of operations, financial position, and désivs of Builders FirstSource, Inc. a
its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant im@mpany transactions have been eliminated in diofadion.

Accounting Estimate:

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleSAAP”) in the United States of
America requires management to make estimatessmuaigptions that affect the reported amounts oftsssal liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effittencial statements, and the reported amounsvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could materially differ frdimose estimates.

Estimates are used when accounting for items ssicev@nue, vendor rebates, allowance for retuisspdnts and doubtful accounts,
employee compensation programs, depreciation amdteaetion periods, income taxes, inventory valuesyrance programs, goodwill, other
intangible assets and long-lived assets.

Sales Recognitiol

We recognize sales of building products upon defite the customer. For contracts with service elets, sales are generally
recognized on the completed contract method ag tt@stracts are usually completed within 30 daysitfact costs include all direct material
and labor, equipment costs and those indirect eektted to contract performance. Provisions feimeged losses on uncompleted contracts
are recognized in the period in which such lossesiatermined. Prepayments for materials or ses\ace deferred until such materials have
been delivered or services have been providedsaldls recognized are net of allowances for dissoamdl estimated returns, based on
historical experience. We present all sales ta& aet basis in our consolidated financial statement

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on mahdllhighly liquid investments with an originakmurity date of three months or le

Restricted Casl

Restricted cash consists of amounts used to callate outstanding letters of credit and other ptiéd casualty insurance obligations
and is classified as a current or non-current dssstd on its designated purpose.
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Financial Instruments

We use financial instruments in the normal coufdausiness as a tool to manage our assets antitiésbiWwe do not hold or issue
financial instruments for trading purposes.

We issued detachable warrants in 2011, which asesuored at fair value on a recurring basis as disclis) Note 8.

We utilized interest rate swaps in the past in otdenitigate a portion of the interest rate riskttwe were exposed to in the normal
course of business on our floating rate notes. \Wasured our interest rate swaps at fair valuereawring basis as discussed in Note 8.

Accounts Receivabl

We extend credit to qualified professional hometeri$ and contractors, in many cases on a non-ewlated basis. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is based on management’s assessirtee amount which may become uncollectibléhmfuture and is estimated using
specific review of problem accounts, overall pditf@uality, current economic conditions that méfeet the borrower’s ability to pay, and
historical experience. Accounts receivable aretemibff when deemed uncollectible.

Accounts receivable consisted of the following acBmber 31:

2011 2010
(In thousands)

Trade receivable $73,37" $58,07¢

Other 5,19: 4,06(

Accounts receivabl 78,56 62,13¢

Less: allowance for returns and doubtful accol 2,13¢ 2,44¢

Accounts receivable, n $76,42¢ $59,69:

The following table shows the changes in our alloeeafor doubtful accounts:
2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Balance at January $1,87: $ 4,221 $ 5,28¢
Additions charged to expens

Continuing operation 437 792 2,711
Discontinued operatior — — 27¢
Deductions (writ-offs, net of recoveries (86¢€) (3,140 (4,059
Balance at December 2 $1,441 $1,87¢ $ 4,221

We also establish reserves for credit memos arthmes returns. The reserve balance was $0.7 mil6r6 million, and $0.7 million :
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.attivity in this reserve was not significant éarch year presented.

Inventories

Inventories consist principally of materials pursbd for resale, including lumber, sheet goods, @] doors and millwork, as well as
certain manufactured products and are stated &bwer of cost or market. Cost is determined usirgweighted average method, the use of
which approximates the first-in, first-out meth&de accrue for shrinkage based on the actual histicshrinkage results of our most recent
physical inventories adjusted, if necessary, forant economic conditions. These estimates are aoedpwith actual results as physical
inventory counts are taken and reconciled to thmeg# ledger.

During the year, we monitor our inventory levelsrbgirket and record provisions for excess invensdsesed on slower moving
inventory. We define potential excess inventoryr@samount of inventory on hand in excess of te&hical usage, excluding special order
items purchased in the last three months. We thply @ur judgment as to forecasted demand and &dletors, including liquidation value,
determine the required adjustments to net reakzedllue. Our inventories are generally not susbkpto technological obsolescence.
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Our arrangements with vendors provide for rebatesspecified amount of consideration, payable wtentain measures, generally
related to a stipulated level of purchases, haes laghieved. We account for estimated rebateseduation of the prices of the vendor’s
inventory until the product is sold, at which timgch rebates reduce cost of sales in the accommpoghsolidated statements of operations.
Throughout the year we estimate the amount ofdbhates based upon the expected level of purcha&esontinually revise these estimates
based on actual purchase levels.

Shipping and Handling Cost

Handling costs incurred in manufacturing activitige included in cost of sales. All other shippamgl handling costs are included in
selling, general and administrative expenses iratt®@mpanying consolidated statements of operaindsaggregated $49.0 million, $49.0
million and $47.5 million in 2011, 2010 and 2008spectively.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes utilizing the liabilibethod described in tHecome Taxewpic of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards CodificatiorC@dification”). Deferred income taxes are recorttedeflect consequences on future
years of differences between the tax basis of st liabilities and their financial reporting amts at each ye-end based on enacted tax
laws and statutory tax rates applicable to theogsrin which differences are expected to affechltéex earnings. We record a valuation
allowance to reduce deferred tax assets if it isentikely than not that some portion or all of theferred tax assets will not be realized.

Warranty Expense

We have warranty obligations with respect to moahufactured products; however, the liability foe tharranty obligations is not
significant as a result of third-party inspectiondacceptance processes.

Deferred Loan Costs and Debt Discou

Loan costs are capitalized upon the issuance gfferm debt and amortized over the life of theteglalebt. Loan costs incurred are
amortized using either the straight-line methothereffective interest method. Debt discount is dired over the life of the related debt
using the effective interest method. Amortizatiéreferred loan costs and the debt discount ataded in interest expense. Upon change
our debt structure, we evaluate debt issuance toatsordance with thBebttopic of the Codification. We adjust debt issuacosts as
necessary based on the results of this evalua®discussed in Note 8.

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Property, plant and equipment are recorded atasabstlepreciated using the straight-line method theeestimated useful lives of the
assets. The estimated lives of the various clasfsassets are as follows:

Buildings and improvemen 20 to 40 year

Machinery and equipme 3to 10 year:

Furniture and fixture 3to 5 year:

Leasehold improvemen The shorter of the estimated useful life or theagrimg lease terr

Major additions and improvements are capitalizelijevmaintenance and repairs that do not extendskéul life of the property are
charged to expense as incurred. Gains or lossesdigpositions of property, plant and equipmentraoerded in the period incurred. We also
capitalize certain costs of computer software dgwadl or obtained for internal use, including ingg&rerovided that those costs are not
research and development, and certain other erited met.

We periodically evaluate the commercial and stiategeration of the land, related buildings androvements of our facilities. In
connection with these evaluations, some facilities/ be consolidated, and others may be sold oededdet gains or losses related to the sale
of real estate and equipment are recorded asgeljeneral and administrative expenses.

Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate our long-lived assets, other than gdbder impairment when events or changes in ainstances indicate, in our
judgment, that the carrying value of such assetsmoabe recoverable. The determination of wheittmgairment has occurred
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based on our estimate of undiscounted future daslsbefore interest attributable to the assetoaspared to the net carrying value of the
assets. If impairment has occurred, the amourftefrhpairment recognized is determined by estimdtie fair value of the assets based on
estimated discounted future cash flows and recgrdiprovision for loss if the carrying value is &per than estimated fair value. The net
carrying value of assets identified to be dispasfed the future is compared to their estimated ¥aiue, usually the quoted market price
obtained from an independent third-party less tiat to sell, to determine if impairment exists. iUttite assets are disposed of, an estimate of
the fair value is reassessed when related evermiscomstances change. For the years ended Dec&hp2010 and 2009, we recorded asset
impairment charges of $0.8 million and $0.5 millioespectively. These charges were included int aspairments in the consolidated
statements of operations in their respective y&desdid not incur any asset impairment charge9il?2

Insurance

We have established insurance programs to covtaicénsurable risks consisting primarily of phyaitoss to property, business
interruptions resulting from such loss, workersnmensation, employee healthcare, and comprehegsiaral and auto liability. Third party
insurance coverage is obtained for exposures g@determined deductibles as well as for thoses risguired to be insured by law or
contract. Provisions for losses are developed fralations that rely upon our past claims expegemtich considers both the frequency
settlement of claims. We discount our workers’ cemgation liability based upon estimated future payynstreams at our risk-free rate.

Net Loss per Common Sha

Net loss per common share, or earnings per sheRS"), is calculated in accordance with Eernings per Shareopic of the
Codification which requires the presentation ofibasnd diluted EPS. Basic EPS is computed usingvitighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EP@®mputed using the weighted average number ofrmonshares outstanding during the
period, plus the dilutive effect of potential conmnghares.

The table below presents a reconciliation of waidhdverage common shares used in the calculatibasié and diluted EPS for the
years ended December !

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Weighted average shares for basic | 94,95( 91,67¢ 39,16¢
Dilutive effect of options — — —
Weighted average shares for diluted E 94,95( 91,67¢ 39,16«

In connection with our common stock rights offerthgt closed in January 2010, as discussed in 8lote offered all shareholders the
right to purchase additional shares at an offepirice of $3.50 per share. At the inception of aghts offering the offering price was lower
than the fair value of our common stock, thus @nga bonus element which requires us to retroalgtindjust the weighted average share
basic EPS for all periods presented. Thereforenareased the number of weighted average commaeshaed in computing basic and
diluted EPS for 2009 using an adjustment factdk.09.

Our restricted stock shares include rights to rexdividends that are not subject to the risk ofditure even if the underlying restricted
stock shares on which the dividends were paid doest. In accordance with tl&rnings Per Shartopic of the Codification, unvested
share-based payment awards that containfodeitable rights to dividends are deemed partipy securities and should be considered i
calculation of basic EPS. Since the restrictedkssbares do not include an obligation to sharessés, they will be included in our basic EPS
calculation in periods of net income and excludedfour basic EPS calculation in periods of nes.léscordingly, there were 1,795,000,
1,865,000 and 61,000 restricted stock shares esxdlfrdm the computation of basic EPS in 2011, 28162009, respectively, because we
generated a net loss. Options to purchase 5,73150886,000, and 2,284,000 shares of common steck not included in the computations
of diluted EPS in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respegtjymcause their effect was anti-dilutive. Warraatpurchase 1,600,000 shares of common
stock were not included in the computations oftdiiuEPS in 2011 because their effect was antirdduiNo warrants were outstanding in
2010 and 2009.
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Intangibles subject to amortizatic

We recognize an acquired intangible asset apart §oodwill whenever the intangible asset arisesifoontractual or other legal rights,
or whenever it can be separated or divided fronatiwiired entity and sold, transferred, licensedtad, or exchanged, either individually or
in combination with a related contract, assetalility. Impairment losses are recognized if theydag value of an intangible asset subject to
amortization is not recoverable from expected fizash flows and its carrying amount exceeds iated fair value.

Goodwill

We recognize goodwill as the excess cost of aniesjentity over the net amount assigned to assefsired and liabilities assumed.
Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual sasid between annual tests whenever impairmendisated. This annual test takes place
as of December 31 each year. Impairment losse®eognized whenever the implied fair value of goitide/less than its carrying value.

Stoclk-based Compensation
We have three stock-based employee compensatiog, pldich are described more fully in Note 9. Waiessnew common stock shares
upon exercises of stock options and grants oficéstr stock.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes optidoiy model with the following
weighted average assumptions for the years endeeniizer 31:

2010
Expected life 6.0 year

Expected volatility 99.2%
Expected dividend yiel 0.0(%
Risk-free rate 2.97%

The expected life represents the period of timeofiteons are expected to be outstanding. We con#lidecontractual term, the vesting period
and the expected lives used by a peer group withiasi option terms in determining the expected déigsumption. The expected volatility is
based on the historical volatility of our commoacst over the most recent period equal to the expede of the option. The expected
dividend yield is based on our history of not payiegular dividends in the past and our curremritibn to not pay regular dividends in the
foreseeable future. The rikee rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield cimedfect at the time of grant and has a term etputhe expecte
life of the options. We did not grant any stockioptawards in 2011 or 2009.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncemel

In September 2011, the FASB issued an update stirxiguidance under thistangibles — Goodwill and Othéopic of the
Codification. The new guidance permits an entitpéoform a qualitative assessment to determinetveétis more likely than not that the
fair value of a reporting unit is less than itsrgang amount. If an entity determines this to be tlase, it is then required to perform the cul
two-step goodwill impairment test to identify angtential goodwill impairment and measure the amadigfoodwill impairment loss to be
recognized for that reporting unit, if any. Othesaii the twastep goodwill impairment test is not required. Tnisdance becomes effective
us on January 1, 2012, for all annual and intermdgvill impairment tests. We do not expect thesanges to have a material impact on our
financial position or results of operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued guidance undeCtimaprehensive Incontepic of the Codification which eliminates the @nt option
to report other comprehensive income and its coreptsnin the statement of changes in stockholagpsity. Rather, an entity will be requir
to present the total of comprehensive income, tleponents of net income and the components of otiraprehensive income either in a
single continuous statement or in two separatetuosecutive statements. In December 2011, the F8SEd an amendment to the guidance
issued in June. This amendment defers the speegigrements to present items that are reclasdified accumulated other comprehensive
income to net income separately with their respeatomponents of net income and other compreheirgieene. All other requirements of
the guidance issued in June was unaffected. Ahisfguidance becomes effective for us on Janug2p12. These changes will be for
presentation and disclosure only and will havempact on our financial position or results of opierss.
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Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Comprehensive (loss) income is defined as the ahangquity (net assets) of a business enterptisagla period from transactions
other events and circumstances from non-owner ssuttconsists of net (loss) income and othergyaird losses affecting stockholders’
equity that, under GAAP, are excluded from net meoThe change in fair value of interest rate swegs the only item impacting our
accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedbbform to the current year presentation.

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the¥dhg at December 31:

2011 2010
(In thousands)
Land $ 13,99. $ 13,99!
Buildings and improvemen 62,33: 61,88:
Machinery and equipme 89,89’ 90,95:
Furniture and fixture 18,06" 17,92¢
Construction in progres 2,191 28t
Property, plant and equipme 186,47t 185,04:
Less: accumulated depreciati 138,25« 127,97:
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 48,22« $ 57,06¢

Depreciation expense was $13.5 million, $14.9 onlland $16.6 million, of which $4.1 million, $5.5llon and $6.8 million was
included in cost of sales, in 2011, 2010 and 28&§pectively.

4. Discontinued Operations

In October 2008, we announced our intent to exitNlew Jersey market based upon several factotading the unfavorable conditio
that affect our industry and a poor competitiveitpms which prevented us from generating profitatdsults. We completed our exit plan p
to December 31, 2008 and have no further signifigamtinuing involvement in these operations.ha second quarter of 2009, we
announced our intent to exit the entire Ohio mableested upon several factors, including the unfaereonditions that affect our industry
a poor competitive position which prevented us figenerating profitable results. We completed oitr@an in the second quarter of 2009
and have no further significant, continuing invehent in these operations. The cessation of opasatiothese markets was treated as
discontinued operations as they had distinguishedmdé flow and operations that have been eliminfited our ongoing operations. As a
result, the operating results of the New JerseyQ@inid markets for the current and prior periodsehbgen aggregated and reclassified as
discontinued operations in the consolidated stat¢snaf operations for the years ended Decembe2(@®l1, 2010 and 2009.

We recognized $0.3 million and $1.1 million of erpe in 2011 and 2010, respectively, which was milyneelated to future minimum
lease obligations on closed facilities, and revisito sub-rental income estimates. These amousis@uded in loss from discontinued
operations in the accompanying consolidated stateofeoperations for the years ended December @] 2nd 2010, respectively.

In 2009, we sold inventory, machinery and equipnvattt a net book value of approximately $1.0 mitlifior cash proceeds of $0.6
million, resulting in a loss on the sale of thesseds of $0.4 million. We also negotiated leasmiteations on certain Ohio and New Jersey
locations. We paid approximately $2.1 million untiez terms of the agreements to release us fromethaining obligations under these
leases. As a result, we recorded adjustments téaaility closure reserve in 2009 of approximat$ly8 million. These amounts are included
in loss from discontinued operations in the accamypay consolidated statement of operations foryder ended December 31, 2009.
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An analysis of our facility closure reserves raite our discontinued operations for the periodlected is as follows:

2009 Additions Payments 2010 Additions Payments 2011
(In thousands)
Facility and other exit costs, net of
estimated sL-lease rental incomr $ 2,690 $ 1,05¢ $ 915 $ 2831 $ 321 $ (91%) $ 2,231
Employee severance and termina
benefits — — — — — — —
Total facility closure reserv. = $ 2,69C $ 1,05¢ $ (919 $ 2,831 % 321 $ (915 $ 2,23i

The facility and other exit cost reserves relatedur discontinued operations of $2.2 million atBeber 31, 2011, of which $1.6
million is recorded as other long-term liabilitiese primarily related to future minimum lease pawts on vacated facilities.

Sales and loss before income taxes attributaldertaliscontinued operations were as follows fonthars ended December 31:

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Sales $ — $ — $ 6,57¢
Loss before income taxi $ 3649 $ (1,215 $ (4,96
5. Goodwill

There were no changes in the carrying amount oflgdbin 2011 and 2010.

Since the beginning of 2008, we closely monitoredds in economic factors and their effects on aipey results to determine if an
impairment trigger was present that would warrargessessment of the recoverability of the carrgimgunt of goodwill prior to the required
annual impairment test in accordance withltitangibles — Goodwill and Otheopic of the Codification.

The process of evaluating goodwill for impairmentdlves the determination of fair value of our rég units. Inherent in such fair
value determinations are certain judgments anchastis relating to future cash flows, including mterpretation of current economic
indicators and market valuations and assumptiongtatur strategic plans with regard to our operetidue to the uncertainties associated
with such estimates, actual results could diffenfrsuch estimates resulting in further impairmérgamdwill.

In performing our impairment analysis, we developgdnge of fair values for our reporting unitsngsa discounted cash flow
methodology. The discounted cash flow methodolaigtdishes fair value by estimating the presenievaff the projected future cash flow:
be generated from the reporting unit. The discoat& applied to the projected future cash flowartove at the present value is intended to
reflect all risks of ownership and the associatskirof realizing the stream of projected futursiciows. The discounted cash flow
methodology uses our projections of financial perfance for a fiverear period. The most significant assumptions uselde discounted ca
flow methodology are the discount rate, the teriniaéue and the expected future revenues, grosginwand operating expenses, which \
among reporting units. Significant assumptions usexur financial projections include housing stattmber commodity prices, and market
share gains.

We recorded no goodwill impairment charges in 2@DIL0 and 2009.
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6. Intangible Assets

The following table presents intangible assetsf&egember 31:

2011 2010
Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
(In thousands)
Customer relationshif $ 3,45¢ $ (1,849 $ 3,45¢ $ (1,439
Non-compete agreemer 372 (329 712 (532)
Total intangible asse $ 3,83( $ (2,179 $ 4,17(C $ (1,970

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 201@@08, we recorded amortization expense in reldtdhe above-listed intangible
assets of $0.5 million, $0.5 million, and $1.3 ioifl, respectively. The following table presents éisémated amortization expense for these
intangible assets for the years ending Decembé¢in3housands):

2012 $ 44¢
2013 381
2014 378
2015 287
2016 167

7. Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities consisted of the following aeBember 31.:

2011 2010
(In thousands)
Accrued payroll and other employee related expe $ 2,68 $ 3,49¢
Accrued taxe: 5,71¢ 4,93t
Insurance se-retention reserve 5,69( 6,872
Accrued interes 3,89¢ 2,50¢
Advances from custome 1,34¢ 1,191
Facility closure reserve 1,50: 1,20¢
Interest rate sway — 2,20¢
Other 4,33 3,86¢
Total accrued liabilitie: $25,18: $26,28¢
8. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consisted of the following at DecemB®1.:
2011 2010
(In thousands)

Revolving credit facility $ — $ 20,00(

Term loan 160,00( —

Floating rate notes

2012 note — 5,24¢
2016 note: 139,71¢ 139,71¢
Other lon¢-term debt 4,08t 4,13¢
303,80 169,10:

Unamortized debt discou (6,299 —
297,50¢ 169,10:
Less: current portion of lo-term debt 54 5,301
Total lon¢-term debt, net of current maturiti $297,45! $163,80:
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2007 Senior Secured Credit Agreement

In 2007, we entered into a $350 million revolvingdit facility (the “2007 Agreement”) with a consiom of banks. The available
borrowing capacity, or borrowing base, under th&dillion revolving credit line was derived prinigurfrom a percentage of our eligible
accounts receivable and inventory, as defined éyatgreement. During 2009, we reduced the maximumowang capacity under the 2007
Agreement from $350 million to $250 million as alled by the 2007 Agreement. In November 2010, wenalee the 2007 Agreement,
further reducing the maximum borrowing capacitynir§250 million to $150 million. As part of theseluetions, we expensed $0.6 million
and $1.2 million related to unamortized debt issearpsts in 2010 and 2009, respectively. Intesssrunder the 2007 Agreement were b
on a base rate plus an applicable margin. Thera&seavas the larger of the rate determined by tmeigistrative agent (typically their prime
rate) or the Federal Funds Rate plus one-half peras each term was defined by the agreementriabla commitment fee was charged on
the unused amount of the revolver and was basedioquarterly average excess availability.

The 2007 Agreement was scheduled to mature in Deee®012, however, we repaid the $20 million oudiag and terminated this
revolving credit facility in December 2011 in congiion with the addition of our first-lien term lo@nd letter of credit facility. As a result,
we expensed $0.5 million of unamortized debt ismsts related to the revolving credit facility ascenponent of interest expense, net.

Floating Rate Notes due 2012

As of December 31, 2010, we had $5.3 million inraggte principal amount of Floating Rate Notes Eeleruary 15, 2012 (“2012
notes”). Interest accrued at a rate of LIBOR plizs%. LIBOR was reset at the beginning of eachtgulgrperiod. During 2011, we repaid
the remaining $5.3 million of 2012 notes.

First-Lien Term Loan and Letter of Credit Facility

In December 2011, we completed a $160.0 milliostfien term loan that included detachable warréwds allow for the purchase of up
to 1.6 million shares of our common stock at a@o€$2.50 per share. These warrants were exeheiBamediately upon issuance and ex|
in December 2018. At the same time, we enteredargand-alone letter of credit facility (“lettefrayedit facility”), which provides for the
issuance of up to $20.0 million of letters of cte@he term loan and the letter of credit facibitye both scheduled to mature on September 30,
2015. The term loan, which was issued at 97%, pexi$119.6 million of net proceeds after repayhe$20.0 million outstanding under the
existing senior secured revolving credit faciliaging $14.2 million to collateralize letters of diteoutstanding under the new letter of credit
facility, and paying fees and expenses relatetitottansaction.

The term loan is collateralized by a first liensabstantially all of our assets, and is guaranigeall of our subsidiaries. Interest accr
on the loan at 3-month LIBOR (subject to a 2% fjqdus 9.5%. The weighted average interest ratiherorrowings outstanding under the
term loan was 11.5% at December 31, 2011. Interesite term loan is payable quarterly in arreatsary time we can redeem some or all of
the loan at a redemption price equal to par pluapolicable prepayment premium that declines ratetbpar.

Our term loan contains financial covenants, whigtuide maintaining a minimum amount of qualifiedltand specified collateral
value. Qualified cash is defined as the amounnoéstricted cash and cash equivalents held in deprosecurities accounts which are subject
to control agreements in favor of our lenders. @edl cash must be at least $35.0 million at alieds. Specified collateral value is defined as
the amount of qualified cash at such time, plu®ants receivable and inventory which meet specifigeria within the term loan agreement.
The value of inventory is limited to 122.222% oé thet amount of accounts receivable from Novembdhrdugh March 1, and to 100.0% of
the net amount of accounts receivable at all dihegs during the year. The minimum specified cellat value must equal at least $160
million during the period from March 2 through Olotr 31 of each year and at least $150 million dutire balance of the year. At
December 31, 2011, our qualified cash was $146llemand our specified collateral value was $29®i8ion. The term loan contains other
restrictive covenants, which, among other thingkite to the payment of dividends, incurrence débtedness, repurchase of common stock
or other distributions, asset sales and investm&vswere not in violation of any of these covesaitDecember 31, 2011.

The letter of credit facility includes a commitmédaé of 0.5% on any unused amount and assessessingt a rate of 2.0% on any
outstanding letters of credit. All letters of creidsued under the letter of credit facility mustdwllateralized by cash equal to 105% of their
face amount.
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We have outstanding letters of credit totaling $1illion under our 2007 Agreement that principallypport our self-retention
insurance programs. Upon termination of the 200feAment, we were required to collateralize alelstof credit outstanding under that
agreement at 105% of the issued amounts. As suelssued $13.5 million of letters of credit undes tetter of credit facility as collateral.
Letters of credit issued under this facility arguieed to be collateralized at 105%. We collatesdithese letters of credit with $14.2 million
of restricted cash, of which $1.9 million was irddal in other assets, net. In 2012, we intend toalahe $12.8 million of outstanding letters
of credit under the 2007 Agreement and reissue tmeaher the letter of credit facility, thus resudtim a reduction of the total amount of let:
of credit outstanding.

Rights Offering and Debt Exchang

In January 2010, we completed a common stock rigiiésing and debt exchange for our 2012 notespdys of these transactions, we
raised $180.1 million of new equity capital throupk issuance of 51,459,184 shares of common &tdtle rights offering at a subscription
price of $3.50 per share. We used $105.1 milliothefproceeds from the rights offering to repureh@aportion of the 2012 notes in the debt
exchange. We used a portion of the remaining $7#ll®n of proceeds to pay expenses of the rigfftsrmmg and the debt exchange and the
remainder was used for general corporate purposes.

In the debt exchange, holders of the 2012 notelsamged, at par, $269.8 million aggregate princgpabunt of 2012 notes for (i) $13¢
million aggregate principal amount of Second Ptyo8enior Secured Floating Rate Notes due 2016162mtes”), (ii) $105.1 million in cash
from the proceeds of the rights offering, and {#ii} 12,244 shares of our common stock. We also detethe indenture under which the 2012
notes were issued to eliminate substantially athefrestrictive covenants, certain conditionsefedsance, and certain events of default a
release the liens on the collateral securing tHe? 2dtes. As a result of the debt exchange, wecestiour indebtedness by $130.0 million and
extended the maturity of $139.7 million of indebteds until 2016. There was no gain or loss receghnin the extinguishment of the 2012
notes since the notes were exchanged at par valwash and common stock which had a closing pricéhe transaction date that was equal
to the exchange price of $3.50 per share.

In connection with our rights offering and debt lexnge, we incurred approximately $9.4 million ofigas third-party fees and
expenses. Of the total costs incurred, $0.5 milli@t of insurance recoveries, related to theesattht of the consolidated class and derivative
action lawsuit involving our initial recapitalizati plans and $2.6 million primarily related to #pecial committee formed to review and
respond to the recapitalization proposal. Substiytll of these costs were incurred and expems@009 as a component of selling, general
and administrative expenses. The remaining $6.Bomibf costs incurred were considered to be diyaetiated to the issuance of the comn
stock and the 2016 notes in the rights offering éelot exchange. These costs were allocated toethisathd equity based on their relative fair
value to the total consideration issued in thesaation. Accordingly, $3.7 million was allocatedhe rights offering and recorded as a
reduction to additional paid-in capital in the figaarter of 2010. The remaining $2.6 million oftowere allocated to the 2016 notes and
expensed primarily in the first quarter of 201Gaaomponent of interest expense, net. The debegehwas considered to be a modificat
and therefore, any third-party costs were expeasddcurred. In addition, $1.6 million of unamoetizdebt issue costs related to the 2012
notes that were extinguished as part of the trdissawere expensed in the first quarter of 2010 alsd included in interest expense, net. The
remaining $1.9 million of unamortized debt issusts@re being amortized over the term of the outlitg floating rate notes.

Second Priority Senior Secured Floating Rate Nothse 201€

As of December 31, 2011, we have $139.7 millioaggregate principal amount of 2016 notes that reatnrFebruary 15, 2016. Inter
accrues on the 2016 notes at a 3-month LIBOR (stijea 3.0% floor) plus 10.0%. LIBOR is resettat beginning of each quarterly period.
The weighted-average interest rate at Decembe2(@®l, for the 2016 notes was 13.0%. Interest or2@i® notes is payable quarterly in
arrears. At any time we can redeem some or al®®016 notes at a redemption price equal to pargkpecified premium that declines
ratably to par. In the event of a change in conts@ may be required to offer to purchase the 2uités at a purchase price equal to 101% of
the principal, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

The 2016 notes are jointly and severally guaranbseall of our subsidiaries and collateralized kpyledge of common stock of certain
of our subsidiaries and by a second priority liersabstantially all tangible and intangible propemd interests in property and proceeds
thereof now owned or hereafter acquired by us abgtantially all of our subsidiaries. All of thetmidiaries are wholly-owned and domiciled
in the United States. The parent company has reperdent assets or operations, and the guaramésigl and unconditional. The indenture
covering the 2016 notes contains certain resteatwenants, which, among other things, relateégayment of dividends, incurrence of
indebtedness, repurchase of common stock or otbibdtions, asset sales and investments.
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Interest Rate Swap

We entered into interest rate swaps in the pastdar to mitigate a portion of the interest ragk that we were exposed to in the normal
course of business on our floating rate notes. ¥ktvo interest rate swap agreements with notiamadunts of $100 million and $50 millic
which expired in May 2011.

Fair Value

TheFair Value Measurements and Disclosutegic of the Codification provides a framework foeasuring the fair value of assets and
liabilities and establishes a fair value hierartigt requires an entity to maximize the use of nlzd#e inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.f@lievalue hierarchy can be summarized as follows:

Level 1 — unadjusted quoted prices for identicakss or liabilities in active markets accessiblaiby
Level 2 — inputs that are observable in the mailketother than those inputs classified as Level 1
Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable in the ntpikee and significant to the valuation

If a financial instrument uses inputs that faltifferent levels of the hierarchy, the instrumeiit e categorized based upon the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair valealculation.

The only financial instruments measured at faiugadn a recurring basis were our warrants andxpigesl interest rate swaps.

The tables below present the effect of our denreafiinancial instruments on the consolidated statesof operations for the years
ended December 31 (in thousands):

Amount of
Amount of Loss Location of Loss Reclassified
Derivatives Designated Recognized in OCI* Loss Reclassified from OCI Into Income*
as Hedging Instruments 2011 2010 2009 from OCI into Income 2011 2010 2009
Interest rate swaps $ — $ — $ (3,357) Interest expense, r $ — $ — $ (6,08¢)
Amount of Loss

Derivatives Not Designated Recognized in Income*
as Hedging Instruments Location of Loss Recognized in Income 2011 2010 2009
Interest rate swaps Interest expense, n $ (2,165 $ (3,809 $ —
Warrants Interest expense, n (73€) — —

Total $ (290) $ (3809 $ —

* Net of tax

We use the income approach to value our warrantssimg the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. lgsihis model, the risk-free
interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yiefdecin effect on the valuation date. The expetiteds based on the period of time until the
expiration of the warrants. Expected volatilitypased on the historical volatility of our commoacht over the most recent period equal to the
expected life of the warrants. The expected dividgrld is based on our history of not paying regulividends in the past and our current
intention to not pay regular dividends in the feable future.

We do not trade in swaps or hold them for speatdgtiurposes, therefore, the retail market thatekis swaps would have been the
most advantageous market for our interest rate swepsuch, we used the market approach to valugmtasest rate swaps by obtaining a
guote from the counterparty that was based oncdiged cash flow analysis which incorporated imfation obtained from third-party
market sources and was adjusted for company specédit risk. We validated the fair value quotéaited from the counterparty by using
independent, third-party discounted cash flow asialwhich also utilized market information. In atitzh to the term and notional amount
inputs, the valuation also factored in discourng rétrward yield curves, and credit risk.
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These techniques incorporate Level 1 and Levepd@ts Significant inputs to the derivative valuatfor interest rate swaps and
warrants are observable in the active markets emdlassified as Level 2 in the hierarchy.

The following fair value hierarchy table presemformation about our financial instruments measuatefdir value on a recurring basis
using significant other observable inputs (Levefi@)thousands):

Carrying Value Carrying Value
Fair Value Fair Value
Measurement as ¢ Measurement as ¢
As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2011 December 31, 201 2010 December 31, 201
Interest rate swaps (included in
Accrued liabilities) $ — $ — $ 2,20¢ $ 2,20¢
Warrants (included in Other long-
term liabilities) 2,33¢ 2,33¢€ — —
Total $ 2,33¢ $ 2,33¢ $ 2,20¢ $ 2,20¢

We have elected to continue to report the valuguofterm loan and floating rate notes at amortizest. The fair value of the floating
rate notes at December 31, 2011, was approxim@igl@.0 million. The carrying value of the term laarDecember 31, 2011, approximates
fair value.

Other Long-Term Debt

In 2006, we completed construction on a new multppse facility. Based on the evaluation of thestauttion project in accordance
with theLeasegopic of the Codification, we were deemed the owafahe facility during the construction periodfédtively, a sale and
leaseback of the facility occurred when constructias completed and the lease term began. Thisacéion did not qualify for sale-
leaseback accounting. As a result, the buildingthedffsetting long-term lease obligation are uield on the consolidated balance sheet as ¢
component of fixed assets and other long-term debpectively. The building is being depreciatedrats useful life, and the lease obligation
is being amortized such that there will be no gaitoss recorded if the lease is not extendedeaétid of the term.

Future maturities of long-term debt as of Decen#igr2011 were as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 3

2012 $ 54
2013 60
2014 67
2015 160,07:
2016 139,80:
Thereafte 3,747

Total lon¢-term debt (including current portio $303,80:

9. Employee StockBased Compensation
2007 Incentive Plan

Under our 2007 Incentive Plan (“2007 Plan”), the@any is authorized to grant awards in the forrmoéntive stock options, non-
qualified stock options, restricted stock, othemowon stock-based awards and chabed awards. In January 2010, our shareholdere\agg
an amendment to our 2007 Plan which increaseduhbar of shares of common stock that may be grgnieshiant to awards under the 2
Plan from 2.5 million shares to 7.0 million sharEse maximum number of common shares reservedéogtant of awards under the 2007
Plan is 7.0 million, subject to adjustment as piledi by the 2007 Plan. No more than 7.0 million ehanay be made subject to options or
stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) granted under 2007 Plan, and no more than 3.5 million shargsleanade subject to stock-based
awards other than options or SARs. Stock optiois@kRs granted under the 2007 Plan may not haearadxceeding 10 years from the
date of grant. The 2007 Plan also provides thavadirds will become fully vested and/or exercisalgen a change in control (as defined in
the 2007 Plan). Other specific terms for awardstgunder the 2007 Plan shall be determined by oumpensation Committee (or the bc
of directors if so determined by the board of divex). Historically, awards granted under the 2BGh generally vest ratably over a three to
four-year period. As of December 31, 2011, 1.3iotnilkhares were available for issuance under tB& P@an, 1.3 million of which may be
made subject to stock-based awards other thannsptioSARS.
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2005 Equity Incentive Plan

Under our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (“2005 Plamiy are authorized to grant stock-based awardseifiorm of incentive stock
options, non-qualified stock options, restricteatktand other common stock-based awards. The maximumber of common shares
reserved for the grant of awards under the 2005 BI2.2 million, subject to adjustment as provithgdhe 2005 Plan. No more than
2.2 million shares may be made subject to optiar&ARs granted under the 2005 Plan, and no moreltHamillion shares may be made
subject to stoclbased awards other than options or SARs. Stockmptnd SARs granted under the 2005 Plan may metdgéerm exceedi
10 years from the date of grant. The 2005 Plan@iseides that all awards will become fully vestadi/or exercisable upon a change in
control (as defined in the 2005 Plan). Other spetérms for awards granted under the 2005 Plat isbaletermined by our board of direct
(or a committee of its members). Historically, assagranted under the 2005 Plan generally vestlyataler a three-year period. As of
December 31, 2011, 655,000 shares were availablesaance under the 2005 Plan, 346,000 of which mamade subject to stock-based
awards other than options or SARs.

1998 Stock Incentive Plan

Under the Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1998 Stocleirive Plan (“1998 Plan”), we were authorized suésshares of common stock
pursuant to awards granted in various forms, irinlyithcentive stock options, non-qualified stockiops and other stock-based awards. The
1998 Plan also authorized the sale of common siodlerms determined by our board of directors.

Stock options granted under the 1998 Plan genechffwest after a period of seven to nine yeaithwertain option grants subject to
acceleration if certain financial targets were niéte expiration date is generally 10 years subs#doedate of issuance. As of January 1,
2005, no further grants will be made under the 1PB&.

In 2011, our board of directors approved a ten ga&ension of the option termination date for alistanding awards under the 1998
Plan. These awards originally had a contractualdfften years and were set to expire at varionegiwithin the next three years. No other
terms and conditions of the original agreementeweodified. This extension of the option terminatiate was treated as a modification of
the original options. The compensation expenséi®incremental difference between the fair valigne modified options and the fair value
of the original options on the date of modificatioeflecting the current facts and circumstancethermodification date, was recorded
immediately as all of the modified awards wereyfwiésted and the modification only changed theooptermination date. The $0.9 million
additional stock compensation expense is includestlling, general and administrative expensesii®year ended December 31, 2011, ir
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

The following table summarizes our stock optionatgt

Weighted Weighted
Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Intrinsic
Options Price Years Value
(In
(In thousands; thousands
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 5,96¢ $ 3.92
Granted — $ —
Exercisec — $ —
Forfeited (239 $ 3.94
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 5,731 $ 3.92 8.3 $ —
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 2,071 $ 5.21 8.5 $ —

The outstanding options at December 31, 2011 imcbptions to purchase 3,964,000 shares granted threl2007 Plan, 790,000 shares
granted under the 2005 Plan and 977,000 shares tired2998 Plan. As of December 31, 2011, optionsurchase 309,000 shares under the
2007 Plan, 790,000 shares under the 2005 Plan&hA0D shares under the 1998 Plan awards wereigadaiee The weighted average grant
date fair value of options granted during the yerated December 31, 2010 was $2.54 per share. Nm@wards were granted during 2011
and 2009. The total intrinsic value of options eisrd during the year ended December 31, 2009 @:2sriillion. We realized no tax benel
for stock options exercised during the year endedehber 31, 2009. No options were exercised in 20812010.
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Outstanding and exercisable stock options at Deeeib, 2011 were as follows (shares in thousands):

Qutstanding Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Avergge

Average Remaining Average

Exercise Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Shares Price Years Shares Price
$3.15 977 $ 3.1t 11.C 972 $ 3.1t
$3.19- $3.24 3,65¢ $ 3.1¢ 8.1 — $ —
$6.70- $7.15 1,09¢ $ 7.02 6.3 1,09¢ $ 7.02
$3.15- $7.15 5,731 $ 3.92 8.3 2,071 $ 5.21

The following table summarizes restricted stochvitytfor the year ended December 31, 2011 (shardéisousands):

Weighted
Average Grant

Shares Date Fair Value

Nonvested at December 31, 2(C 1,86¢ $ 3.0¢
Granted 68 $ 2.2
Vested (10¢) $ 2.2¢4
Forfeited (30) $ 3.1¢
Nonvested at December 31, 2(C 1,79¢ $ 3.11

Our results of operations included stock compeasakpense of $4.6 million ($4.6 million net of ¢z, $4.3 million ($4.3 million net
of taxes) and $2.9 million ($2.9 million net of &8} for the years ended December 31, 2011, 201Q@0®} respectively. As of December 31,
2011, there was $7.4 million of total unrecognizedhpensation cost related to non-vested share-lzasepensation arrangements granted
under the Plans. That cost is expected to be réegdjover a weighted-average period of 2.1 years.

10. Facility Closure Costs

During 2011, we developed and executed plans gedige facilities: a distribution facility and aamufacturing facility in South
Carolina, a distribution facility in Georgia, a glibution facility in Maryland, and a manufacturifegility in Florida. We also idled a
manufacturing facility in South Carolina. Of thedifacilities we closed in 2011, two of the distitilon facilities and one of the manufactur
facilities were previously idled. These previouslied facilities were closed due to the continuegréssed market conditions, the housing
recovery taking longer than originally anticipatedr ability to adequately service our customengifiother existing locations in the market,
and in one location our success in finding a subteto partially offset our remaining future leadsigations. In 2011, we recognized $2.6
million in expense, which was primarily relatedfdure minimum lease obligations on our vacatedifes, net of estimated sub-rental lease
income. Of the $2.6 million we recognized in expedaring 2011, $2.5 million was included in fagildlosure costs and $0.1 million was
included in interest expense, net in the accompangdnsolidated statement of operations.

During 2010, we idled six facilities: two distrithom facilities in South Carolina, two manufacturifagilities in Florida, and two
manufacturing facilities in Maryland. We also cldsmne distribution facility in South Carolina. Wecognized $0.7 million in expense, which
was primarily related to employee severance amditation benefits for these idled and closed faegiand revisions to sub-rental income
estimates on other closed facilities. Of the $0illian recognized in expense during 2010, $0.6 watuded in facility closure costs and $0.1
million was included in interest expense, net i dlccompanying consolidated statement of operations

During 2009, we developed and executed a plaroech distribution facility in Maryland and an adisirative facility in South
Carolina. In 2009, we recognized $1.4 million irperse, which was primarily related to future minimiease obligations on these vacated
facilities, net of estimated sub-rental lease inepas well as lease termination costs and revismaab-rental income estimates. Of the $1.4
million we recognized in expense during 2009, $tilion was included in facility closure costs a$@.2 million was included in interest
expense, net in the accompanying consolidatednséateof operations.
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An analysis of our facility closure reserves foe theriods reflected is as follows:

2009 Additions Payments 2010 Additions Payments 2011
(In thousands)

Facility and other exit costs, net of estimated-ase rental

income $2,33C $ 48t $(1,07) $1,747 $2,57¢ $(1,177) $3,14¢
Employee severance and termination ben — 24¢€ (234) 12 10 (22 —
Total facility closure reserv $2,33C $ 734 $(1,309) $1,75¢ $2,58¢ $(1,199 $3,14¢

The facility and other exit cost reserves of $3illiom at December 31, 2011, of which $2.2 millimrecorded as other long-term
liabilities, are primarily related to future minimulease payments on vacated facilities.

As plans to close facilities are developed and etesl; assets that can be used at other faciliteeransferred and assets to be
abandoned or sold are written down to their ndizaisle value, including any long-lived assetssitnations where multiple facilities serve
the same market we may temporary close, or idtéljtfas with plans to reopen these facilities onlegnand returns to the market. At
December 31, 2011, we had eight idled facilitibse¢ in Florida, three in South Carolina and twiaryland. In these situations, finite lived
assets continue to be depreciated and assessetpirment. Should conditions in our markets wors@rrecovery take significantly longer
than forecasted, we may temporarily idle or perméypelose additional facilities, at which time wey incur additional facility closure costs
or asset impairment charges. Future non-cash imeair charges would have the effect of decreasingaunings or increasing our losses in
such period, but would not impact our current aurtding debt obligations or compliance with covesamantained in the related debt
agreements. We continuously monitor economic canitin all our markets, and while at the presgnétthere are no plans to close or idle
additional facilities, changes in market conditionay warrant future closings or idling of facilsie

11. Income Taxes
The components of income tax expense (benefitided in continuing operations were as follows far years ended December 31:

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Current:
Federa $ — $ (99 $(31,73¢)
State 40C 221 502
40C 123 (31,239
Deferred:
Federal 1,68¢ (1,384 37¢
State 12¢ 14¢ 33
1,815 (1,235 411
Income tax expense (benet $2,217 $(1,117) $(30,82)
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Temporary differences, which give rise to defert@dassets and liabilities, were as follows as e€&nber 31:

2011 2010
(In thousands)
Deferred tax assets related

Accrued expense $ 581 $ 462
Insurance reserve 2,63¢ 3,10¢
Facility closure reserve 2,097 1,77¢
Stocl-based compensation expel 6,28¢ 4,692
Accounts receivabl 553 714
Inventories 1,36¢ 1,30:
Operating loss and credit carryforwal 92,05: 67,25¢
Interest rate swap agreeme — 773
Goodwill and other intangible ass: 4,51( 5,51¢
Property, plant and equipme 5,742 5,66¢
Other 482 42F
116,30: 91,69¢
Valuation allowanct (112,39) (87,669
Total deferred tax asse 3,911 4,034
Deferred tax liabilities related t
Prepaid expenst 1,19 1,261
Goodwill and other intangible ass: 6,99¢ 6,54¢
Total deferred tax liabilitie 8,19¢ 7,81(
Net deferred tax liabilit $ (4,289 $ (3,776

A reconciliation of the statutory federal incomg tate to our effective rate for continuing opesas is provided below for the years
ended December 31.:

2011 2010 2009
Statutory federal income tax rate 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal income 3.6 3.3 31
Effect of changes in tax la — — 2.4
Valuation allowanct (41.¢) (37.7) (4.9
Other (0.7) — (1.0
(3.6% 1.2% 35.1%

We have $536.2 million of state operating lossycéwrwards, which includes $2.8 million of state taredit carry-forwards expiring at
various dates through 2032. We also have $185libmif federal net operating loss carry-forwardattwill expire at various dates through
2032. The federal and state operating loss camyels exclude approximately $1.8 million of gresadfall tax benefits from stock option
exercises that have not been recorded as of Dece8tib2011. These deferred tax assets will be dezbas an increase to additional paid in
capital when the related tax benefits are realized.

We evaluate our deferred tax assets on a qualiaslg to determine whether a valuation allowancedsired. We assess whether a
valuation allowance should be established basesliodetermination of whether it is more likely thaot that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. In lighthe continued downturn in the housing market gaeduncertainty as to its length and
magnitude, we have been in a cumulative loss posftr the past few years. Cumulative losses iemegears represent significant negative
evidence in considering whether deferred tax aggetsealizable, and also generally preclude rglgim projections of future taxable income
to support the recovery of deferred tax assetsukh, we recorded a valuation allowance of appratetg $26.1 million, $35.4 million, and
$3.9 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectivedyated to our continuing operations. In connectidgth the expiration of our interest rate
swaps during the current year, we reclassified #iillBon of valuation allowance from accumulatethet comprehensive loss to income tax
expense in 2011. We excluded the deferred taxitiabirelated to certain indefinite lived intantgib when calculating the amount of valua
allowance needed as these liabilities cannot bsidered as a source of income when determiningethiezability of the net deferred tax
assets. The valuation allowance was recorded edugtion to income tax benefit.

The deferred tax assets for which there is no Viaallowance relate to amounts that can be redlihrough future reversals of
existing taxable temporary differences or throughdeneration of sufficient taxable income. Todktent we generate sufficient taxable
income in the future to fully utilize the tax beitefof the net deferred tax assets on which a vialnallowance was recorded, our effective
rate may decrease as the valuation allowance é&sed.
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The following table shows the changes in our véaduaallowance:

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Balance at January $ 87,66« $52,83¢ $51,05¢
Additions charged to expens
Continuing operation 26,09( 35,39 3,88:
Discontinued operatior 147 46¢ —
Deductions (1,509 (1,03%) (2,100
Balance at December 2 $112,39. $87,66¢ $52,83¢

On November 6, 2009, the Worker, Homeownership,Buginess Assistance Act of 2009 was enacted avtcahd extended the carry-
back period to up to five years for which curreaetiylosses can be offset against previously gestetakable income. Due to this federal tax
legislation, we were able to carry back losses gead in 2009 against taxable income generate8@3,2005, and 2004. As a result, we
recorded an income tax receivable of approxima8B.8 million in 2009. We recognized an incomeliarefit of $2.1 million in continuing
operations related to losses generated by ourmlisc®d operations due to this change in tax lawstdte in which we file adopted the Act,
and as such no state benefits were realized frerextended carry-back provision.

We accrue interest and penalties on our uncemaipasitions as a component of our provision fopine taxes. We accrued interest
penalties of $0.0 million, $0.1 million and $0.1llipin in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. We hadtal of $0.4 and $0.4 million accrued
for interest and penalties for our uncertain tagifpons as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respabgtiv

The following table shows the changes in the amof@iour uncertain tax positions (exclusive of tfitee of interest and penalties):

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Balance at January $2,06¢ $2,39¢ $1,291
Tax positions taken in prior perioc

Gross increase 18 2 22

Gross decreast — (329 —
Tax positions taken in current peric

Gross increase 17¢ 10t 1,08¢
Lapse of applicable statute of limitatic — (110 D)
Balance at December 2 $2,251 $2,06¢ $2,39¢

If our uncertain tax positions were recognizedendiit of $0.4 million, net of any U.S. Federal teenefit, would affect our effective
income tax rate.

We are subject to U.S. federal income tax as veeitheome tax of multiple state jurisdictions. Basedcompleted examinations and the
expiration of statutes of limitations, we have daded all U.S. federal income tax matters for yelarsugh 2004. We report in 17 states with
various years open to examination.

12. Employee Benefit Plans

We maintain one active defined contribution 40X(lan. Our employees are eligible after completimgrsonths of employment to
participate in the Builders FirstSource, Inc. 4QFRlan. Participants can contribute up to 15% efrtannual compensation, subject to
federally mandated maximums. Participants are imatelg vested in their own contributions. We magctertain percentage of the
contributions made by participating employees, acijo IRS limitations. Our matching contributicar® subject to a pro-rata five-year
vesting schedule. We recognized expense of $01®mif0.3 million and $0.8 million in 2011, 20182009, respectively, for contributions
to the plan.
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13. Commitments and Contingencies

We lease certain land, buildings and equipment usegerations. These leases are generally acabfmtes operating leases with
initial terms ranging from one to 20 years and galhecontain renewal options. Certain operatirgskes are subject to contingent rentals
based on various measures, primarily consumer prétex increases. Total rent expense under opgrkgases was approximately $22.3
million, $27.1 million and $31.6 million for the ges ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, resgect

In addition, we have residual value guaranteeseotain equipment leases. Under these leases wetliaweption of (a) purchasing the
equipment at the end of the lease term, (b) armanfgir the sale of the equipment to a third pawty(c) returning the equipment to the lessc
sell the equipment. If the sales proceeds in asg aae less than the residual value, we are refjtoreeimburse the lessor for the deficiency
up to a specified level as stated in each leasseagent. If the sales proceeds exceed the residlsd,wve are entitled to all of such excess
amounts. The guarantees under these leases fasideal values of equipment at the end of theaetbge operating lease periods
approximated $1.0 million as of December 31, 2@ased upon the expectation that none of thesedesssets will have a residual value at
the end of the lease term that is materially lbas the value specified in the related operatiagdeagreement or that we will purchase the
equipment at the end of the lease term, we do el@\Je it is probable that we will be required tmd any amounts under the terms of these
guarantee arrangements. Accordingly, no accruais haen recognized for these guarantees.

Future minimum commitments for noncancelable ojpegdeases with initial or remaining lease termsxaess of one year are as
follows:

Related Party Total*
(In thousands)

Year ending December 3

2012 $ 111¢ $19,31¢
2013 82t 15,47¢
2014 51¢ 13,81¢
2015 163 10,64
2016 — 7,56¢
Thereafte — 15,60¢

$ 262 $82,42;

* Includes related party future minimum commitmeatsibncancelable operating leas:

We have outstanding letters of credit totaling $1illion under our 2007 Agreement that principallypport our self-retention
insurance programs. Upon termination of the 200f/eAment, we were required to collateralize alekstof credit outstanding under that
agreement at 105% of the issued amounts. As suelssued $13.5 million of letters of credit undes tetter of credit facility as collateral.
Letters of credit issued under this facility arguieed to be collateralized at 105%. We collatesdithese letters of credit with $14.2 million
of restricted cash. In 2012, we intend to canceldth2.8 million of outstanding letters of credidenthe 2007 Agreement and reissue them
under the letter of credit facility, thus resultimga reduction of the total amount of letters @fdit outstanding.

In the third quarter of 2010, we received $1.2 ionllfrom a litigation settlement. This settlemer@swecorded as a reduction of selling,
general and administrative expenses in the accoymmaoonsolidated statement of operations in 2010.

In the third quarter of 2009, we were named asminal defendant, and our directors named as deféada a consolidated class and
derivative action lawsuit and an additional derivaiaction lawsuit related to our initial recapitaktion plans. The additional lawsuit was
consolidated in October 2009 with the earlier fil@d'suits. In December 2009, the Delaware Cou@ludncery approved the proposed
settlement of this consolidated class and derieadstion lawsuit. The terms of the settlement atéasth in the definitive Stipulation and
Agreement of Compromise, Settlement, and Releaagragd to in November 2009. We paid $2.4 millimecember 2009 in accordance
with the terms of the settlement. Based on an ageeéwith our insurance carrier this amount waseetqd to be reimbursed under our
insurance policy and therefore, was included irepthceivables in our consolidated balance sheet Bscember 31, 2009. We also incurred
additional legal fees and other administrative £oslated to the lawsuit of approximately $0.5 imillwhich were expensed in the
consolidated statement of operations in 2009. briry 2010, we were reimbursed under our insurantiey for the full amount of the
settlement payment.
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We are a party to various legal proceedings irotidénary course of business. Although the ultindigposition of these proceedings
cannot be predicted with certainty, managemenebes the outcome of any claim that is pending i@atened, either individually or on a
combined basis, will not have a material adverfecebn our consolidated financial position, cdslwé or results of operations. However,
there can be no assurances that future costs wotilde material to our results of operations anitity for a particular period.

14. Segment and Product Information

We have three regional operating segments — AtdaBtutheast and Central with centralized financial and operational oversiye
believe that these operating segments meet thegajipn criteria prescribed in tisgment Reportingpic of the Codification, and thus he
one reportable segment.

Sales by product category were as follows for sy ended December 31:

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Prefabricated componer $147,60¢ $135,46¢ $129,78:
Windows & doors 183,31: 161,07¢ 163,95:.
Lumber & lumber sheet goo 225,00: 201,44! 164,62
Millwork 81,571 75,84 72,79¢
Other building products & servici 141,59: 126,50° 146,72¢
Total sales $779,09: $700,34. $677,88t

15. Related Party Transactions

An affiliate of JLL Partners, Inc. is a principaeficial owner of PGT, Inc. Floyd F. Sherman, prasident and chief executive offic
serves on the board of directors for PGT, Inc. Wielpased windows from PGT, Inc. totaling $3.8 roilli $2.7 million and $3.0 million in
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. We had accqayable to PGT, Inc. in the amounts of $0.6 milléord $0.3 million as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

In 2011, 2010 and 2009, we paid approximately $ilkon, $1.3 million and $1.3 million, respectiyelin rental expense to employees
or our non-affiliate stockholders for leases ofdamd buildings.

As of December 31, 2009, JLL Partners, Inc. andbi#ay Pincus indirectly owned $97.8 million aggregptincipal amount of our 20:
notes which were purchased during 2009 in the pubérket. Interest was paid on these notes duh@géear in accordance with the terms of
the 2012 notes. In connection with the rights dfigiand debt exchange discussed in Note 8, JLLWaburg Pincus each exercised rights to
acquire 12.9 million shares of common stock attessription price of $3.50 per share and exchanigeid 2012 notes for $80.1 million in ce
and $17.7 million of common stock, or 5.1 millidmeses. We also agreed to reimburse JLL Partnersahd Warburg Pincus for all
reasonable and actual out-of-pocket expenses eatimrconnection with the recapitalization transan.

16. Concentrations

We maintain cash at financial institutions in exxcetfederally insured limits. Accounts receivaptgentially expose us to
concentrations of credit risk. We provide credithie normal course of business to customers ineidential construction industry. We
perform ongoing credit evaluations of our custonzard maintain allowances for potential credit lss&ecause customers are dispersed
among our various markets, our credit risk to amg oustomer or state economy is not significant.

Our customer mix is a balance of large national &éomilders, regional homebuilders and local homeleudl. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, our top 10 customers accounteapproximately 23.3% of our sales, and no siegltomer accounted for more than
of sales.

We source products from a large number of supplidosmaterials purchased from any single suppéprasented more than 9% of our
total materials purchased in 2011.
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17. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information was as folloassthe years ended December 31:

Cash payments for intere

Cash payments (refunds) for income ta

Supplemental schedule of r-cash financing activities

Issuance of common stock to extinguish ¢

18. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

()
(6)

(7)
(8)

2011 2010
(In thousands)
$22,75¢ $ 24,26:
257 (33,53))
— 24,89:

2009

$ 23,64¢
(32,759

The following tables summarize the consolidatedguly results of operations for 2011 and 2010tfiousands, except per share
amounts):

Net sales
Gross margir
Loss from continuing operatiol

Loss from discontinued operations, net

of tax
Net loss
Basic and diluted net loss per sh
Loss from continuing operatiol
Loss from discontinued
operations

Net loss

Net sales
Gross margir
Loss from continuing operatiol

Loss from discontinued operations, net

of tax
Net loss
Basic and diluted net loss per sh
Loss from continuing operatiol
Loss from discontinued
operations

Net loss

2011
First Quarter Second Quartel Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
$ 162,82¢ $ 206,39 $ 217,19: $ 192,67
31,43: 42,80: 44,43¢ 39,27(
(21,149 (1) (15,379(2) (11,469 (3) (16,645(4)
(101 (109) (101 (53)
(21,249 (15,489 (11,569 (16,699
$  (0.22(1) $ (0.16)(2) $  (0.19(3) $ (0.18)(4)
(0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)
$ (0.229) $ (0.16) $ (0.19) $ (0.19
2010
First Quarter Second Quarte: Third Quarter. Fourth Quarter
$ 161,37: $ 211,48 $ 180,39: $ 147,09:
29,43: 38,73t 35,52¢ 28,06!
(31,200(5) (18,920(6) (19,675(7) (24,499 (8)
(18€) (119) (795) (115)
(31,386 (19,039 (20,470) (24,619
$  (0.39(5) $ (0.20)(6) $  (0.20)(7) $ (0.26)(8)
(0.00) (0.00) (0.09) (0.00)
$ (0.39 $ (0.20) $ (0.22) $ (0.26)

Includes transaction costs of $0.9 million as disewd in Note 8 and a valuation allowance of $8llianias discussed in Note 1

Includes facility closure costs of $1.9 milliondiscussed in Note 10 and a valuation allowancesd hillion as discussed in Note :

Includes a valuation allowance of $4.7 million &cdssed in Note 1.

Includes write-off of deferred financing cosfs$0.5 million as discussed in Note 8, facilitpslire costs of $0.4 million as discussed in

Note 10, and a valuation allowance of $6.5 millaandiscussed in Note 1
Includes write-off of deferred financing cosfs$4.1 million as discussed in Note 8 and a vabumaallowance of $11.6 million as

discussed in Note 1

Includes a valuation allowance of $7.1 million &cdssed in Note 1.

Includes facility closure costs of $0.4 milliondiscussed iiNote 10 and a valuation allowance of $7.2 milliendéscussed in Note 1

Includes write-off of deferred financing cosfs$0.6 million as discussed in Note 8 and a vabmaallowance of $9.4 million as

discussed in Note 1
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Earnings per share is computed independently fdn ehthe quarters presented; therefore, the sutmeofuarterly earnings per share
may not equal the annual earnings per share.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls Evaluation and Related CEO &iD Certifications. Our management, with the participation of our gipal
executive officer (“CEO”) and principal financiaffizer (“CFO”), conducted an evaluation of the efigeness of the design and operation of
our disclosure controls and procedures as of theoéthe period covered by this annual report. @twtrols evaluation was conducted by our
Disclosure Committee, comprised of senior repreges@s from our finance, accounting, internal aualitd legal departments under the
supervision of our CEO and CFO.

Certifications of our CEO and our CFO, which arguieed in accordance with Rule 13a-14 of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934, as
amended (“Exchange Act”), are attached as exhibitsis annual report. This “Controls and Procedusection includes the information
concerning the controls evaluation referred tdhmd¢ertifications, and it should be read in conjiamcwith the certifications for a more
complete understanding of the topics presented.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Control¥e do not expect that our disclosure controlsnodedures will prevent all errors and all
fraud. A system of controls and procedures, noenabw well conceived and operated, can providg mdsonable, not absolute, assurance
that the objectives of the system are met. Becalee limitations in all such systems, no evaloattan provide absolute assurance that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, withe Company have been detected. Furthermoraggsign of any system of controls and
procedures is based in part upon certain assungpdibout the likelihood of future events, and thene be no assurance that any design will
succeed in achieving its stated goals under adlrgiatl future conditions, regardless of how unlkd@ecause of these inherent limitations in a
cost-effective system of controls and procedurésstaitements or omissions due to error or fraud ocayr and not be detected.

Scope of the Controls Evaluatioithe evaluation of our disclosure controls and edoces included a review of their objectives and
design, the Company'’s implementation of the costavld procedures and the effect of the controlgpanckdures on the information
generated for use in this annual report. In thesmof the evaluation, we sought to identify whetle had any data errors, control problems
or acts of fraud and to confirm that appropriate@ctive action, including process improvements,eAmeing undertaken if needed. This type
of evaluation is performed on a quarterly basithsb conclusions concerning the effectiveness oftieclosure controls and procedures can
be reported in our quarterly reports on FormQ@.Many of the components of our disclosure contemld procedures are also evaluated b
internal audit department, our legal departmentlangdersonnel in our finance organization. The allgals of these various evaluation
activities are to monitor our disclosure contraisl @rocedures on an ongoing basis, and to maititain as dynamic systems that change as
conditions warrant.

Conclusions regarding Disclosure ControlBased on the required evaluation of our disclosorgrols and procedures, our CEO and
CFO have concluded that, as of December 31, 20& Inaintained disclosure controls and procedurdsitbee effective in providing
reasonable assurance that information requiree widtlosed by us in the reports that we file dmsit under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pieni@ds specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, thatlsuch information is accumulated
and communicated to our management, including &® @nd CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely deaisicegarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finah&eporting. Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining
adequate internal control over financial reportiag such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of tlkelfange Act. Under the supervision and
with the participation of our management, including CEO and CFO, we conducted an evaluation oétteetiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting based on the frameworkigeh in Internal Control — Integrated Framewaoskued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Baseduwrevaluation under the framework set forth ireinal Control — Integrated
Framework, our management concluded that our iat&antrol over financial reporting was effectivea December 31, 2011.
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The effectiveness of the Company’s internal cortkar financial reporting as of December 31, 201k been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registmiblic accounting firm, as stated in their répdrich appears herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial RepoginDuring the quarter ended December 31, 2011, there no changes in our
internal control over financial reporting identiién connection with the evaluation described atbtbed have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our intereantrol over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART 1lI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goventce

The information required by this item appears in @efinitive proxy statement for our annual meetifigtockholders to be held May .
2012 under the captions “Proposal 1 — Election isé@ors,” “Continuing Directors,” “Information Regding the Board and Its
Committees,” “Corporate Governance,” “Section 1@aheficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” ancé&Eutive Officers of the
Registrant,” which information is incorporated harky reference.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Builders FirstSource, Inc. and its subsidiariessavor to do business according to the highestadthitd legal standards, complying
with both the letter and spirit of the law. Our bibaf directors approved a Code of Business ConalndtEthics that applies to our directors,
officers (including our principal executive officerincipal financial officer and controller) anchployees. Our Code of Business Conduct
Ethics is administered by a compliance committedang of representatives from our legal, humanuess, finance and internal audit
departments.

Our employees are encouraged to report any suspeiciations of laws, regulations and the Code o$iBess Conduct and Ethics, and
all unethical business practices. We provide cotirsly monitored hotlines for anonymous reportiggemployees.

Our board of directors has also approved a Suppisgh€ode of Ethics for the Chief Executive OfficBresident, and Senior Financial
Officers of Builders FirstSource, Inc., which is@distered by our general counsel.

Both of these policies are listed as exhibits te #mnual report on Form 10-K and can be foundién“investors” section of our
corporate Web site at: www.bldr.com.

Stockholders may request a free copy of theseipsllty contacting the Corporate Secretary, Buil&énstSource, Inc., 2001 Bryan
Street, Suite 1600, Dallas, Texas 75201, UniteteStaf America.

In addition, within four business days of:

* Any amendment to a provision of our Code of Businéenduct and Ethics or our Supplemental Codelut&for Chief
Executive Officer, President and Senior Financifflo®rs of Builders FirstSource, Inc. that applieour chief executive officer,
our chief financial officer or controller;

» The grant of any waiver, including an implicit waiy from a provision of one of these policies te afi these officers that relates
to one or more of the items set forth in Item 40@&fRegulation -K.

We will provide information regarding any such amerent or waiver (including the nature of any wajibe name of the person to
whom the waiver was granted and the date of thgexpon our Web site at the Internet address akave such information will be available
on our Web site for at least a inth period. In addition, we will disclose any ardments and waivers to our Code of Business Corahe
Ethics or our Supplemental Code of Ethics for CEieécutive Officer, President and Senior FinanGitlicers of Builders FirstSource, Inc. as
required by the listing standards of the NASDAQcRBtMarket LLC.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item appears in @efinitive proxy statement for our annual meetifigtockholders to be held May .
2012 under the captions “Executive Compensation@thér Information,” “Information Regarding the Bdaand its Committees —
Compensation of Directors,” and “Compensation Cottamilnterlocks and Insider Participation,” whidlfiarmation is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ainagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item appears indefinitive proxy statement for our annual meetiriggtockholders to be held on
May 23, 2012 under the caption “Ownership of Semsg'l and “Equity Compensation Plan Information fiieh information is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

The information required by this item appears in @efinitive proxy statement for our annual meetifigtockholders to be held May
2012 under the caption “Election of Directors andidgement Information,” “Information Regarding Bward and its Committees,” and
“Certain Relationships and Related Party Transastfovhich information is incorporated herein bjerence.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item appears in @efinitive proxy statement for our annual meetirfigtockholders to be held May .
2012 under the caption “Proposal 2 — Ratificatibiselection of Independent Registered Public ActiogrnFirm — Fees Paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,” which informatiomisarporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(@) (1) See the index to consolidated financiakstents provided in Item 8 for a list of the finedstatements filed as part of this
report.

(2) Financial statement schedules are omitted Isectiney are either not applicable or not material.

(3) The following documents are filed, furnishedrmorporated by reference as exhibits to this reg® required by Item 601 of
Regulation S-K.

Exhibit

Number Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioBuolders FirstSource, Inc. (incorporated by refege to Exhibit 3.1 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Registration Statement ®G@bmpany on Form S-1, filed with the Securitied Brchange Commission
on June 6, 2005, File Number -122788)

3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of Builders FirstSaurtc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2hite Company’s Current
Report on Form -K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia March 5, 2007, File Numbe-51357)

4.1 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Jan2arY010, among Builders FirstSource, Inc., JLUtas Fund V, L.P., and

Warburg Pincus Private Equity IX, L.P. (incorpodatey reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’sr€air Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodanuary 22, 2010, File Numbe-51357)
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4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.1C

Indenture, dated as of January 21, 2010, amongl&usilFirstSource, Inc., the Guarantors party theeatd Wilmington
Trust Company, as Trustee (incorporated by referém&xhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current ReporfFonm 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on January®2), File Number -51357)

Financing Agreement dated as of December 2, 20Zdndyamong Builders FirstSource, Inc., certairto$ubsidiaries as borrowe
certain of its subsidiaries as guarantors, Higlgei®nshore Senior Investments, LLC, Highbridgedipial Strategies — Senior
Loan Fund I, L.P., and Highbridge Senior Loan 8eét Investment Fund, L.P., as lenders, and Higlg®iPrincipal Strategies,
LLC, as collateral agent and administrative agerofporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany’s Current Report on
Form &K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia December 8, 2011, File Numb-51357)

Pledge and Security Agreement dated as of Decel#11 made by Builders FirstSource, Inc. andltssidiaries as grantors in
favor of Highbridge Principal Strategies, LLC, adlateral agent (incorporated by reference to EixHiB.2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia December 8, 2011, File Numb+-51357)

Warrant Issuance Agreement, dated as of Decemi2812, by and among Builders FirstSource, Inc. hHiglge Principal
Strategies — Senior Loan Fund Il, L.P., Highbri@yeshore Senior Investments, LLC, and Highbridge@drman Sector A
Investment Fund, L.P. (incorporated by referencéxbibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report onrr@-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Decembddi8,, File Number -51357)

Form of Warrant issued pursuant to the Warrantasse Agreement dated December 2, 2011 (incorpobsteeference to Exhibit
4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-kedfiwith the Securities and Exchange CommissioBecember 8, 2011, File
Number (-51357)

Collateral Trust Agreement, dated as of Februar2005, among Builders FirstSource, Inc., the oRiedgors party thereto, UBS
AG, Stamford Branch, as Administrative Agent untter Credit Agreement, Wilmington Trust CompanyTasstee under the
Indenture, UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as Priorityl@ekal Trustee, and UBS AG, Stamford Branch, agyP@ollateral Trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Ammedt No. 1 to the Registration Statement of the @amg on Form S-1, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onl&Jri 2005, File Number 3:-122788)

Confirmation of Reformation of Collateral Trust Agment, dated as of December 14, 2007, among BsifdiestSource, Inc., the
other Pledgors party thereto, UBS AG, Stamford Bhaas Administrative Agent under the Credit AgreamWilmington

Trust Company, as Trustee under the Indenture, NBSStamford Branch, as Priority Collateral Trustaed UBS AG, Stamford
Branch, as Parity Collateral Trustee (incorpordtgdeference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Anrieport on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2007, filed with treuftes and Exchange Commission on March 5, 2608 Number -51357)

Second Lien Pledge and Security Agreement, datedl Zenuary 21, 2010, by and among Builders Finst&® Inc., the Guarantors
party thereto, and Wilmington Trust Company, adaetal Trustee (incorporated by reference to ExAid.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia January 22, 2010, File Numb-51357)

Investment Agreement, dated as of October 23, 2a®®ng Builders FirstSource, Inc., JLL Partnersd~dnL.P., and Warburg
Pincus Private Equity 1X, L.P. (incorporated byereince to Exhibit 10.1 to Amendment No. 1 to thgiReation Statement of the
Company on Form-3, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio December 3, 2009, File Number -162906)

Amendment No. 1 to Investment Agreement, dated &eoember 2, 2009, among Builders FirstSource, [Hd. Partners Fund V,
L.P., and Warburg Pincus Private Equity IX, L.lc@irporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Gany’s Current Report on
Form &K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgia December 3, 2009, File Numb-51357)

Support Agreement, dated as of October 23, 2008ngrBuilders FirstSource, Inc. and certain holdérsur Second Priority Seni
Secured Floating Rate Notes Due 2012 party th€imetorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlmpany’s Current Report on
Form &K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgia December 3, 2009, File Numb-51357)
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10.11

10.12+

10.13+

10.14+

10.15+

10.16+

10.17+

10.18+

10.19+

10.20+

10.21+

10.22+

10.23+

10.24+

10.25+

Amendment No. 1 to Support Agreement, dated aseskEbhber 2, 2009, among Builders FirstSource, Im¢.cartain holders of
our Second Priority Senior Secured Floating RatedlBue 2012 party thereto (incorporated by refeda Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed witle tRecurities and Exchange Commission on Decem(#8(0®, File Number
0-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1998 Stock IncentivenPks amended, effective March 1, 2004 (incorpdrhtereference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registratgiatement of the Company on Form S-1, filed whth $ecurities and
Exchange Commission on April 27, 2005, File Numki&i-122788)

Amendment No. 7 to Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1888ck Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencExbibit 10.6 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaaaledd December 31, 2006, filed with the Securities$ Bxchange
Commission on March 12, 2007, File Numb-51357)

2004 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1998 Stoaentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreemg@n¢orporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Amendment No. 1 toRegistration Statement of the Company on Form f8et], with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on April 27, 2005, File HanB3:-122788)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equity IncentivarP(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 tnehdment No. 4 to the
Registration Statement of the Company on Form fget], with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodane 6, 2005, File
Number 33-122788)

2005 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Eqitgentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreem@nmtorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Quérteeport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Juhe805, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 45282 Number -51357)

2005 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equityentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreememtdiporated by reference
to Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Current Report omr&-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia June 30, 200
File Number +-51357)

2006 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Eqitgentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreem@nmtorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s CuriR@port on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities anccEange Commission on
February 17, 2006, File Numbe-51357)

2006 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equityentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreememtdiporated by reference
to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Current Reportramm 8K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgia February 1’
2006, File Number-51357)

2007 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equityentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option AgreemiemtEmployee Directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlmmpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with tBecurities and Exchange
Commission on March 5, 2007, File Numb-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan diporated by reference to Annex D of the Compadgfnitive Proxy Statement
on Schedule 14A, filed with the Securities and Exae Commission on December 15, 2009, File Num-51357)

2008 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InsenPlan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (irpmmated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrz 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 filéth the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 1, 2008, File Num!-51357)

2008 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InoenPlan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incoaped by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrt 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 filéth the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 1, 2008, File Numt-51357)

2010 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InasenPlan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement forffayee Directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to@wmnpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaaded December 31, 2009,
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMarch 4, 2010, File Numbe-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Amended and Restatedgeddent Director Compensation Policy (incorporéedeference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrt 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006, Vil the Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 3, 2006, File Nun®-51357)
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10.26+

10.27+

10.28+

10.29+

10.30+

10.31+

10.32+

10.33+

10.34+

14.1

14.2

21.1

23.1*
24.1*
31.1*

31.2*

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Form of Director Indefrogtion Agreement (incorporated by reference taigix 10.13 to Amendment
No. 3 to the Registration Statement of the Companirorm -1, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissin May 26,
2005, File Number 3:-122788)

Employment Agreement, dated September 1, 2001 deetBuilders FirstSource, Inc. and Floyd F. Sher(maorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Amendment No. 1 toRgistration Statement of the Company on Form f8et], with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on April 27, 2005, File WanB3:-122788)

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated June 5,2fketween Builders FirstSource, Inc. and Floy8Herman
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Aairent No. 4 to the Registration Statement of thea@any on Form S-1, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on 8u2€05, File Number 3:-122788)

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement, dateda@c29, 2008, between Builders FirstSource, Ind.Rloyd F. Sherman
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to @wmmpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeadled December 31, 2008,
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMarch 2, 2009, File Numbe-51357)

Employment Agreement, dated February 23, 2010, é&stvBuilders FirstSource, Inc. and M. Chad Crowdiporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s CurfRaport on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities anccEange Commission on
February 26, 2010, File Numbe-51357)

Employment Agreement, dated January 15, 2004, leetBeilders FirstSource, Inc. and Morris E. Tollycprporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s AnriR@port on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQ7, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 5, 2868 Number -51357)

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated OctobePQ08, between Builders FirstSource, Inc. and Mdr Tolly
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to@wmnpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaaded December 31, 2008,
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMarch 2, 2009, File Numbe-51357)

Employment Agreement, dated January 15, 2004, leetBeilders FirstSource, Inc. and Donald F. McAke(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s QuaytBeport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Sepéerdd, 2005, filed with
the Securities Exchange Commission on Novembe®@5,2-ile Number -51357)

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated Octobe2@08, between Builders FirstSource, Inc. and bRaMcAleenan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to@wmpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaaded December 31, 2008,
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiotMarch 2, 2009, File Numbe-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Code of Business Conduck Ethics (incorporated by reference to ExhiBitlto the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddman31, 2005, filed with the Securities and Exclea8gmmission on
March 13, 2006, File Numbe-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Supplemental Code ofdstfincorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.2he €ompanys Annual Repol
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2fdi@8d, with the Securities and Exchange Commissioivarch 13, 2006, File
Number (-51357)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated bgneice to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company’s Annual Repo Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2009, filed with the Sgesrand Exchange Commission on March 4, 2010,Nil@ber (-51357)

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, IndeperiRegistered Public Accounting Fir
Power of Attorney (included as part of signaturge):

Written statement pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14&adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbarikey Act of 2002, signe
by Floyd F. Sherman as Chief Executive Offi

Written statement pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14&jdopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbaxkey Act of 2002, signe
by M. Chad Crow as Chief Financial Offic
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32.1** Written statement pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sectior0]185 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@nley Act of 2002,
signed by Floyd F. Sherman as Chief Executive @ffand M. Chad Crow as Chief Financial Offi

101 x** The following financial information from BuildersrBtSource, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed on March 2, 20i@matted in eXtensible
Business Reporting Language (“XBRL")) Consolidated Statements of Operations for treyended December 31, 2011, 2
and 2009, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets at Dbeef3il, 2011 and 2010, (jiii) Consolidated StatesiehCash Flows for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 200C ¢n3olidated Statements of Changes in Stockhc Equity for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, and (\Wdkes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

* Filed herewitt

**  Builders FirstSource, Inc. is furnishing, buttrfding, the written statement pursuant to Title United States Code 1350, as added by
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,lo§é F. Sherman, our Chief Executive Officer, and@had Crow, our Chief
Financial Officer.

***  The Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 shattt be deemed filed for purposes of Section 1B@fSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, or
otherwise subject to the liability of that sectiemmd shall not be deemed to be incorporated byeederinto any filing under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Seesrixchange Act of 1934, except to the extenttieaCompany specifically
incorporates such information by referer

+  Indicates a management contract or compensatonygplarrangemer

(b) A list of exhibits filed, furnished or incorpated by reference with this Form 10-K is providédwe under Item 15(a)(3) of this
report.Builders FirstSource, Inc. will furnish a copy of awy exhibit listed above to any stockholder withoutharge upon written request
to Donald F. McAleenan, Senior Vice President and éeral Counsel, 2001 Bryan Street, Suite 1600, Dadl, Texas 75201.

(c) Not applicable
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, théoedmly authorized.

March 2, 2012
BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC.

/s/ FLOYD F. SHERMAN

Floyd F. Sherman

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

The undersigned hereby constitute and appoint DidraMcAleenan and his substitutes our true andubattorneys-in-fact with full
power to execute in our name and behalf in theates indicated below any and all amendmentsitrdport and to file the same, with all
exhibits thereto and other documents in connedtierewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comiatissaand hereby ratify and confirm all
that such attorney-in-fact or his substitutes slaaifully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélptihe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ FLOYD F. SHERMAN President and Chief Executive Officer (PrincipabExtive ~ March 2, 2012
Floyd F. Sherma Officer and Director
/s/ M. CHAD CROW Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offideriicipal ~March 2, 2012
M. Chad Crow Financial and Accounting Office

/sl PAUL S. LEVY
Paul S. Levy Chairman and Directc March 2, 201z

/s/ DAVID A. BARR
David A. Barr Director March 2, 2012

/s/ CLEVELAND A. CHRISTOPHE
Cleveland A. Christoph Director March 2, 201:

/s/ DANIEL AGROSKIN
Daniel Agroskin Director March 2, 201z

/s/ MICHAEL GRAFF
Michael Graff Director March 2, 201:

/s ROBERT C. GRIFFIN
Robert C. Griffin Director March 2, 2012

/s/ KEVIN J. KRUSE
Kevin J. Kruse Director March 2, 201:

/sl BRETT N. MILGRIM
Brett N. Milgrim Director March 2, 201z

/s/ CRAIG A. STEINKE
Craig A. Steinke Director March 2, 201z
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢ee Registration Statements on Forms S-8 (R83:128430, 333-147107, and
333-169001) of Builders FirstSource, Inc. of oyvaet dated March 2, 2012, relating to the finanstatements and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, whichpaars in this Form 10-K. We also consent to theresfces to us under the heading “Selected
Financial Data” in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 2, 2012



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Floyd F. Sherman, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this report on Form-K of Builders FirstSource, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or enittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this reg

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presente(
this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

€)) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isiige prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financ@darting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presemtads report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesggnt’s internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrrg that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions

(@  Allsignificant deficiencies and material weakgses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

/s FLOYD F. SHERMAN
Floyd F. Sherman
Chief Executive Office

Date: March 2, 2012



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, M. Chad Crow, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this report on Form-K of Builders FirstSource, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorny untrue statement of a material fact or emnittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presentet
this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

€)) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financéarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbd report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgnt’s internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardioéctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions

(@  Allsignificant deficiencies and material weakgses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sgmifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

/sl M. CHAD CROW
M. Chad Crow
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Date: March 2, 2012



Exhibit 32.1

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to 18 U.S.CSection 1350
(Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-@&y Act of 2002)

In connection with the annual report of BuilderssEsource, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K foe feriod ended December 31, 2011 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), we, Floyd F. Shem, as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, and M. Chad Crow, as Senior Vice PresidedtChief Financial Officer of the Company, cgrplrsuant to 18 U.S.C.

Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 96&darbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the béstr knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeiction 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securitiesiaxge Act of 1934; ar

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of
the Company

/s FLOYD F. SHERMAN
Floyd F. Sherman
Chief Executive Office

/si M. CHAD CROW
M. Chad Crow
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Dated: March 2, 2012

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadwll be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&ammission or its staff upon reque



